GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 124
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING
THURSDAY, JANUARY 20, 2022
7:00 PM - BOARD ROOM
25700 OLD GRAND AVENUE
INGLESIDE, IL 60041

AGENDA

l. Call to Order
Il. Pledge of Allegiance
[ll.  Roll Call
IV. Audience
V.  Consent Agenda **
VI.  Superintendent’s Report
Student Recognition
Excellence in Education Award Winner Recognition
Fall Athletic Season Update
Semester One Activities Update
English Learner — Bilingual Education Program **
COVID-19 Update
Village of Fox Lake — Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment
Property Purchase **
Spring Coaching Recommendations **
Personnel ** *REVISED*
. Principal’s Report
VII. Business Affairs
A. PerMar Security Hourly Wage Recommendation **
B. Food Service Hourly Wage Recommendation **
C. Auditing Services Requests for Proposals
VIIl. Other Business
A. FOIA
IX. Closed Session

ACTIOMMOOD P

2

57
58
59
68

70
180
192
193
198

200
202

203

A. The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of

specific employees. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) **
B. Student disciplinary cases 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(9) **
X.  Action items from closed session discussion
A. Potential Board action regarding personnel **
XI. Adjourn

** Indicates potential action item in open session
The next regular Board of Education meeting will be held on Thursday, February 17, 2022



GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 124
MINUTES OF BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING
DECEMBER 16, 2021

CALL TO ORDER

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Education of Grant Community High School District 124,
County of Lake, State of lllinois, was held on Thursday, December 16, 2021 and called to order
at 7:00 p.m. in the Library of Grant Community High School, 285 E. Grand Avenue, Fox Lake.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

All those in attendance stood to recite the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL

On Roll Call, the following Members were found to be present:
Steve Hill, President
John Jared, Secretary
Shelly Booth, Member
Ivy Fleming, Member
Ed Lescher, Member
Bob Yanik, Member

Members absent:
Kathy Kusiak, Vice President

Administration present:
Dr. Christine A. Sefcik, Superintendent
Mrs. Beth Reich, Business Manager
Mr. Jeremy Schmidt, Principal
Dr. Stacie Noisey, Dir. Curriculum, Instruction, & Assessment

AUDIENCE
Alyssa Manthi, Susan Maina, Kristin and Randy Splitt, Kyle Splitt, Kevin and Megan Blake

CONSENT AGENDA

Minutes of regular meeting held November 18, 2021
Minutes of closed meeting held November 18, 2021
December Bills Payable
November Treasurer's Report
Destruction of open and closed meeting audio recording from June 18, 2020
A motion was made by Mr. Jared, second by Mrs. Booth to approve the Consent Agenda
as presented.
Votes were taken by roll call. Votes were cast as follows:
Aye: Jared, Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill
Nay: None
Absent: Kusiak
Motion — Passed

*%*



Board of Education Meeting
December 16, 2021
Page 2 of 7

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

Student Recognition

Dr. Sefcik introduced Kyle Splitt, in the presence of his parents, Randy and Kristin Splitt, as the
December Student of the Month. She read Kyle’s profile of accomplishments, which included
academic achievements, extracurricular activities, service to the community, what he enjoys in
his spare time, and future plans. Dr. Sefcik offered Kyle the opportunity to speak to the Board
and he thanked the Board for the honor. The Board and audience applauded Kyle and Dr. Sefcik
presented him with a certificate to commemorate being chosen as the December Student of the
Month.

Dr. Sefcik asked Alyssa Manthi to join her and introduced her to the Board in the presence of her
mother Susan Maina. Alyssa was recognized for her accomplishment in receiving a full 4-year
scholarship to the University of Chicago as a Quest Scholar in the National College Match
Program. Dr. Sefcik pointed out that it is highly competitive and is based on academics and
involvement. The value of the scholarship is over $200,000 and covers tuition and fees, room
and board, books and supplies, and travel expenses. Alyssa thanked the Board for all the
opportunities that have been available here at Grant. Dr. Sefcik presented Alyssa with a certificate
to commemorate her Board recognition.

Student Performance Update

Dr. Sefcik introduced Dr. Stacie Noisey, Director of Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment who
discussed the student performance results for the PSAT Suite of Assessments and last year’s
Advanced Placement testing. She noted that due to COVID, there is some unusual data. Dr.
Noisey will bring the report on the curriculum audit process to a future meeting.

Multi-Tiered System of Supports / DMG Update

Dr. Sefcik reported that the guiding coalition has been meeting to continue to develop the District’s
Multi-Tiered System of Supports. The scope has expanded to include both academics and social-
emotional supports. She provided a brief summary of implementation planning.

Calendar 2022/23
Dr. Sefcik recommended approval of the 2022/23 calendar. There was input from staff, feeder
districts, and comparisons to other calendars. She noted that because of where the holidays fell
the 2022 winter break aligns with the Lake County High Schools Technology Campus calendar
and the Regional Office of Education and Tech Campus calendars for spring break. Our calendar
has been shared with our feeder districts who will align as closely as possible for them.
** A motion was made by Mr. Yanik, second by Mrs. Booth to approve the 2022/23 School
Calendar as presented.
Votes were taken by roll call. Votes were cast as follows:
Aye: Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Jared
Nay: None
Absent: Kusiak
Motion — Passed

District E-Learning Plans

Dr. Sefcik reminded the Board that in the fall of 2019 the Board of Education approved the
District’s first E-Learning Plan. That foundation allowed us to develop an Extended E-Learning
Plan and various iterations of a Blended Learning Plan when we were able to phase in in-person
learning previously. She said that only the Emergency Day E-Learning Plan is required to be
formally approved by the Board of Education, though both are equally important in the event they
are needed as they would replace our traditional3earning mode. She added that E-Learning plans




Board of Education Meeting
December 16, 2021
Page 3 of 7

for students in required quarantine and students that meet specific requirements to be in remote
learning remain separate from the Emergency and Extended E-learning Plans.
** A motion was made by Mrs. Fleming, second by Mr. Jared to approve the addition of the
Emergency Day E-Learning Plan to go along with the Extended E-Learning Plan.
Votes were taken by roll call. Votes were cast as follows:
Aye: Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Jared, Booth
Nay: None
Absent: Kusiak
Motion — Passed

School Board Policy Modifications — First Reading

Dr. Sefcik presented the revised School Board Policies for approval based on the direction from
the lllinois Association of School Boards and legal counsel. The PRESS Update Memo provided
supporting information for all proposed changes. The Board stated that they reviewed the
updates and were prepared to vote upon at this meeting. The policies are:

Section 200 School Board

2:20 Powers and Duties of the School Board; Indemnification
2:110 Qualifications, Term, and Duties of Board Officers
2:120 Board Member Development

2:220 School Board Meeting Procedure

2:260 Uniform Grievance Procedure

Section 300 General School Administration
3:40 Superintendent

Section 400 Operational Services

4:60 Purchases and Contracts

4:160 Environmental Quality of Buildings and Grounds

4:165 Awareness and Prevention of Child Sexual Abuse and Grooming Behaviors — New Policy
4:170 Safety

4:175 Convicted Child Sex Offender; Screening; Notifications

Section 500 Personnel

5:10 Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment
5:20 Workplace Harassment Prohibited

5:30 Hiring Process and Criteria

5:50 Drug- and Alcohol-Free Workplace; E-Cigarette, Tobacco, and Cannabis Prohibition
5:90 Abused and Neglected Child Reporting

5:100 Staff Development Program

5:120 Employee Ethics; Conduct; and Conflict of Interest

5:125 Personal Technology and Social Media; Usage and Conduct
5:150 Personnel Records

5:185 Family and Medical Leave

5:200 Terms and Conditions of Employment and Dismissal

5:220 Substitute Teachers

5:250 Leaves of Absence

5:330 Sick Days, Vacation, Holidays, and Leaves

Section 600 Instruction

6:20 School Year Calendar and Day

6:50 School Wellness

6:60 Curriculum Content 4




Board of Education Meeting
December 16, 2021
Page 4 of 7

6:120 Education of Children with Disabilities
6:135 Accelerated Placement Program

Section 700 Students

7:60 Residence

7:70 Attendance and Truancy

7:80 Release Time for Religious Instruction/ Observance
7:150 Agency and Police Interviews

7:160 Student Appearance

7:180 Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment
7:190 Student Behavior

7:200 Suspension Procedures

7:210 Expulsion Procedures

7:240 Conduct Code for Participants in Extracurricular Activities
7:250 Student Support Services

7:260 Exemption from Physical Education

7:290 Suicide and Depression Awareness and Prevention
7:315 Restrictions on Publications; High Schools

7:340 Student Records

** A motion was made by Mr. Jared, second by Mr. Yanik to approve the Board policies as
presented.
Votes were taken by roll call. Votes were cast as follows:
Aye: Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Jared, Booth, Fleming
Nay: None
Absent: Kusiak
Motion — Passed

Joint Conference Session Debrief

Dr. Sefcik asked the Board if they wanted to share any of the information they came away with
from the sessions they attended at the Joint Conference a few weeks ago. Several members
shared information from the professional development meetings they attended.

Overnight Travel Request
Dr. Sefcik reported that the Speech Team is asking to attend the IHSA Sectionals tournament
from February 11 to February 12, 2022, at DeKalb High School. The District will pay competition
entry fees and the Speech Team will pay travel expenses with student activity funds. Students
will be responsible for the cost their own meals.
** A motion was made by Mr. Lescher, second by Mrs. Booth to approve the overnight travel
of the Speech Team, as presented.
Votes were taken by roll call. Votes were cast as follows:
Aye: Yanik, Hill, Jared, Booth, Fleming, Lescher
Nay: None
Absent: Kusiak
Motion — Passed

Personnel
Dr. Sefcik recommended approval/notification of the following personnel recommendations:

Employment of the following individuals:

¢ Rachel Bicknase, Full-time Science, BA Step 0, effective November 1, 2021.

e Lonnie Bible, Interim Assistant Director of Agtivities & Athletics, rate of $40/hr., effective
November 30. 2021.



Board of Education Meeting
December 16, 2021
Page 5 of 7

e Kathryn Queeney Bartels, Food Service, $12/hr., starting 1/3/2022.
e Susanne Mora, Food Service, $12/hr., starting 1/3/2022.

Accepting the retirement letter and resignations from the following:

Gloria Roedl, Food Service, retiring at the end of the 2021/22 school year.
Rosa Ramirez, Food Service, resignation effective 10/26/21.

Wendy Schuette, Head Cook, effective 12/14/2021.

Kelly Mandala, Prep Cook, effective 12/14/2021.

Noemi Zavala, Attendance Secretary, resignation effective 11/18/21.
Shea Wintersteen, Girls’ Tennis Coach, resignation effective immediately.

Notification of FMLA requests from the following:
e Rachel Lesiak, beginning February 2, 2022 and ending March 18, 2022.
e Will Schmadeke, beginning February 28, 2022 and ending April 8, 2022.

** A motion was made by Mr. Lescher, second by Mr. Jared to approve the personnel
recommendations as presented.
Votes were taken by roll call. Votes were cast as follows:
Aye: Hill, Jared, Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik
Nay: None
Absent: Kusiak
Motion — Passed

Principal’s Report

Mr. Schmidt presented his monthly report which included information on Semester 1 Final Exams,
Opt-In Remote Learning, Feeder School Articulations and Eighth Grade Placements, Eighth
Grade Enrollment Night Preparations, and Performing Arts Society.

BUSINESS AFFAIRS

Food Service — Proposal for In-Depth Review from Quest Food Management Services
Mrs. Reich recommended approval of the proposal presented last month from Quest Food
Management Services for an in-depth review and report of our food service program. The cost
will be $12,000, which includes many areas such as operations (flow), financials, menus/food
choices, cost analysis, National School Lunch Program, site visits, uniforms, sanitation, and more.
** A motion was made by Mr. Jared, second by Mrs. Fleming to approve the proposal from
Quest Food Management Services, as presented.
Votes were taken by roll call. Votes were cast as follows:
Aye: Jared, Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill
Nay: None
Absent: Kusiak
Motion — Passed

OTHER BUSINESS

Dr. Sefcik reported that a FOIA was received and fulfilled. Information was shared regarding an
unfounded TikToc school threat, which has been communicated to families. Two recent Health
Department meetings indicate changes are coming regarding contact tracing.



Board of Education Meeting
December 16, 2021
Page 6 of 7

CLOSED SESSION

** At 7:57 p.m. a motion was made by Mr. Yanik, second by Mrs. Booth to go into closed
session for the purpose of discussing the appointment, employment, compensation,
discipline, performance or dismissal of specific employees 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(1); the purchase
or lease of real property for the use of the public body 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(5); student
disciplinary cases 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(9); and litigation, when an action against, affecting or on
behalf of the particular public body has been filed and is pending before a court or
administrative tribunal, or when the public body finds that an action is probable or imminent,
in which case the basis for the finding shall be recorded and entered into the minutes of the
closed meeting 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(11).

Votes were taken by roll call. Votes were cast as follows:
Aye: Booth, Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Jared
Nay: None
Absent: Kusiak

Motion — Passed

** At 8:47 p.m. a motion was made by Mrs. Fleming, second by Mr. Lescher to end closed

session and return to open session.
Votes were taken by roll call. Votes were cast as follows:
Aye: Fleming, Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Jared, Booth
Nay: None
Absent: Kusiak

Motion — Passed

ACTION CLOSED SESSION

** A motion was made by Mrs. Booth, second by Mr. Lescher to approve a $3,600 bonus for
Attendance Secretary, Vanessa Boss for the 2021/22 school year.
Votes were taken by roll call. Votes were cast as follows:
Aye: Lescher, Yanik, Hill, Jared, Booth, Fleming
Nay: None
Absent: Kusiak
Motion — Passed
** A motion was made by Mr. Jared, second by Mr. Yanik to uphold the 2-day suspension for
student #1-2021 based on evidence presented to the Board of Education.
Votes were taken by roll call. Votes were cast as follows:
Aye: Yanik, Hill, Jared, Booth, Fleming, Lescher
Nay: None
Absent: Kusiak
Motion — Passed

ADJOURN

*%

At 8:50 p.m. a motion was made by Mr. Yanik, second by Mr. Lescher to adjourn the
meeting.

Steve Hill, President 7



Board of Education Meeting
December 16, 2021
Page 7 of 7

John Jared, Secretary



Grant Community High School District 124
AP Invoice Listing Report
January 20, 2022

Total Invoices: 330 $850,858.10



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 1
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
ACCURATEOO1 ACCURATE BI OMETRI CS 198662112 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Fi ngerprinting DEC21 B 12/31/2021 01/20/2022 R $234. 00
21-22 $234. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $234. 00
ACl S 000 ACIS 325/ ANF/ CHI 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Trip code 325/ ANF/ CHI B 01/07/ 2022 01/20/2022 M $40, 492. 00
21-22 108638 $40, 492. 00
ACl S 000 ACIS 325/ PDC/ CHI 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Trip code 325/ PDC/ CHI B 01/07/2022 01/20/ 2022 M $19, 516. 00
21-22 108639 $19, 516. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $60, 008. 00
Al RGAS U000 Airgas Usa, Llc 9984280163 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Cyl i nder Rental B 11/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $82. 86
21-22 $82. 86
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $8]’_2086
ALARM DEOOO Al arm Detection Systens, Inc. 160450- 1038 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Qrly Chrgs JAN-MAR 22 B 12/05/2021 01/20/2022 R $185. 61
21-22 $185. 61
ALARM DEOOO Al arm Det ection Systens, |nc. 211637-1020 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Sem Annual Chrgs Jan-Jun22 B 12/05/2021 01/20/2022 R $229. 14
21-22 $229. 14
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $414. 75
ALBERTSC0D00 Al bertsons / Saf eway 186151 0000000000 dk121321 AP Jewel Prchs 111121-112921 H 12/07/2021 12/13/2021 R $653. 93
21-22 108579 $653. 93
ALBERTSC0D00 Al bertsons / Saf eway 186151 0000000000 dk011122 AP Jewel Prchs 120821- 010622 H 01/07/2022 01/11/2022 R $826. 14
21-22 108640 $826. 14
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $1, 480. 07
ALPHA BA0O0O Al pha Baking Co., Inc. DEC 2021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 120321- 121421 B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $476. 09
21-22 $476. 09




3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 2
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $476. 09
AVAZON 000 Amazon 6045787810169488 0002200025 DKJAN22 AP Amazon purchases 21-22 B 12/10/2021 01/20/2022 R $8, 403. 75
21-22 $8, 403. 75
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $8, 403. 75
ANDERLI NOOO Ander son, Linda 01082022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls JV 2 B 01/08/2022 01/20/2022 R $53. 00
21-22 $53. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $53. 00
ANDERSONO03 Ander son Lock 1082526 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP St or er oom Lock B 01/04/2022 01/20/2022 R $5, 019. 00
21-22 $5, 019. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $5, 019. 00
11
ANDROPET000 Androus, Peter 12182021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/18/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
ANDRCPET000 Androus, Peter 12222021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $134. 00
ANTI OCH 005 Antioch Community H gh School BTRK ANTI OCH 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT BOYS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $170. 00
DI CK HARLAND INVITE 5 4 22
21-22 $170. 00
ANTI OCH 005 Antioch Community H gh School GSB JV ANTI OCH 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT JV SOFTBALL ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $120. 00
ANTI OCH TOURNAMENT 4 30 22
21-22 $120. 00
ANTI OCH 005 Antioch Community H gh School GTRK ANTI OCH 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT G RLS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $160. 00
ANTIOCH INVITE 5 9 22
21-22 $160. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 3
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 3 $450. 00
ARNDTKRI 000 Arndt, Kristen EDCL 5587 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursement B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $475. 00
21-22 $475. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $475. 00
ASSETGENOOO Asset Geni e I nc 1611370 3002200040 DKJAN22 AP Chr onebook Repl acenment Parts P B 12/09/2021 01/20/2022 R $159. 95
TSI
21-22 $159. 95
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $159. 95
ASSETWORO00 Asset Wrks Ri sk Managenent |nc 47432 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Claim Gen & Processing B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $262. 20
21-22 $262. 20
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $2%220
AT&T 001 Até&t 030 488 1620 001 0000000000 dk010622 AP 847-587- 2561 H 12/18/2021 01/06/2022 R $113. 62
21-22 108633 $113. 62
NUMBER CF | NvVO CES: 1 $113. 62
AT&T 002 AT&T 847587259712 0000000000 dk010622 AP 84758725975566 112021-121921 H 12/19/2021 01/06/2022 R $4,781. 68
21-22 108634 $4,781. 68
AT&T 002 AT&T 847R07038911 0000000000 dk121321 AP 847R0703894235 10292021 - H 11/28/2021 12/13/2021 R $27.01
11282021
21-22 108580 $27.01
AT&T 002 AT&T 847R07038912 0000000000 dk011122 AP 847r 0703894235 112921-122821 H 12/28/2021 01/11/2022 R $27.01
21-22 108641 $27.01
AT&T 002 AT&T 847R16282512 0000000000 dk122921 AP 847R1628259407 111721-121621 H 12/16/2021 12/29/2021 R $1, 025. 33
21-22 108630 $1, 025. 33



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 4

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVOI CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LQ S I NV DATE DUE DATE C NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOMLQAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON FY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR _ | NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 4 $5, 861. 03
ATHLETI C001 ATHLETI CO MANAGEMENT LLC 822311 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP ATC Contract 21-22 B 12/01/2021 01/20/2022 R $13, 803. 33
21-22 $13, 803. 33
NUMBER OF | NVOl CES: 1 $13, 803. 33
ATLAS LAOOO Atlas Language Services Inc. 3783267 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Transl ation Services B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $677. 88
21-22 $677. 88
ATLAS LAOOO Atlas Language Services Inc. 3811407 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Transl ation Service B 01/03/2022 01/20/2022 R $65. 00
21-22 $65. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 2 $742. 88
AVALON POO0O Aval on Petrol eum Co. 573914 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP RFG 10% Et hanol B 12/02/2021 01/20/2022 R $2, 986. 16
21-22 $2, 98f316
AVALON POO0O Aval on Petrol eum Co. 573919 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP RFG 10% Et hanol B 12/09/2021 01/20/2022 R $3, 250. 53
21-22 $3, 250. 53
AVALON POOO Aval on Petrol eum Co. 573972 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP RFG 10% Et hanol B 12/15/2021 01/20/2022 R $2, 951. 33
21-22 $2, 951. 33
AVALON POO0O Aval on Petrol eum Co. 573979 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP RFG 10% Et hanol B 12/23/2021 01/20/2022 R $2,918. 03
21-22 $2,918. 03
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 4 $12, 106. 05
BABI NTI MDOO Babi n, Ti not hy 2211 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Cheer Conp Music B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $650. 00
21-22 $650. 00
NUMBER OF | NVOl CES: 1 $650. 00
BARRI NGT002 Barrington Hi gh School GITRK BARRI NGTON 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT G RLS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $350. 00

BARRI NGTON | NVI TE 4 14 22



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 5
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM

VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT

BARRI NGT002 Barrington H gh School GTRK BARRI NGTON ok %ok kox CONTI NUED * * % * *
21-22 $350. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $350. 00
BASBAPAU000 Basbagi ||, Paul 12112021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys Frsh A&B B 12/11/2021 01/20/2022 R $106. 00
21-22 $106. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $106. 00
BEHM DAVO02 Behm Dave EDCL 5577 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursenent B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $525. 00
21-22 $525. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $525. 00
BERSCART000 Berschel, Art 12112021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys V B 12/11/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67400
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $67. 00
BERT JEFO00 Bert, Jeff 12232021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/23/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $67. 00
BI BA M CO00 Bi ba, M chael 12132021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys Frsh A&B B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $106. 00
21-22 $106. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $106. 00
BLANKDAVOOO Bl anke, David 12172021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei mbur se Donut s B 01/03/2022 01/20/2022 R $269. 80
21-22 $269. 80
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $269. 80
BLI CK ARO00 BLI CK ART MATERI ALS 7674455 0042200014 DKJAN22 AP Art: Austin Supply O der F B 12/15/2021 01/20/2022 R $37. 23



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 6

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM

VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT

BLI CK ARO00 BLI CK ART MATERI ALS 7674455 ok %ok kox CONTI NUED * * % * *
21-22 $37. 23
BLI CK ARO00 BLI CK ART MATERI ALS 7717129 0042200007 DKJAN22 AP Art Painting Supply Order F B 12/21/2021 01/20/2022 R $70. 33
21-22 $70. 33
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 2 $107. 56
BLUM GEROOO Bl um Gerard 01042022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 01/04/2022 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $67. 00
BMO 000 Bmo 5550080001721955 0000000000 dk121621 AP GElI ST DEC 21 STMr H 12/05/2021 12/16/2021 R $1, 607. 65
21-22 108622 $1, 607. 65
BMO 000 Bmo 5550080001801856 0000000000 dk121621 AP SCHM DT DEC 21 STMI H 12/05/2021 12/16/2021 R $3?f565
21-22 108622 $374. 65
BMO 000 Bmo 5550080001950034 0000000000 dk121621 AP M LLER DEC 21 STMI H 12/05/2021 12/16/2021 R $1, 609. 86
21-22 108622 $1, 609. 86
BMO 000 Bmo 5569350000572769 0000000000 dk121621 AP SCENKSEN DEC 21 STMr H 12/05/2021 12/16/2021 R $967. 85
21-22 108622 $967. 85
BMO 000 Bmo 5569350000607425 0000000000 dk121621 AP DUVAL DEC 21 STMI H 12/05/2021 12/16/2021 R $736. 00
21-22 108622 $736. 00
BMO 000 Bmo 5569350000608563 0000000000 dk121621 AP Schoel | DEC 21 STMI H 12/05/2021 12/16/2021 R $516. 26
21-22 108622 $516. 26
BMO 000 Bmo 5569350000664095 0000000000 dk121621 AP ROSS DEC 21 STMT H 12/05/2021 12/16/2021 R $433. 31
21-22 108622 $433. 31
BMO 000 Bmo 5569350143083476 0000000000 dk121621 AP Stapl es DEC 21 Stnt H 12/05/2021 12/16/2021 R $1, 241.81

21-22 108622 $1, 241.81



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 7
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
BMO 000 Bmo 5569350192989003 0000000000 dk121621 AP REI CH DEC 21 STMI H 12/05/2021 12/16/2021 R $7,911.85
21-22 108622 $7, 911. 85
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 9 $15, 399. 24
BOTONMAX00O Bot on, Maxwel | H'S 612-109 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursenent B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $750. 00
21-22 $750. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $750. 00
BOYKEJOHOOO Boyke, John 12182021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/18/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
BOYKEJOHOOO Boyke, John 12222021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $13f600
BRENNBI LOOO Brennan, Bill 01042022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 01/04/2022 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvVO CES: 1 $67. 00
BSN SPORO00 Bsn Sports 914789901 0502200016 DKJAN22 AP W LSON BALL ORDER F B 11/23/2021 01/20/2022 R $2,582. 77
BASKETBALL, FOOTBALL,
SOCCER, VOLLEYBALL
21-22 $2,582. 77
BSN SPORO00 Bsn Sports 915068121 0502200016 DKJAN22 AP W LSON BALL ORDER F B 12/09/2021 01/20/2022 R $674. 13
BASKETBALL, FOOTBALL,
SOCCER, VOLLEYBALL
21-22 $674. 13
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $3, 256. 90
BUI LDI NGQOOO Bui | di ng Bl ocks For Kids Success 450 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Cccup Therapy JAN 22 B 01/03/2022 01/20/2022 R $3,120. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 8

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM

VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LQ S |INV DATE DUE DATE C NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOMLQOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON FY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR | NVO CE AMOUNT

BUI LDI NGOOO Bui | di ng Bl ocks For Kids Success 450 * kK oxk & CONTI NUED* * * * * *
21-22 $3, 120. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $3, 120. 00
CANNOSHAQ00 Cannon, Shane 12232021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/23/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $67. 00
CANO ALEOOO Cano, Al ejandra 01032022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Refund IL Theater Festival B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $177. 00
21-22 $177. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $177. 00
CENTRAL 010 Central d othing Conpany 2160 0502200040 DKJAN22 AP SOFTBALL COACHES HATS F B 10/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $172. 45
21-22 $1%E745
CENTRAL 010 Central d othing Conmpany 2176 0502200047 DKJAN22 AP G RLS GOLF BAGS 2022 F B 11/23/2021 01/20/2022 R $2, 664. 00
21-22 $2, 664. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 2 $2, 836. 45
CERAM C 000 Ceranic Supply Chicago 17399 0042200011 DKJAN22 AP Art Cay Oder F B 01/04/2022 01/20/2022 R $517. 00
21-22 $517. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $517. 00
CFRB LLCOOO Cfrb Llc Dba Dominos Pizza #2832 DEC 2021 Gl122021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 120121- 121421 B 12/14/2021 01/20/2022 R $4, 890. 00
21-22 $4, 890. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $4, 890. 00
CI NTAS 4000 Cintas 47P DEC 2021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Towel Service B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $151. 80

21-22 $151. 80



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 9

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $151. 80
CLARKCEQD00 C ark, Ceola |11 12222021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $67. 00
COMCAST 001 Contast 135375824 0000000000 dk121321 AP 900023977 DEC2021 H 12/01/2021 12/13/2021 R $3, 739. 04
21-22 108581 $3, 739. 04
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $3, 739. 04
COMCAST 002 Contast Cable 8771100240009348 0000000000 dk121321 AP CABLE 12082021- 01072022 H 11/28/2021 12/13/2021 R $7.92
21-22 108582 $7.92
COMCAST 002 Contast Cable 8771100240009348 0000000000 dk010622 AP CABLE 0182022- 02072022 H 12/28/2021 01/06/2022 R $8. 99
21-22 108635 %PBQQ
COMCAST 002 Contast Cable 8771100240060762 0000000000 dk121321 AP I NTERNET 1213201- 01122022 H 12/06/2021 12/13/2021 R $198. 35
21-22 108582 $198. 35
COMCAST 002 Contast Cable 8771100240166759 0000000000 dk121321 AP Internet 12012021-12312021 H 11/24/2021 12/13/2021 R $397. 85
21-22 108582 $397. 85
COMCAST 002 Contast Cable 8771100240166759 0000000000 dk010622 AP Internet 01012022-01312022 H 12/24/2021 01/06/2022 R $409. 85
21-22 108635 $409. 85
COMCAST 002 Contast Cable 8771100430290583 0000000000 dk010622 AP Srvc from 12212021- 01202022 H 12/17/2021 01/06/2022 R $208. 35
21-22 108635 $208. 35
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 6 $1, 231. 31
CONNECTI 002 Connections Day School 32770 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tuition Dec21 B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $4, 616. 48

21-22 $4, 616. 48



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 10
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
CONNECTI 002 Connections Day School 32771 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tuition Dec21 B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $4, 616. 48
21-22 $4, 616. 48
CONNECTI 002 Connections Day School 32772 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tuition Dec21 B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $4, 616. 48
21-22 $4, 616. 48
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 3 $13, 849. 44
CONSTELLO0OO Constellation New Energry, Inc 61044437601 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 764073- 46291 NOvV21 B 11/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $34, 530. 08
21-22 $34, 530. 08
CONSTELLOOO Constel | ation New Energry, Inc 61044471801 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 764073- 46292 NOV21 B 11/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $339. 88
21-22 $339. 88
CONSTELLO0O Constellation New Energry, Inc 61281006601 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 764073- 46291 DEC21 B 12/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $35, 377. 30
21-22 $35, 377. 30
19
CONSTELLO0O Constellation New Energry, Inc 61281096601 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 2857041- 0 DEC21 B 12/15/2021 01/20/2022 R $160. 28
21-22 $160. 28
CONSTELLOOO Constel | ation New Energry, Inc 61281100601 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 764073- 46292 DEC21 B 12/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $401. 34
21-22 $401. 34
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 5 $70, 808. 88
CONSTELLOO1 CONSTELLATI ON NEVENERGY- GAS DI VI SI 3359630 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP BG 5862 Gas Chrgs B 12/16/2021 01/20/2022 R $12, 319. 14
21-22 $12, 319. 14
CONSTELLOO1 CONSTELLATI ON NEWENERGY- GAS DI VI SI 3359632 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP BG 11642 Gas Chrgs B 12/16/2021 01/20/2022 R $686. 06
21-22 $686. 06
CONSTELLOO1 CONSTELLATI ON NEWENERGY- GAS DI VI SI 3375017 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP BG 5862 Gas Chrgs B 01/11/2022 01/20/2022 R $11, 480. 50
21-22 $11, 480. 50
CONSTELLOO1 CONSTELLATI ON NEVENERGY- GAS DI VI SI 3375018 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP BG 11642 Gas Chrgs B 01/11/2022 01/20/2022 R $778. 80
21-22 $778. 80



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 11

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LQ S |INV DATE DUE DATE C NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOMLQOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON FY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I N\VO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 4 $25, 264. 50
CRAMBTRI 000 Cranbes, Trisha Cl 53333 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursement B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $705. 00
21-22 $705. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $705. 00
DOANERS 001 Downers Grove South Hi gh School GTRK DGS 22 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT VARSI TY G RLS TRACK B 01/10/2022 01/20/2022 S $200. 00
ENTRY FEE DGS RELAYS MARCH 7
2022
21-22 $200. 00
DOWNERS 001 Downers Grove South Hi gh School Speech Fee 0000000000 dk011122 AP DGS Speech Entry Fee H 01/06/2022 01/11/2022 R $225. 00
21-22 108642 $225. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 2 $425. 00
20
DRAKEROMDOO Dr ake, Ronel | 12132021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal |l Boys Soph B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $53. 00
21-22 $53. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $53. 00
DREI SKE 000 Dreiske Enterpirises Inc 69412 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Material Move B 12/28/2021 01/20/2022 R $1, 104. 00
21-22 $1, 104. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $1, 104. 00
DUNDEE CO00 Dundee Crown Hi gh School GTRK DC QUAD 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT G RLS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $75. 00
DC QUAD 2 15 22
21-22 $75. 00
DUNDEE CO00 Dundee Crown Hi gh School GTRK DC TRI 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT G RLS TRACK VARSI TY B 12/14/2021 01/20/2022 R $75. 00
AND JV ENTRY FEE DC TRI 2 9
22

21-22 $75. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 12
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVOI CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LQ S I NV DATE DUE DATE C NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOMLQAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON FY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR _ | NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 2 $150. 00
DURHAM S001 Dur ham School Servi ces 91876520 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Spec Ed Trnspt DEC21 B 12/28/2021 01/20/2022 R $28, 739. 93
21-22 $28, 739. 93
NUMBER OF | NVOl CES: 1 $28, 739. 93
EASTBAY 000 East bay 1492516 0502200039 DKJAN22 AP SOFTBALL COACHES JACKETS F B 10/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $743. 97
21-22 $743. 97
NUMBER OF | NVOl CES: 1 $743. 97
ELI TE EMDOO Elite Enbroidery 17660 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bus Driver Sweatshirts B 11/23/2021 01/20/2022 R $265. 20
21-22 $265. 20
NUMBER OF | NVOl CES: 1 $265. 20
21
ELLI OLAWO0 Elliott, Law ence 12152021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei mburse M| eage B 12/15/2021 01/20/2022 R $16. 18
21-22 $16. 18
NUMBER OF | NVOl CES: 1 $16. 18
ENGLER, CO00 Engl er, Cal | away, Baasten & Sraga L 28787 0000000000 dk121321 AP CGeneral Law SRVC H 12/07/2021 12/13/2021 R $98. 00
21-22 108583 $98. 00
ENGLER, CO00 Engl er, Cal | away, Baasten & Sraga L 28788 0000000000 dk121321 AP Pr of essi onal Dev SRVCS H 12/07/2021 12/13/2021 R $1, 494. 50
21-22 108583 $1, 494. 50
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 2 $1, 592. 50
ERI KSSONOOO Eri ksson Engi neering 24917 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Engi neering Givil SRVC B 12/16/2021 01/20/2022 R $6,177.50
21-22 $6, 177. 50
NUMBER OF | NVOl CES: 1 $6, 177. 50
ERNI E PEOOO Ernie Peterson Plunbing, Inc. 52287 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Hot Water Tank/ Labor B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $15, 500. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 13

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM

VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT

ERNI E PEOOO Ernie Peterson Plunbing, Inc. 52287 ok %ok kox CONTI NUED * * % * *
21-22 $15, 500. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $15, 500. 00
ESCOBADA001 Escobedo, Adan 01082022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bbal | Boys Soph/Grls V B 01/08/ 2022 01/20/2022 R $120. 00
21-22 $120. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $120. 00
FOLLETT 006 Follett School Solutions, Inc. 360141F 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Li brary Supply B 11/18/2021 01/20/2022 R $312. 67
21-22 $312. 67
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $312. 67
FOUNTDUAOOO Fount ai n, Duane 12/ 13/ 2021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys Soph B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $53. 00
21-22 $§§200
FOUNTDUAOOO Fount ai n, Duane 12112021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys Soph B 12/11/2021 01/20/2022 R $53. 00
21-22 $53. 00
NUMBER CF | NvVO CES: 2 $106. 00
FOX LAKEO10 Fox Lake Rotary 12202021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP JAN- VAR 2022 Dues B 12/27/ 2021 01/20/2022 R $50. 00
21-22 $50. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $50. 00
FOX VALLOO2 Fox Valley Fire & Safety 1 N0O0489238 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Exti ngui sher SRVC B 12/29/2021 01/20/2022 R $95. 00
21-22 $95. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $95. 00
FRANCZEKOOO Franczek P.C. 208906 0000000000 dk122121 AP NOV 21 Legal SRVC H 12/15/2021 12/21/2021 R $513. 00

21-22 108627 $513. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 14

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $513. 00
GALLEDAVO0O Gal | egos, David 12032021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Westling Boys JV B 12/03/2021 01/20/2022 R $101. 00
21-22 $101. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $101. 00
GAURAASHO00 Gaura, Ashley EDCL5587 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursenent B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $475. 00
21-22 $475. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $475. 00
GBJ SALEOOO GBJ Sales, LLC 4113 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Ground Supply B 12/01/2021 01/20/2022 R $443. 50
21-22 $443. 50
GBJ SALEOOO GBJ Sales, LLC 4157 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP D-Li me B 01/03/2022 01/20/2022 R $699. 00
21-22 $6%?300
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $1, 142.50
G ANT STO00 G ant Steps 124G 1221S 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Dec 21 Tuition B 12/17/ 2021 01/20/2022 R $4, 418. 83
21-22 $4,418. 83
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $4, 418. 83
GORDON F000 Gordon Fl esch Conpany Inc. 1 N13565655 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Per Copy Maint Chrgs B 12/10/2021 01/20/2022 R $1, 193. 62
21-22 $1, 193. 62
GORDON F000 Gordon Fl esch Conpany Inc. 1 N13597052 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Per Copy Maint Chrgs B 01/20/2022 01/20/2022 R $1,149.78
21-22 $1, 149. 78
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $2, 343. 40
GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. 214995382 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Food Lab Supply B 12/02/2021 01/20/2022 R $129. 77

21-22 $129. 77



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 15

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. 215159908 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Food Lab Supply B 12/08/2021 01/20/2022 R $45. 37
21-22 $45. 37
GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. 215179181 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Food Lab Supply B 12/09/2021 01/20/2022 R $138.78
21-22 $138. 78
GORDON F001 Gordon Food Service, Inc. DEC 2021 100217416 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Food Dec 2021 B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $16, 368. 42
21-22 $16, 368. 42
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 4 $16, 682. 34
GRAFFDANOOO Graffeo, Danielle 01042022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei mbur se- M | eage B 01/06/2022 01/20/2022 R $61. 82
21-22 $61. 82
GRAFFDANOOO Graffeo, Danielle 12032021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei mburse M| eage B 12/15/2021 01/20/2022 R $185. 47
21-22 $185. 47

24

NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $247. 29
GRANT CHO03 Grant Chsd 124 Activity Fund 01032022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Fees Pd DEC2021 B 01/03/2022 01/20/2022 S $1, 710. 00
21-22 $1, 710. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $1, 710. 00
GRANT CO001 Grant Community Hi gh School Distri 01032022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Cal c3- DEC2021 Fees Pd B 01/03/2022 01/20/2022 S $400. 00
21-22 $400. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $400. 00
GRANT FO001 Grant Foundation 01032022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Fees Pd Dec2021 B 01/03/2022 01/20/2022 S $500. 00
21-22 $500. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $500. 00
GRAYSLAKO09 Graysl ake North Hi gh School 474977 0000000000 dk121321 AP I CDA 4 entry fees H 12/08/2021 12/13/2021 R $60. 00

21-22 108584 $60. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 16

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
GRAYSLAKO09 Graysl ake North High School BTN JV GLN 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT BOYS JV TENNI S ENTRY B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $40. 00

FEE GRAYSLAKE NORTH
TOURNAMENT 4 23 22

21-22 $40. 00

NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 2 $100. 00

GREAT LAO11 GREAT LAKES COCA COLA DI STRIB 17128206129 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bever ages- Vendi ng B 12/14/2021 01/20/2022 R $723. 52
21-22 $723. 52

GREAT LAO11 GREAT LAKES COCA COLA DI STRIB 17128206279 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Beverages Vendi ng B 01/04/2022 01/20/2022 R $1, 217. 12
21-22 $1, 217. 12

GREAT LAO11 GREAT LAKES COCA COLA DI STRIB 17128206336 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bever ages- Vendi ng B 01/11/2022 01/20/2022 R $680. 17
21-22 $680. 17

NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 3 $2, 6%81

GRUM MAROOO Grum Martin ET5083 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursenent B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $512. 00
21-22 $512. 00

NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $512. 00

GUARDI ANOO1 Guar di an 00 554362 0000000000 dk122921 AP Dental /Li fe DEC 2021 H 12/20/2021 12/29/2021 R $4, 289. 87
21-22 108631 $4, 289. 87

NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $4, 289. 87

GUI DI NG 000 Guiding Light Autism Acadeny 3680 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP DEC 21 Tuition B 01/01/2022 01/20/2022 R $3,731.78
21-22 $3,731.78

NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $3,731.78

HAVENHALO0O Havenga, Hal ey EDCL5587 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursenent B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $550. 00

21-22 $550. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 17

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $550. 00
HAVLI MAROOO Havlic, Mark 01082022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys V B 01/08/ 2022 01/20/2022 R $82. 00
21-22 $82. 00
HAVLI MAROOO Havlic, Mark 12232021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/23/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 2 $149. 00
HEARTLANOO6 Heartland Alliance Health 19554 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tel ephoni ¢ B 11/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $83. 70
21-22 $83. 70
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $83. 70
HOVE DEP001 Home Depot Conmercial Credit 6035322531946634 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $9. 96
21-22 $9696
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $9. 96
HORACE MD01 HORACE MANN LI FE | NSURANCE CO POL- 0522596840 0000000000 dk011122 AP C. Sefcik 12mo Life Ins H 12/28/2021 01/11/2022 R $2,907. 50
21-22 108643 $2,907. 50
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $2,907. 50
HUEMANN 000 Huermann Water Conditioning HWO01 258202 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Repai r Labor B 12/31/2021 01/20/2022 R $451. 00
21-22 $451. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $451. 00
HUNTLEY 000 Huntley H gh School BTRK HUNTLEY 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT BOYS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $300. 00

HUNTLEY | NVITE 2 25 22

21-22 $300. 00
HUNTLEY 000 Huntley Hi gh School DANCE HUNTLEY1 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT DANCE VARSI TY AND JV B 12/14/2021 01/20/2022 R $250. 00

ENTRY FEE HUNTLEY INVITE 1 9



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 18

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
HUNTLEY 000 Huntley H gh School DANCE HUNTLEY1 ok %ok kox CONTI NUED * * % * *
22
21-22 $250. 00
HUNTLEY 000 Huntley H gh School GTRK HUNTLEY 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT G RLS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $300. 00
HUNTLEY | NVITE 2 26 22
21-22 $300. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 3 $850. 00
HURCKM C000 Hur ckes, M chael 12092021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Westling V/JV2/JV B 12/09/2021 01/20/2022 R $109. 00
21-22 $109. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $109. 00
| ASA 000 Iasa 87 7233-FY22 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Annual License FY2022 B 12/16/2021 01/20/2022 R $275. 00
21-22 $23§700
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $275. 00
ILMEA 000 ILMEA Al -State 21-22 0000000000 dk121621 AP Al State Participate Fee H 11/30/2021 12/16/2021 R $30. 00
21-22 108623 $30. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $30. 00
| NTEGRATO00 I ntegrated Systens Corp 0720452 0000000000 dk121321 AP Skyward Jan 2022 H 12/01/2021 12/13/2021 R $413. 00
21-22 108585 $413. 00
| NTEGRATO00 I ntegrated Systens Corp 0720537 0000000000 dk121321 AP Skyward Jan 2022 H 12/01/2021 12/13/2021 R $533. 00
21-22 108585 $533. 00
| NTEGRATO00 | ntegrated Systens Corp 0721117 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Skyward FEB 2022 B 01/01/2022 01/20/2022 R $413. 00
21-22 $413. 00
| NTEGRATO00 I ntegrated Systens Corp 0721202 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Skywar d FEB 2022 B 01/01/2022 01/20/2022 R $533. 00

21-22 $533. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 19
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 4 $1, 892. 00
| NTEGRATO01 Integrated Security Specialists 12929 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Moni tor 010122- 033122 B 12/01/2021 01/20/2022 R $280. 50
21-22 $280. 50
| NTEGRATO01 Integrated Security Specialists 12930 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Moni tor 010122- 033122 B 12/01/2021 01/20/2022 R $231. 00
21-22 $231. 00
| NTEGRATO01 Integrated Security Specialists 13019 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Install Burglar/Cntrl SYS B 12/23/2021 01/20/2022 R $10, 046. 85
21-22 $10, 046. 85
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 3 $10, 558. 35
| SSELROBO00 |ssel, Robert 12132021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys V B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $62800
J.W PEPO0OO J.W Pepper & Son, Inc. 363918078 0122200016 DKJAN22 AP Band Misic Order F B 01/10/2022 01/20/2022 R $44. 99
21-22 $44. 99
NUMBER CF | NvVO CES: 1 $44. 99
JORAYCARO00 Joray, Carrie EDCL5587 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursenent B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $550. 00
21-22 $550. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $550. 00
KASTNNANOOO Kast ner, Nanette 12232021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/23/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $67. 00
KAYE RONOOO KAYE, RONALD 01082022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 01/08/ 2022 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 20
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $67. 00
KOMORAPROOO Konor ski, April | D 26337 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Car eer Crossroads B 01/12/2022 01/20/2022 R $100. 00
21-22 $100. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $100. 00
KOSSADEBOO1 Kossak, Debra 01072022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei mburse ACI'S mailing B 01/10/2022 01/20/2022 R $61. 09
21-22 $61. 09
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $61. 09
KRI HA BOOOO Kriha Boucek LLC 2933 0000000000 dk121321 AP NOV 21 Legal SRVC H 12/01/2021 12/13/2021 R $16, 005. 00
21-22 108586 $16, 005. 00
KRI HA BOO0OO Kriha Boucek LLC 3067 0000000000 dk011122 AP DEC 21 Legal SRVC H 01/06/2022 01/11/2022 R $13, 438. 00
21-22 108644 $13, 4%00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 2 $29, 443. 00
KW ATCHEOOO Kwi at kowski, Cheryl 12152021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei mburse M| eage B 12/15/2021 01/20/2022 R $82. 88
21-22 $82. 88
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $82. 88
LABSTER 000 Labster Inc. I NV- 14366 0032200027 DKJAN22 AP Labster program for Honors F B 12/31/2021 01/20/2022 R $2, 325. 00
Anat ony.
21-22 $2, 325. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $2, 325. 00
LAKE COU031 Lake County Heal th Dept & Comm Hea | nv-00054829 0000000000 dk010622 AP Water SYS Annual Permit H 12/10/2021 01/06/2022 R $243. 00
21-22 108636 $243. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $243. 00
LAKE ZUR0O2 Lake Zurich H gh School BTRK LAKE ZURI CH 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT BOYS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $350. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 21

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
LAKE ZUR002 Lake Zurich H gh School BTRK LAKE ZURI CH ok %ok kox CONTI NUED * * % * *
LAKE ZURI CH I NVITE 4 22 22
21-22 $350. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $350. 00
LAKES CO001 Lakes Community H gh School BTRK LAKES INVITES 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT BOYS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $700. 00
LAKES I NVITE 2 21 22 GRANT
BOYS TRACK ENTRY FEE LAKES
INVITE 3 18 22
21-22 $700. 00
LAKES CO001 Lakes Community High School GTRK LAKES INVITES 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT G RLS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $700. 00
LAKES I NVITE 2 21 22 GRANT
G RLS TRACK ENTRY FEE LAKES
INVITE 3 19 22
21-22 $7(§000
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $1, 400. 00
LAKES REOOO Lakes Regi on Co- Op JAN 2022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP JAN 2022 Ins Prem uns B 01/12/2022 01/20/2022 R $73, 537. 09
21-22 $73, 537. 09
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $73, 537. 09
LANGUAGEOOO Language Testing | nternational L50894- | N 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP AAPPL testing B 12/18/2021 01/20/2022 R $5. 00
21-22 $5. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $5. 00
LARTEMADOOO Lartey, Madilynn | D 26340 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Career Crossroads B 01/12/2022 01/20/2022 R $100. 00
21-22 $100. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $100. 00

LESI ARACO00 Lesiak, Rachel 01112022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei nburse Bul | dog Candy B 01/11/2022 01/20/2022 R $17. 29



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 22
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
LESI ARACOOO Lesi ak, Rachel 01112022 *xxxxx QONTI NUEDHK * * * * *
21-22 $17. 29
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $17. 29
LI BERTYVO08 Libertyville Hi gh School BVB LI BERTYVI LLE 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT BOYS VOLLEYBALL F/'S B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $500. 00
ENTRY LI BERTYVILLE I NVITE 4
16 22 GRANT BOYS VOLLEYBALL
FJV ENTRY FEE LI BERTYVI LLE
INVITE 4 30 22
21-22 $500. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $500. 00
LYON MADOOO Lyon, Madeline | APHERD Conf er ence 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei nburse M| es/ Food B 12/09/2021 01/20/2022 R $261. 54
21-22 $261. 54
31
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $261. 54
MCGRAW HO03 McGraw Hi | | 119937811001 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Sci ence Text books B 09/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $1, 798. 20
21-22 $1, 798. 20
MCGRAW HO03 McGraw Hi | | 120334617001 0032200025 DKJAN22 AP McGraw Hil |l teacher F B 11/02/2021 01/20/2022 R $98. 88
resources for Yang
21-22 $98. 88
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $1, 897. 08
MCQUEEN 000 McQueen Technol ogy Group LLC 011265 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP I'T Support 120121-123121 B 01/01/2022 01/20/2022 R $7, 000. 00
21-22 $7, 000. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $7, 000. 00
MENARDS 001 Menards 5680 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Theat er Supply B 11/10/2021 01/20/2022 R $211. 14
21-22 $211. 14



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 23

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LQ S |INV DATE DUE DATE C NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOMLQOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON FY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR | NVO CE AMOUNT
MENARDS 001 Menards 7449 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Transportation Supply B 12/07/2021 01/20/2022 R $11. 49
21-22 $11. 49
MENARDS 001 Menards 7838 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $93. 79
21-22 $93. 79
MENARDS 001 Menards 7985 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/15/2021 01/20/2022 R $16. 94
21-22 $16. 94
MENARDS 001 Menards 9113 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $6. 99
21-22 $6. 99
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 5 $340. 35
MENTA ACO00 Menta Acadeny North SESI Nv- 018308 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tuition NOV 21 B 11/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $387. 72
21-22 $387.72

32

MENTA ACO00 Menta Acadeny North SESI NV- 018377 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tuition NOV 21 B 11/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $4, 225. 92
21-22 $4, 225. 92
MENTA ACO00 Menta Acadeny North SESI Nv- 018811 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tui tion DEC 21 B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $4, 225. 92
21-22 $4, 225. 92
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 3 $8, 839. 56
MESMESTEOOO Mesner, Steve 01032022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Refund IL Theater Festival B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $177. 00
21-22 $177. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $177. 00
M DLAND 000 M dl and Paper 1 N01704431 0002200022 DKJAN22 AP Copy Paper order F B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $11, 070. 00
21-22 $11, 070. 00
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $11, 070. 00

M LBRVICO00 Ml bratz, Victoria I D 26596 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Career Crossroads B 01/12/2022 01/20/2022 R $200. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 24

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM

VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT

M LBRVI CO00 M Ibratz, Victoria | D 26596 *xxxxx QONTI NUEDHK * * * * *
21-22 $200. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $200. 00
MONKEY S000 Mbnkey Sports Inc 728188 0502200051 DKJAN22 AP LACRCSSE GLOVES F B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $575. 00
21-22 $575. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $575. 00
MOOREED 000 Mbore, Ed 01042022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls JV B 01/04/2022 01/20/2022 R $53. 00
21-22 $53. 00
MOOREED 000 Mbore, Ed 01082022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls J V2 B 01/08/ 2022 01/20/2022 R $53. 00
21-22 $53. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $1(§300
MUNARM CO00 Munaretto, Mchelle 12032022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei mburse M| eage B 12/03/2022 01/20/2022 R $47. 82
21-22 $47. 82
NUMBER CF | NvVO CES: 1 $47. 82
MUNDELEI 006 Mundel ei n Hi gh School BTN MUNDELEI N 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT BOYS VARSI TY TENNI S B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $60. 00

ENTRY FEE MUNDELEI N
TOURNAMENT 4 16 22

21-22 $60. 00

NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $60. 00

MJURZYSTEOOO Murzyn, Steven 01082022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls JV B 01/08/2022 01/20/2022 R $53. 00
21-22 $53. 00

NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $53. 00

NAPA AUTO00 Napa Auto Supply 037483 0000000000 dk121321 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply H 11/15/2021 12/13/2021 R $77. 66



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 25
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM

VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT

NAPA AUTO00 Napa Auto Supply 037483 % %% %% CONT| NUEDH * * % % %
21-22 108587 $77. 66
NAPA AUTO00 Napa Auto Supply 037574 0000000000 dk121321 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply H 11/16/2021 12/13/2021 R $114. 11
21-22 108587 $114. 11
NAPA AUTO00 Napa Auto Supply 038249 0000000000 dk121321 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply H 12/01/2021 12/13/2021 R $25. 80
21-22 108587 $25. 80
NAPA AUTO00 Napa Auto Supply 038335 0000000000 dk121321 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply H 12/02/2021 12/13/2021 R $228. 96
21-22 108587 $228. 96
NAPA AUTO00 Napa Auto Supply 038581 0000000000 dk010622 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply H 12/06/2021 01/06/2022 R $86. 73
21-22 108637 $86. 73
NAPA AUTO00 Napa Auto Supply 038839 0000000000 dk010622 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply H 12/10/2021 01/06/2022 R $54. 99
21-22 108637 $5§499
NAPA AUTO00 Napa Auto Supply 039651 0000000000 dk010622 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply H 12/29/2021 01/06/2022 R $79. 98
21-22 108637 $79. 98
NAPA AUTO00 Napa Auto Supply 039979 0000000000 dk011122 AP Transportation Supply H 01/06/2022 01/11/2022 R $5. 99
21-22 108645 $5. 99
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 8 $674. 22
NASCO EDOOO Nasco Education LLC 200474 0042200013 DKJAN22 AP Pai nting Supply Order P B 12/09/2021 01/20/2022 R $1, 058. 35
21-22 $1, 058. 35
NASCO EDOOO Nasco Education LLC 208876 0042200013 DKJAN22 AP Pai nting Supply Order P B 01/03/2022 01/20/2022 R $104. 55
21-22 $104. 55
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $1, 162. 90
NEDROW D000 Nedr ow Decorating | nc 21141 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Repairs 25700 Grand Ave B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $36, 750. 00
21-22 $36, 750. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 26
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $36, 750. 00
NEW CONNOOO NEW CONNECTI ONS ACADEMY 13525 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tui ti on DEC21 B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $4,993.76
21-22 $4,993. 76
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $4,993. 76
NEWKI KAYO00 Newki rk, Kaylynn | D 26603 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Car eer Crossroads B 01/12/2022 01/20/2022 R $200. 00
21-22 $200. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $200. 00
NICOR 001 Nicor 08- 78-68-1000 5 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 111921- 122121 ES Hawt hor ne B 12/21/2021 01/20/2022 R $50. 52
21-22 $50. 52
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $50. 52
35
NI TZ DANOOO Nitz, Dani el EDL- 6715 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursement B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $1,112. 00
21-22 $1,112. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $1, 112. 00
NORTHERNO24 Northern Il Science Educators NI SE Wor kshop 0000000000 dk121621 AP Sci ence Assmimt Wor kshop H 12/15/2021 12/16/2021 R $50. 00
21-22 108624 $50. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $50. 00
NORTHWES024 Nort hwestern Med Ccc Heal th 520888 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 1 Annual Exam B 11/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $170. 00
21-22 $170. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $170. 00
O KEEKEVO0OO O Keeffe, Kevin 12112021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys V B 12/11/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 27

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $67. 00
OCHOACRAO00 Cchoa, Craig 01042022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 01/04/2022 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $67. 00
ONDO NOAOOO Ondo, Noah 01082022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 01/08/ 2022 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $67. 00
OOSTDBI LO00 Cost dyk, Bill 12132021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys V B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $67. 00
36
ORKIN PEOOO Orkin Pest Control 221142143 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Pest Control SRVC B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $100. 00
21-22 $100. 00
ORKIN PEOOO Orkin Pest Control 222270659 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Pest Control SRVC B 01/01/2022 01/20/2022 R $137. 79
21-22 $137.79
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $237.79
PALATI NEOO2 Pal atine Hi gh School GTRK PALATI NE 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT G RLS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $150. 00
PALATINE | NVI TE 4 23 22
21-22 $150. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $150. 00
PARTS TQ000 Parts Town, Llc 27779929 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 09/02/2021 01/20/2022 R $105. 17
21-22 $105. 17
PARTS TQ000 Parts Town, Llc 28210174 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 10/25/2021 01/20/2022 R $70. 10

21-22 $70. 10



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 28

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 2 $175. 27
PAS|I EALEO0O Pasi ewi cz, Al ex 12182021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/18/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
PAS|I EALEOOO Pasi ewi cz, Al ex 12220021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 2 $134. 00
PDQ COM 000 PDQ com PD@B201 3002200045 DKJAN22 AP PDQ Sof t war e F B 01/06/2022 01/20/2022 R $900. 00
21-22 $900. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $900. 00
PEARSJEFO00 Pearson, Jeffrey 12132021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys V B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $63700
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $67. 00
PEERLESS001 Peerl|ess Network, Inc 478634 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 121521- 011422 B 12/15/2021 01/20/2022 R $219. 14
21-22 $219. 14
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $219. 14
PER MAR 000 Per Mar Security Services 540028 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Security WE 09/25/21 B 09/25/2021 01/20/2022 R $3, 203. 85
21-22 $3, 203. 85
PER MAR 000 Per Mar Security Services 540365 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Security WE 10/02/21 B 12/14/2021 01/20/2022 R $3,770. 11
21-22 $3, 770. 11
PER MAR 000 Per Mar Security Services 544252 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Security WE 11/06/ 21 B 11/06/ 2021 01/20/2022 R $3, 821. 49
21-22 $3,821. 49
PER MAR 000 Per Mar Security Services 545817 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Security WE 11/13/21 B 11/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $3,611.85

21-22 $3, 611. 85



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 29

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
PER MAR 000 Per Mar Security Services 545862 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Security WE 11/30/21 B 11/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $4, 324. 17
21-22 $4,324. 17
PER MAR 000 Per Mar Security Services 545904 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Security WE 11/27/21 B 11/27/ 2021 01/20/2022 R $1,542. 77
21-22 $1,542. 77
PER MAR 000 Per Mar Security Services 545961 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Security WE 12/04/21 B 12/04/2021 01/20/2022 R $3, 399. 35
21-22 $3, 399. 35
PER MAR 000 Per Mar Security Services 546432 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Security WE 12/11/21 B 12/11/2021 01/20/2022 R $2, 960. 35
21-22 $2, 960. 35
PER MAR 000 Per Mar Security Services 546979 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Security WE 12/18/21 B 12/18/2021 01/20/2022 R $3, 735. 62
21-22 $3, 735. 62
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 9 $30, 369. 56

38

PERSPECT000 Perspectives LTD 100656 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Enpl oyee Assist SRVC B 01/01/2022 01/20/2022 R $405. 00
21-22 $405. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $405. 00
PETERRI C001 Petersen, Richard 12182021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/18/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $67. 00
PI NTEW LOOO Pinter, WIIliam 01082022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys Soph B 01/08/ 2022 01/20/2022 R $53. 00
21-22 $53. 00
PI NTEW LO0OO Pinter, WIliam 12222021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $120. 00

POAER DI 000 Power Distributors 77034202 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tech Ed Supply B 09/27/2021 01/20/2022 R $10. 35



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON
ACH VO D DOMLQOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON
PONER DI 000 Power Distributors 77034202 *okk ok ok k CONTI NUED* * * * * *
PONER DI 000 Power Distributors 1 NO0817607 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tech Ed Supply
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 2
PRODRSPEOOO Pr odr onps, Spencer 12232021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1
PRUNELLAOOO Prunella's Fl ower 1874 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 5 Fl ower Arrangenents
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1
QUADI ENTO00 Quadi ent Fi nance USA I nc 7900044080451309 0000000000 dk121321 AP Post age NOV 2021
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1
QUILL CO002 Quill Corp. 21363738 0202200003 DKJAN22 AP Locki ng Cabi net for Nurse
QUILL CO002 Quill Corp. 21433484 0072200005 DKJAN22 AP Engl i sh Depart nent
instructional supplies-
Bal anag
QUILL CO002 Quill Corp. 21484607 0072200005 DKJAN22 AP Engl i sh Depart nent
instructional supplies-

01/ 13/ 22 Page: 30

1: 43 PM
LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT

Bal anag

21-22

B 12/20/ 2021
21-22

B 12/23/2021
21-22

B 12/30/ 2021
21-22

H 12/01/2021
21-22

F B 12/02/2021
21-22

F B 12/06/2021

F B 12/08/2021

21-22

01/20/ 2022 R

01/20/ 2022 R

01/20/ 2022 R

12/ 13/ 2021 R

108588

01/20/ 2022 R

01/20/ 2022 R

01/20/ 2022 R

$10. 35

$44. 80
$44. 80

$55. 15

$67. 00
$67. 00

$67. 00

$100. 00
$100. 00

$1q&900

$2, 000. 00
$2, 000. 00

$2, 000. 00

$106. 99
$106. 99

$11. 96

$11. 96

$41. 39

$41. 39



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 31
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
QUI LL CO002 Quill Corp. 21579721 1242200009 DKJAN22 AP Shared O fice Supplies F B 12/10/2021 01/20/2022 R $43. 90
21-22 $43. 90
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 4 $204. 24
READY REO00 READY REFRESH 11K8104637510 0000000000 dk121321 AP Drinki ng Water H 12/02/2021 12/13/2021 R $436. 67
21-22 108589 $436. 67
READY REO00 READY REFRESH 1118104637510 0000000000 dk011122 AP Drinki ng Water H 01/04/2022 01/11/2022 R $363. 68
21-22 108646 $363. 68
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $800. 35
REI CHBETO00 Reich, Beth 0000899460 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei mburse -Admin Gfts B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $1, 168. 37
21-22 $1, 168. 37
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $1, 1%037
RI VERVI C001 Rivera, Victor 01082022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys V B 01/08/ 2022 01/20/2022 R $82. 00
21-22 $82. 00
RI VERVI C001 Rivera, Victor 12182021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/18/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
RI VERVI C001 Rivera, Victor 12232021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/23/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 3 $216. 00
ROBI NCHROOO Robi nson, Chri st opher Hl S686 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursenent B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $750. 00
21-22 $750. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $750. 00
ROLLI NG 001 Rolling Meadows Hi gh School Speech Team 0000000000 dk011122 AP RVHS Speech Entry Fee H 01/06/2022 01/11/2022 R $150. 00
21-22 108647 $150. 00




3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 32
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $150. 00
RUEFFM KOOO Rueffer, M ke 12112021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys V B 12/11/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $67. 00
SAFEWAY 000 Safeway Transportation Services Co 102443 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Spec Ed Trnspt DEC 21 B 12/31/2021 01/20/2022 R $36, 494. 00
21-22 $36, 494. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $36, 494. 00
SAWCHDANOOO Sawchuk, Dan 01042022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls JV B 01/04/2022 01/20/2022 R $53. 00
21-22 $53. 00
SAWCHDANOOO Sawchuk, Dan 12072021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls JV2/JV2B B 12/07/2021 01/20/2022 R $106. 00
21-22 $1%100
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $159. 00
SCHAUMBUOOO Schaumburg Hi gh School BVB SCHAUVBURG 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT BOYS VOLLEYBALL B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $300. 00
VARSI TY ENTRY SCHAUMBURG
INVITE 4 22 22
21-22 $300. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $300. 00
SCHVAW LO00O Schradeke, W liam Hl S641 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursenment B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $750. 00
21-22 $750. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $750. 00
SCHM TYLOOO Schmi dt, Tyler | D 26640 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Car eer Crossroads B 01/12/2022 01/20/2022 R $200. 00
21-22 $200. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 33
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $200. 00
SCHOOL HOO01 School Heal th Corporation 4009411-00 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP AED Suppl i es B 01/10/2022 01/20/2022 R $604. 89
21-22 $604. 89
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $604. 89
SCHUFBI LO00 Schufreider, Bill 12132021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys Frsh A/B B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $106. 00
21-22 $106. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $106. 00
SCHURI N&OOO Schuring & Schuri ng, Dec 21 18182 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP M1k Delivery B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $2, 846. 54
21-22 $2, 846. 54
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $2, 846. 54
42
SECTI ON 000 Section 8 Doors and Hardware |nc 9445 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 3 Hol | ow Metal Franes B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $675. 00
21-22 $675. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $675. 00
SEDOL 001 Sedol 22CONTR. 2 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21-22 Contractual Billing B 12/10/2021 01/20/2022 R $20, 255. 00
21-22 $20, 255. 00
SEDOL 001 Sedol 22PPT2 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21-22 PRV Pl acenent B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $1, 265. 00
21-22 $1, 265. 00
SEDOL 001 Sedol 32805 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tuition DEC 21 B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $5, 091. 20
21-22 $5, 091. 20
SEDOL 001 Sedol Audi ol ogi cal 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Audi ol ogi cal SRVC B 12/09/2021 01/20/2022 R $54. 50
21-22 $54. 50
SEDOL 001 Sedol FY22 O&M Enrol | ment 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21-22 O&M Assessnent Billing B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $24, 808. 00
21-22 $24, 808. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 34
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 5 $51, 473. 70
SEFCI CHROOO Sefcik, Christine JAN 2022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP M sc Expense Rei mburse B 01/01/2022 01/20/2022 R $450. 00
21-22 $450. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $450. 00
SHORELI NOOO Shor el i ne Graphics 5814 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 500 6X9 Envel opes B 12/06/2021 01/20/2022 R $105. 40
21-22 $105. 40
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $105. 40
SLEVI M €000 Sl evin, M chael 12032021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Westling Boys V B 12/03/2021 01/20/2022 R $109. 00
21-22 $109. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $109. 00
43
SMOK PETO00 Snok, Pete 12222021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $67. 00
SONI HAROOO Soni, Harshangkumar 1D 27416 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Refund - 1/2 Registration B 01/07/2022 01/20/2022 R $62. 50
21-22 $62. 50
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $62. 50
SQUTH SI 000 South Side Control Supply Co S100738396. 001 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/02/2021 01/20/2022 R $262. 48
21-22 $262. 48
SQUTH SI 000 South Side Control Supply Co S100739037. 001 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/08/2021 01/20/2022 R $92. 39
21-22 $92. 39
SQUTH SI 000 South Side Control Supply Co S100739146. 001 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/07/2021 01/20/2022 R $588. 53
21-22 $588. 53



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 35
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 3 $943. 40
SPECTRUMD04 Spectrum Center |nc. 4138324 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tui ti on NOV21 B 12/08/2021 01/20/2022 R $4,041. 41
21-22 $4, 041. 41
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $4, 041. 41
STEEBDALOOO St eeber, Dale 01082022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls JV B 01/08/ 2022 01/20/2022 R $53. 00
21-22 $53. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $53. 00
STEVENSQ000 St evenson High School BTRK STEVENSON 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT BOYS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $300. 00
STEVENSON | NVI TE 4 14 22
21-22 $300. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $3%)400
STUMPCAROOO Stunp, Carrie 12142021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei mburse G ft Cards B 12/14/2021 01/20/2022 R $30. 00
21-22 $30. 00
STUMPCAROOO Stunp, Carrie LI S969 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 21/ 22 Tuition Rei mbursenent B 01/05/2022 01/20/2022 R $2, 550. 00
21-22 $2, 550. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $2, 580. 00
SWOPEELLOOO Swopes, Ellis 12302021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Westling Boys JV2 B 12/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $139. 00
21-22 $139. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $139. 00
TAYLODAVOOO Tayl or, David 12112021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys Soph B 12/11/2021 01/20/2022 R $53. 00
21-22 $53. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $53. 00
TECHNOLO000 Technol ogy Canpus Decenber 2021-2022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP DEC 21 Tuition B 12/15/2021 01/20/2022 R $37, 836. 26



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 36

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM

VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LQ S |INV DATE DUE DATE C NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOMLQOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON FY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR | NVO CE AMOUNT

TECHNOLCQO00O Technol ogy Canpus Decenber 2021-2022 *okk ok ok k CONTI NUED* * * * * *
21-22 $37, 836. 26
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 1 $37, 836. 26
THE HOVEOO1 The Home Depot Pro 656040847 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/02/2021 01/20/2022 R $183. 36
21-22 $183. 36
THE HOVEOO1 The Home Depot Pro 656318524 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/03/2021 01/20/2022 R $652. 80
21-22 $652. 80
THE HOVEOO1 The Home Depot Pro 657975686 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $254. 24
21-22 $254. 24
THE HOVEOO1 The Home Depot Pro 657975694 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $537. 90
21-22 $537. 90

45

THE HOVEOO1 The Home Depot Pro 659248223 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $145. 80
21-22 $145. 80
THE HOVEOO1 The Home Depot Pro 659744650 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $90. 60
21-22 $90. 60
THE HOVEOO1 The Home Depot Pro 661202135 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 01/04/2022 01/20/2022 R $1, 616. 56
21-22 $1, 616. 56
THE HOVEOO1 The Home Depot Pro 661202143 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 01/04/2022 01/20/2022 R $131. 30
21-22 $131. 30
NUMBER OF | NVO CES: 8 $3, 612. 56
THE HOPEOOO The Hope School SI NV000832 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tution/ Transport NOV21 B 11/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $8, 263. 86
21-22 $8, 263. 86
THE HOPEOOO The Hope School SI NV000891 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Room & Board NOvV21 B 11/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $14, 870. 70

21-22 $14, 870. 70



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 37

05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
THE HOPEOOO The Hope School SI NV001038 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tuition/ Trnsprt DEC21 B 12/31/2021 01/20/2022 R $6, 959. 04
21-22 $6, 959. 04
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 3 $30, 093. 60
THE OMNI 000 The Omi G oup 2201-7100 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Conpl i ance Oversi ght B 01/01/2022 01/20/2022 R $4.50
21-22 $4. 50
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $4.50
TOPLI NE 000 TOPLI NE TRANSPORTATI ON CO. 101595 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Spec Ed Transport DEC21 B 12/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $36, 258. 00
21-22 $36, 258. 00
TOPLI NE 000 TOPLI NE TRANSPORTATI ON CO. 101596 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Spec Ed Transport DEC21 B 12/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $11, 250. 00
21-22 $11, 250. 00
TOPLI NE 000 TOPLI NE TRANSPORTATI ON CO. 101597 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Homel ess Trnspt DEC21 B 12/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $9, 256500
21-22 $9, 256. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 3 $56, 764. 00
TRANE 000 Trane 11264671 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 11/29/2021 01/20/2022 R $604. 58
21-22 $604. 58
TRANE 000 Trane 11303004 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/06/2021 01/20/2022 R $1, 492. 84
21-22 $1, 492. 84
TRANE 000 Trane 11318176 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bldg & Gnds Credit B 12/08/2021 01/20/2022 R $-604. 58
21-22 $-604. 58
TRANE 000 Trane 11318223 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/08/2021 01/20/2022 R $557. 22
21-22 $557. 22
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 4 $2, 050. 06

TREWADAVOOO Trewartha, David 01082022 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Boys V B 01/08/2022 01/20/2022 R $82. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 38
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM

VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT

TREWADAVO0O Trewartha, David 01082022 ok %ok kox CONTI NUED * * % * *
21-22 $82. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $82. 00
ULINE 001 Uine 142000627 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/01/2021 01/20/2022 R $280. 89
21-22 $280. 89
ULINE 001 Uine 142168006 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/03/2021 01/20/2022 R $280. 49
21-22 $280. 49
ULINE 001 Uine 142303158 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Bl dg & Grnds Supply B 12/07/2021 01/20/2022 R $619. 00
21-22 $619. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 3 $1, 180. 38
VALLEY RO0O0 Valley Ridge Golf Course 0201 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Boys CGol f Dues & Fees B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $2, 7%700
21-22 $2, 782. 00
VALLEY RO0O0 Valley Ridge Golf Course 0202 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Grls Golf Dues & Fees B 12/13/2021 01/20/2022 R $2, 652. 00
21-22 $2, 652. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 2 $5, 434. 00
VERI ZON 000 VERI ZON W RELESS 9894391921 0000000000 dk121621 AP 942086720- 0001 110621- 120521 H 12/05/2021 12/16/2021 R $924. 24
21-22 108625 $924. 24
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $924. 24
VERSI ON2000 VERSI ON2 HOSTI NG 10158 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Veeam Backup B 01/01/2022 01/20/2022 R $775. 00
21-22 $775. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $775. 00
VI LLAGE 016 Village Of Fox Lake 101621- 121521 0000000000 dk122121 AP Vit er / Sewer H 12/16/2021 12/21/2021 R $4, 555. 89
21-22 108628 $4, 555. 89



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 39
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $4, 555. 89
VI RTOO S000 Virtoo Services LLC 15676 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Service Ticket 53893 B 01/03/2022 01/20/2022 R $195. 00
21-22 $195. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $195. 00
VI RTUAL 001 Virtual Connections Acadeny 3676 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Tui ti on DEC21 B 12/22/2021 01/20/2022 R $4,794.72
21-22 $4,794. 72
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $4,794.72
VI SION S000 Vision Service Plan IL (VSP) 813923701 0000000000 dk122921 AP Vi si on Premi um JAN2022 H 12/17/2021 12/29/2021 R $567. 35
21-22 108632 $567. 35
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $567. 35
48
WARD' S 001 Ward's 8806937516 0032200028 DKJAN22 AP Labs Supplies for Bio final F B 12/07/2021 01/20/2022 R $199. 99
exam
21-22 $199. 99
NUMBER CF | NvVO CES: 1 $199. 99
WARREN TOO1 Warren Townshi p Hi gh School -O plai 2022 FBLA Conf Fees 0000000000 dk122121 AP 2022 FBLA Nrth Conf Fees H 12/16/2021 12/21/2021 R $360. 00
21-22 108629 $360. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $360. 00
WARREN T002 Warren Townshi p H gh School BVB WARREN | NVI TES ~ 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT BOYS VOLLEYBALL B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $830. 00
VARI STY ENTRY FEE WARREN
INVITE 4 8 22 GRANT BOYS
VOLLEYBALL JV ENTRY FEE
WARREN | NVI TE 4 16 22 GRANT
BOYS VOLLEYBALL FR ENTRY
FEE WARREN | NVI TE 4 30 22
21-22 $830. 00



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 40
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $830. 00
WASSEBRUO0O0 Wasser, Bruce 12112021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-bal | Boys Frsh A&B B 12/11/2021 01/20/2022 R $106. 00
21-22 $106. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $106. 00
WAUKEGANOO6 Waukegan Hi gh School GSOC WAUK SHOWCASE 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT VARSI TY G RLS SOCCER B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $325. 00
ENTRY FEE WAUKEGAN SHOWCASE
4 23 22
21-22 $325. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $325. 00
WAUKEGANOO7 Waukegan Safe & Lock Ltd. 226542 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP 15 Keys B 11/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $50. 00
21-22 $50. 00
49
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $50. 00
VIEI SEKEVO00 Wi senberger, Kevin 12092012 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Westling V,JVv2, JV B 12/09/2021 01/20/2022 R $101. 00
21-22 $101. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $101. 00
VEX BANKOOO WEX BANK 76684042 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Fuel Purchases B 12/16/2021 01/20/2022 M $750. 38
21-22 108626 $750. 38
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $750. 38
WHALETRCO00 Whal en, Troy 12182021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP B-ball Grls V B 12/18/2021 01/20/2022 R $67. 00
21-22 $67. 00
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $67. 00
WHEEL|I N&003 Wheel i ng Hi gh School GTRK WHEELI NG 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP GRANT G RLS TRACK ENTRY FEE B 12/20/2021 01/20/2022 R $290. 00

WHEELI NG I NVI TE 2 26 22



3APRPTO1. P 68-4 Grant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 13/ 22 Page: 41
05. 21. 10. 00. 00 AP | nvoi ce Listing Report 1:43 PM
VEN- KEY VENDOR NAME INVO CE # PO NUMBER BATCH BANK  DESCRI PTI ON LO S INv DATE DUE DATE (o] NET AMOUNT
ACH VO D DOWNLOAD DI SCOUNT DESCRI PTI ON DI SC AMI  ADJUSTMENT DESCRI PTI ON EY ADJ AMI CHECK NBR I NVO CE AMOUNT
WHEEL|I N&003 Wheel i ng Hi gh School GTRK WHEELI NG ok %ok kox CONTI NUED * * % * *
21-22 $290. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $290. 00
ZAAGVBREOOO Zaagman, Brenna I D 26379 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Career Crossroads B 01/12/2022 01/20/2022 R $50. 00
21-22 $50. 00
NUMBER CF | NVO CES: 1 $50. 00
ZI ELI KATO0O Zielinski, Katherine 12182021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Rei mburse PBI S cof fee B 01/03/2022 01/20/2022 R $34. 59
21-22 $34. 59
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $34. 59
ZUNKEPAU0O0O Zunkel , Paul 12302021 0000000000 DKJAN22 AP Westling Boys JV2 B 12/30/2021 01/20/2022 R $139. 00
21-22 $1(§000
NUMBER CF | NvO CES: 1 $139. 00
TOTAL NUMBER OF BATCH | NVO CES: 277 $772,701. 87
TOTAL NUMBER OF HI STORY | NVO CES: 53 $78, 156. 23
327 COWUTER CHECK | NvOl CES $790, 099. 72
3 MANUAL CHECK | NvOl CES $60, 758. 38
TOTAL | NVO CES: 330 $850, 858. 10
BANK TOTALS: BANK BANK ACCOUNT # I N\vO CE AMOUNT NET AMOUNT
AP **A000 1120 0000 00 000000 $850, 858. 10 $850, 858. 10

LI QUI DATI ON STATUS (LQ CODE LEGEND:
LI QUI DATI ON PENDING C = CLOSED PO NOT RECEI VI NG
LIQU DATION F = FULL LI QUI DATI ON

L
P = PARTI AL

BLANK = NO LI QUI DATI ON

Rk Ik R S I R I

End of

report

Rk R I O O R Rk



3frbudl2.p 76-4 G ant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 12/ 22 Page: 1
05. 21. 10. 00. 06 BCE REVENUE SUMVARY BY FUND (Date: 12/2021) 1: 55 PM
2021-22 Decenmber 2021-22 2021- 22 2021- 22 2021- 22
FD SOURCE ANNUAL BUDGET _MONTHLY ACTIVITY FYTD ACTIVI TY BALANCE FYTD %
10 EDUCATI ON FUND
10 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 17, 093, 386. 00 192, 445. 48 8,562, 998. 86 8,530, 387. 14 50. 10
10 FLOW THROUGH 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
10 STATE SOURCES 18, 465, 295. 00 487, 402. 50 2,516, 156. 37 15, 949, 138. 63 13. 63
10 FEDERAL SOURCES 3,011, 508. 00 230, 414. 44 889, 668. 56 2,121, 839. 44 29.54
10 TRANSFERS 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
10 EDUCATI ON FUND 38,570, 189. 00 910, 262. 42 11, 968, 823. 79 26, 601, 365. 21 31.03
20 OPERATI ONS & MAI NTENANCE FUND
20 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 4,229, 025. 00 35,913. 77 2,036, 708. 99 2,192, 316.01 48. 16
20 STATE SOURCES 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
20 FEDERAL SOURCES 81, 286. 00 0. 00 0. 00 81, 286. 00 0. 00
20 TRANSFERS 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
20 OPERATI ONS & MAI NTENANCE F 4,310, 311. 00 35,913. 77 2,036, 708. 99 2,273,602.01 47.25
30 DEBT SERVI CE FUND
30 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
30 TRANSFERS 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
30 DEBT SERVI CE FUND 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
40 TRANSPORTATI ON' FUND
40 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 1,193, 264. 00 8,242.01 567, 732. 39 625, 531. 61 47.58
40 STATE SOURCES 810, 000. 00 0. 00 536, 590. 42 273, 409. 58 66. 25
40 TRANSFERS 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
40 TRANSPORTATI ON' FUND 2,003, 264. 00 8,242.01 1,104, 322.81 898, 941. 19 55.13
50 I.MR F./SOCI AL SECURI TY FUND
50 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 832, 707. 00 5, 641. 55 388, 627. 64 444, 079. 36 46. 67
50 I.MR F./SOCI AL SECURITY F 832, 707. 00 5,641.55 388, 627. 64 444, 079. 36 46. 67
60 CAPI TAL PROJECTS FUND
60 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
60 TRANSFERS 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
60 CAPI TAL PRQJIECTS FUND 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
70 WORKI NG CASH FUND
70 REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 292, 450. 00 2,060. 04 140, 980. 21 151, 469. 79 48. 21
70 WORKI NG CASH FUND 292, 450. 00 2, 060. 04 140, 980. 21 151, 469. 79 48.21
Grand Revenue Total s 46, 008, 921. 00 962, 1%_)5:)[ 79 15, 639, 463. 44 30, 369, 457. 56 33.99

Nunber of Accounts: 108



3frbudl2.p 76-4 G ant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 12/ 22 Page: 1
05. 21. 10. 00. 06 BCE EXPENDI TURE SUMVARY BY FUND (Date: 12/2021) 10: 29 AM
2021-22 Decenmber 2021-22 2021- 22 2021-22  2021-22
FD OBJ OBJ ANNUAL BUDGET _MONTHLY ACTIVITY FYTD ACTIVITY BALANCE FY %
10 EDUCATI ON FUND
10 1--- SALARIES 15, 582, 709. 00 1, 388, 544. 66 8,371,934.18 7,814, 654. 55 53.73
10 2--- BENEFITS 3, 338, 652. 00 43, 548. 17 1, 681, 229. 86 1, 723, 160. 60 50. 36
10 3--- PURCHASED SERVI CES 2,661, 735. 00 109, 894. 65 1, 084, 304. 38 1, 584, 835. 52 40.74
10 4--- SUPPLIES 1, 869, 309. 00 104, 569. 53 820, 071. 50 724, 758. 08 43. 87
10 5--- CAPITAL QUTLAY 631, 943. 00 -2,176. 10 191, 326. 59 225,508. 02 30. 28
10 6--- OTHER OBJECTS 2, 316, 415. 00 167, 853. 10 1,267, 333.73 1, 049, 456. 27 54.71
10 7--- NON- CAP EQUI PMENT 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00
10 8--- TUTION 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00
10 ---- EDUCATI ON FUND 26, 400, 763. 00 1,812,234.01 13, 416, 200. 24 13,122, 373. 04 50. 82
20 OPERATI ONS & MAI NTENANCE FUND
20 1--- SALARI ES 1,187, 628. 00 87, 238. 36 591, 998. 94 643, 584. 12 49. 85
20 2--- BENEFITS 209, 000. 00 15, 469. 63 97, 264. 10 112, 121. 48 46. 54
20 3--- PURCHASED SERVI CES 1, 144, 470. 00 39, 392. 03 508, 091. 30 642, 291. 88 44. 40
20 4--- SUPPLIES 947, 000. 00 27,612. 95 349, 195. 44 593, 587. 82 36. 87
20 5--- CAPI TAL QUTLAY 820, 613. 00 676, 675. 00 936, 591. 00 - 144, 695. 00 114.13
20 6--- OTHER OBJECTS 1, 600. 00 0. 00 243. 00 1, 600. 00 15.19
20 7--- NON- CAP EQUI PMENT 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00
20 ---- OPERATI ONS & MAI NTENANCE FUND 4,310, 311. 00 846, 387. 97 2,483, 383.78 1, 848, 490. 30 57.61
30 DEBT SERVI CE FUND
30 6--- OTHER OBJECTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
30 7--- NON CAP EQUI PMENT 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0.00
30 ---- DEBT SERVI CE FUND 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0.00
40 TRANSPORTATI ON' FUND
40 1--- SALARI ES 613, 000. 00 56, 036. 43 344, 266. 58 301, 983. 42 56. 16
40 2--- BENEFITS 163, 548. 00 14, 515. 43 84, 130. 39 79, 417. 61 51. 44
40 3--- PURCHASED SERVI CES 1, 685, 778. 00 162, 146. 80 1, 006, 453. 30 679, 324. 70 59.70
40 4--- SUPPLIES 114, 200. 00 8,582. 89 54, 191. 40 60, 014. 59 47.45
40 5--- CAPI TAL QUTLAY 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00
40 6--- OTHER OBJECTS 100. 00 0. 00 60. 00 40. 00 60. 00
40 7--- NON- CAP EQUI PMVENT 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00
40 ---- TRANSPORTATI ON FUND 2,576, 626. 00 241, 281. 55 1, 489, 101. 67 1, 120, 780. 32 57.79
50 I.MR F./SOCI AL SECURI TY FUND
50 2--- BENEFITS 849, 322. 00 72,732.41 511, 016. 66 374, 720. 85 60. 17
50 ---- |.MR F./SOCI AL SECURI TY FUND 849, 322. 00 72,732.41 511, 016. 66 374, 720. 85 60. 17
60 CAPI TAL PROJECTS FUND
60 5--- CAPI TAL QUTLAY 530, 165. 00 0. 00 530, 165. 00 0.00 100. 00
60 7--- NON- CAP EQUI PMVENT 0. 00 52 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0.00
60 ---- CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 530, 165. 00 0. 00 530, 165. 00 0. 00 100. 00



3frbudl2.p 76-4 G ant Community Hi gh School District 124 01/ 12/ 22 Page: 2

05. 21. 10. 00. 06 BCE EXPENDI TURE SUMVARY BY FUND (Date: 12/2021) 10: 29 AM
2021-22 Decenmber 2021-22 2021- 22 2021-22  2021-22
FD OBJ OBJ ANNUAL BUDGET _MONTHLY ACTIVITY FYTD ACTIVI TY BALANCE FY %

70 WORKI NG CASH FUND

70 6--- OTHER OBJECTS 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
70 7--- NON- CAP EQUI PMENT 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00
70 ---- WORKI NG CASH FUND 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Grand Expense Total s 34, 667, 187. 00 2,972,635.94 18, 429, 867. 35 16, 466, 364. 51 53. 16

Nunber of Accounts: 1138

Rk Ik R R I I I

End Of report Rk R b O O R Rk kO

53



E.AV.

TOTAL EXTENSION

GRANT COMM. HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT #124 PROPERTY TAX DISTRIBUTION 2020

951,966,797

22,497,260.17

RATES 1.696 0.432 0.121 0.035 0.043 0.030 0.000 0.006
% OF TOTAL DISTRIBUTION 71.79% 18.29% 5.14% 1.47% 1.80% 1.27% 0.00%  0.24%
DATE AMOUNT % EDUCATION 0&M TRANS. IMRF FICA w.C. B&!l  SEDOL
05/20/21 977,182.14 4.34%  701,485.15 178,760.69  50,191.79 14,400.71 17,591.63  12,402.71 000 2,349.46
06/03/21 1,960,770.02 8.72%  1,407,568.77 358,693.21  100,712.61 28,895.81 35,298.57  24,886.72 000 4,714.33
06/17/21 5,738,713.65 25.51% 4,119,623.42  1,049,810.83  294,762.17 84,571.26 103,310.64  72,837.59 000 13,797.74
06/30/21 2,057,837.55 9.15% 1,477,250.18 376,450.24  105,698.37 30,326.29 37,046.02 26,118.73 000 4,947.71
07/15/21 489,065.92 2.17%  351,083.46 89,467.21  25,120.29 7,207.35 8,804.36  6,207.38 000 1,175.87
07/29/21 199,467.95 0.89%  143,191.12 36,489.64  10,245.43 2,939.55 3,590.90  2,531.71 000  479.59
08/26/21 1,060,085.10 4.71%  760,998.31 193,926.53  54,450.01 15,622.44 19,084.08 13,454.94 000 2,548.79
09/09/21 2,077,590.58 9.23%  1,491,430.19 380,063.76  106,712.96 30,617.39 37,401.62  26,369.45 000 4,995.21
09/23/21 4,689,602.76 20.85%  3,366,503.11 857,891.87  240,875.84 69,110.54 84,424.12 59,521.94 000 11,275.34
10/22/21 2,082,267.74 9.26%  1,494,787.76 380,919.38  106,953.20 30,686.32 37,485.82  26,428.81 0.00 5,006.45
11/18/21 281,589.67 1.25%  202,143.45 51,512.57  14,463.52 4,149.78 5069.29  3,574.03 000  677.03
12/16/21 160,175.75 0.71%  114,984.61 29,301.73 8,227.24 2,360.51 2,883.55  2,033.00 000  385.11

0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Special 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTALS  21,774,348.83 96.8% 15631,049.53  3,983,287.65 1,118,413.42 320,887.95 391,990.61 276,367.02 0.00 52,352.64

(without int.)

54



GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 124

INVESTMENT SCHEDULE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

PMA FINANCIAL NETWORK, INC.

10687-101
Trans. Date Date
No. Placed Matures |Type |Location Cost Basis Yield EDUC BLDG B&l TRANS IMRF/FICA WORK CSH INT. EST.
287177 |01/13/21 |01/13/22 |CD | Veritex Community Bank 249,800.00 | 0.05 249,800.00 126.15
287178 |01/13/21 |01/13/22 |CD  |GBC International Bank 249,800.00 | 0.05 249,800.00 126.15
287179 |01/13/21 |01/13/22 |CD  |Customers Bank 2,000,000.00 | 0.05 2,000,000.00 1,014.93
289266 |04/15/21 |04/18/22 |CD  |Western Alliance Bank/T| 249,700.00 | 0.10 249,700.00 266.49
289267 |04/15/21 |04/18/22 |CD  |Royal Business Bank 249,800.00 | 0.05 249,800.00 127.19
289268 |04/15/21 |04/18/22 |CD  |First Internet Bank of Ind 249,800.00 | 0.05 249,800.00 122.59
292126 |10/28/21 |10/28/22 |CD  |Senvisfirst Bank 249,700.00 | 0.05 200,000.00 49,700.00 124.85
292127 |10/28/21 |10/28/22 |cD  |CIBC Bank USA/Private 249,700.00 | 0.05 99,400.00 100,000.00 50,300.00 128.53
292128 [10/28/21 |10/28/22 |CD  |New Omni Bank, NA 249,800.00 | 0.05 149,800.00 100,000.00 124.90
49433  |10/28/21 |05/31/23 |TNOTE|US Treasury 1,499,007.73 | 0.13 1,499,007.73 769.47
49435  |10/28/21 |10/31/24 |TNOTE|US Treasury 1,984,269.80 | 0.61 1,984,269.80 14,261.13
49434 |11/01/21 |10/31/23 |TNOTE|US Treasury 1,499,761.21 | 0.35 1,499,761.21 15.53
49431 |11/01/21 |11/01/22 |DTC |Israel Discount Bk of NY]| 249,248.88 | 0.05 249,248.88 248.88
292169 |11/01/21 |01/04/22 |ISDLAF Term Series 5,000,000.00 | 0.04 4,000,000.00 | 1,000,000.00 350.69
49428 |11/03/21 |11/04/24 |DTC |Goldman Sachs Bank U; 249,443.64 | 0.69 249,443.64 443.64
49430 |11/01/83 |11/03/22 |DTC |BankUnited NA 249,248.88 | 0.05 249,248.88 248.88
49432 |11/04/21 |11/03/22 |DTC |Safra National Bank 249,248.19 | 0.05 219,416.57 29,831.62 248.19
49429 [11/03/21 |11/04/24 |DTC |UBS Bank USA 249,074.04 | 0.69 100,000.00 114,559.81 34,514.23 74.04
Subtotal Investments 15,227,402.37 10,232,077.53 | 1,300,000.00 0.00 | 1,317,609.09 244,391.43 | 2,133,324.32
12/31/21 |[MMA |ISDLAF 837,786.11 785,775.80 29,301.73 0.00 8,227.24 8,874.31 5,607.03
12/31/21 |[MMA |ISDMAX 17,824,572.61 14,661,865.39 7,226.82 0.00 692,482.33 752,953.88 | 1,710,044.19
Total 33,889,761.08 25,679,718.72 | 1,336,528.55 0.00 | 2,018,318.66 |1,006,219.61 | 3,848,975.54

55




Consent Agenda

Quarterly list of authorized depositories, investment managers, dealers and
brokers**

In accordance with the District Investment Policy, | am providing you with a list of
authorized depositories, investment managers, dealers and brokers. The
following institutions have on file with the District an audited financial statement,
a registration certificate with the NASD and a published credit rating when
applicable. This list must be reviewed and approved by the Board quarterly.

GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL
LIST OF AUTHORIZED DEPOSITORIES, INVESTMENT MANAGERS,
DEALERS & BROKERS

1. lllinois School District Liquid Asset Fund Plus
PMA Financial Network, Inc./ PMA Secuirities, Inc.
495 North Commons Drive, Suite 104
Aurora, lllinois 60504

2. PMA Financial Network, Inc. / PMA Securities, Inc.
495 North Commons Drive, Suite 104
Aurora, lllinois 60504

3. Harris Bank
1310 South Route 12
Fox Lake, lllinois 60020

56



Heli Viramgami

The Grant Community High School January Student of the Month is
senior Heli Viramgami, daughter of Alpesh and Nandita Viramgami
of Round Lake.

Heli's academic achievements include induction into the National
Honor Society during her sophomore year, earning her place on Honor
Roll each semester, being named as an AP Scholar with Honor, she has
taken 13 AP courses through senior year, and scored 1540 on the SAT.
She was selected for the NLCC Leadership Conference, was named as
an Illinois State Scholar, and she holds a remarkable 4.94/4.00 GPA.

Her extracurricular activities include Math Team earning a 5t place
for geometry at Regionals and a State Qualifier, 9t place for algebra 2
at Regionals and a State Qualifier; FBLA-6'" place at Regionals, 3"
place at State, Nationals Qualifier for personal finance; Student
Council-serving as Treasurer for 2 years; Chamber Singers for 3 years,
serving as assistant secretary, uniform manager, soprano section
leader, and part of the Choir Leadership Team; and Soccer each year.

Heli has participated in numerous community service events through
NHS such as pop-up food banks, graduation assistance, materials
check-out, Fox Lake community events: Cardboard Boat Race,
Holiday Crafts Service, and the Pumpkin Jubilee. She is a volunteer
with the Round Lake Area Public Library. She sings with the Chamber
Singers at Fox Lake community events and she assists her peers as a
Math Lab Tutor.

In her spare time, Heli enjoys puzzles, music, watching horror movies,
and going for bike rides. She likes learning different programing
languages and has won 3"¢ place for We-Connect-the-Dots code-athon
by coding a website that presented an innovative method for recycling
plastic water bottles into 3D printing filament. She has earned a black
belt in Shotokan Karate, as a two-time state champion and four-time
nationals’ qualifier.

Her plans for the future include earning a degree in Computer Science.
She hopes to attend either the University of Illinois at Urbana-
Champaign, Purdue University, 0r5$he University of Michigan.



in Education
AWARD

Awarded to: % @W g

Reason Chosen: Jeff Durlak is extremely deserving of the Excellence in Education Award. Jeff is a consummate professional that exhibits all the
characteristics prominent in an excellent 21stcentury educator. First and foremost, Jeff maintains exceptional rapport with his students. His even disposition
enables him to handle all varieties of student personalities with ease. He has the impressive ability to be exceptionally patient with dysregulated students but
he is still continually looking to challenge motivated students that need an extra push. Moreover, he is the perfect math lab supervisor because of his breadth
of math knowledge and because of his kind and approachable personality. As the head cross country coach and an assistant softball coach, Jeff has forged
lasting relationships with students beyond the classroom and has helped them achieve success beyond high school.

Not only does Jeff connect well with students, but he has also developed strong friendships with his coworkers. He is as great of a “PL-Teammate” as
anyone could possibly be because he can both take the lead on projects and show support for any team initiative. His listening skills and adaptability in lesson
planning have been so helpful, especially in the midst of a pandemic. In the math department, Jeff is known for his prowess with Partners 4 Results and
Formative, and he is always willing to give time to show others how to use their features. He is an organized planner with excellent time management,
especially considering the scope of some of the extracurricular events he directs as a head coach, like the Jim Taylor Invite. Through all of these ways, day in
and day out, Jeff demonstrates both his supportiveness and leadership.

It is a pleasure to work with Jeff, and both students and staff are lucky to have him here at Grant. He is a solid teammate and an amazing teacher who
deserves to be recognized with the Excellence in Education Award.

%%ﬂ'é[/}}w % %/?%’, %;/ @ ﬂ/@m/ %Aimrﬂ

Superintendent Principal



2021 FALL ATHLETIC
ACCOMPLISHMENTS

JANUARY 20. 2022

BOARD OF EDUCATION PRESENTATION



FALL PARTICIPATION

485 ATHLETES REGISTERED FOR FALL SPORTS

THROUGH THE TRYOUT PROCESS,
17 ATHLETES WERE CUT 60
(38 FROM VOLLEYBALL)
RESULTING IN

408 ROSTERED FALL ATHLETES




FALL SPORTS, LEVELS & PARTICIPANTS

Sideline Cheer - Varsity and JV — 48 participants

Cross Country - Boys and Girls — Varsity and JV — 48 participants
Sideline Dance - Varsity and JV — 32 participants

Football — Varsity, Frosh/Soph, Frosh/Soph B — 108 participants
Boys Golf — Varsity and JV — 19 participants

Girls Golf — Varsity and JV — 12 participants o
Boys Soccer — Varsity and JV — 48 participants

Girls Tennis — Varsity and JV — 28 participants

Girls Volleyball — Varsity, JV, Sophomore, Fr A, Fr B - 65
participants




GRADE POINT AVERAGE BY SPORT

Sideline Cheer — 3.44
Cross Country — 3.79
Sideline Dance - 3.90
Football - 2.75

Boys Golf - 3.60

Girls Golf - 4.43

Boys Soccer — 3.30
Girls Tennis — 3.95
Girls Volleyball - 3.93

Average Fall GPA - 3.70

62




ACADEMIC ACCOLADES BY SPORT

Northern Lake County Conference Academic

All — Conference Athletes
Criteria:

A. Sophomore, Junior or Senior

B. Varsity Athlete

C. Cumulative GPA of 3.5 or higher

89 Student Athletes earned this award
Sideline Cheer - 13

Boys Cross Country — 5

Girls Cross Country — 5 63
Sideline Dance - 16

Football - 11

Boys Golf - 2

Girls Golf - 4

Boys Soccer — 10

Girls Tennis - 12

Girls Volleyball - 11




ACADEMIC ACCOLADES CONTINUED

Grant Community High School Scholar Athlete

Criteria:
A. 3.0 GPA or higher

199 student athletes received this award
Sideline Cheer - 23

Boys Cross Country — 14

Girls Cross Country — 15 64
Sideline Dance - 22

Football — 29

Boys Golf — 12

Girls Golf -8

Boys Soccer - 16

Girls Tennis - 19

Girls Volleyball - 41




FALL ATHLETIC ACCOMPLISHMENTS

NORTHERN LAKE COUNTY ALL CONFERENCE
ATHLETES

Boys Cross Country — Charlie Hamann, Dane Glover, Memphis
Roman

Girls Cross Country — Aly Negovetich, Brianna Osman, Laura
Bishop

Football — Alex Art, Bradley Berg, Nick Blencoe, Blake Cook, Aléx
Gomez, Bryton Reynolds

Boys Golf — Cameron Finlayson, Zeven Linbo, Kyle Splitt

Girls Golf — Savannah Dickson, Cara Pederson, Abbi Themanson
Boys Soccer — Tony Cruz, Colin Todd

Girls Volleyball — Taylor Fruehling, Cecelia Palladino. Cadence
Wodrich

®



FALL ATHLETIC ACCOMPLISHMENTS

= Girls Cross Country — Aly Negovetich placed second at
the IHSA Girls State Cross Country 3A Championship

= Girls Tennis — Eli Rasborschek and Gianna Vavalle our
doubles team qualified for the IHSA State Tennis
Tournament

= Cameron Finlayson set a new nine hole school record
with a 33 at Thunderhawk

= The Girls Golf Team qualified the for the IHSA
Sectional for the first time in school history

= The Boys and Girls Cross Country Teams volunteered
at the Bonnie Strong 5K at the Bulldog Athletic complex

®



Questions?

Comments?

GO BULLDOGS!

Thank you for your time!




Fall 2021 Student Activities Report

Thank you to Cheryl Trevithick for assisting with setting up, collecting, organizing, and analyzing
all student participation data for Fall 2021.

Overall Participation Information

o We had 41 active clubs running in the Fall 2021 semester
= New Clubs for Fall 2021: No New Pilots for 2021-2022
* (Clubs Inactive in Fall 2021: Bulldog Strong, Computer Science Club, Lacrosse
Club, Robotics Club, Spanish Club, and Woodworking Club

o Co-Curricular Rosters
= 1,051/1,818 = 57.8% of the student body attended at least 1 co-curricular
meeting/event
" 626/1,051 students successfully attended 50% of club meetings/activities
e 59.6% of participating students were deemed active participants

o Current GCHS Students (All Levels)

* 530 unique students participated in Fall 2021 co-curricular activities
= 530/1,818 = 29.2% of all students were involved in Activities

Qutstanding Student Participation in Activities

o Peyton Baisden (7)
= FBLA, Fall Play, Marching Band, National Honor Society, Pep Band, Senior
Class Council, and Speech Team

o Lilianna Janicki (7)
* Chess Team, FCCLA, Fall Play, Jazz Ensemble, Marching Band, National Honor
Society, and Pep Band

o Gabriel Walton (7)

» Academic Team, Chess Team, FBLA, Math Team, National Honor Society,
Senior Class Council, and Student Council

68



Detailed Club Participation- Fall 2021

Name of Co-Curricular Club or Activity Total Participants | Active Participants | 50%+ Attendance

Academic Team 9 7 78%
American Sign Language 24 14 58%
Anime Club 61 13 21%
Anthem Singers 14 11 78%
Art Club 18 17 94%
Chamber Quartets 30 29 97%
Black Student Union 19 7 37%
Canine Connections Club 34 15 44%
Chess Team 23 11 48%
Debate Team 10 9 90%
Disc Golf Club 8 5 63%
eSports Team 15 9 60%
Environmental Club 21 11 52%

Fall Flags 6 6 100%
Fall Play 72 58 81%

Family, Career & Community Leaders of America 15 15 100%
Fellowship of Christian Athletes 12 9 75%
Film Club 13 9 69%
French Club 12 6 50%
Freshman Class Council 4 2 50%
Future Business Leaders of America 35 21 60%
Future Medical Professionals 29 10 34%
Gamers Club 39 30 77%
Gay-Straight Alliance 69 27 39%
Guitar Club 22 11 50%

Jazz Band 14 14 100%

Jazz Ensemble 21 21 100%
Junior Class Council 15 13 87%
Marching Band 40 39 98%
Math Team 33 18 55%
National Art Honor Society 47 9 19%
National Honor Society 58 54 93%
Pep Band 14 13 93%

Senior Class Council 21 8 38%
Science Club 12 3 25%
Sophomore Class Council 14 6 43%
Special Olympics 17 10 59%
Speech Team 29 8 28%
Student Council 67 28 42%

Table Tennis Club 27 12 44%
Winter Guard 8 8 100%

Total Counts 1,051 626 59.6%

69



ROUTE 12 NORTH
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA

Redevelopment Plan & Program

Fox Lake, IL

DRAFT REPORT

September 2021




ROUTE 12 NORTH
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN & PROGRAM

NILLAGE gp

DRAFT REPORT
September 2021

Prepared by:
Teska Associates, Inc.

71



TABLE OF CONTENTS

[N TROB T IO R e - e s e st P I B I B B 3
Tax Increment FiNANCING uusasussmsmisvsiisssississsssssssamsess sipssusissassnssn s sisasivnsssisaisasiins sssssoaae 4
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA DESCRIPTION. ...eeeeuvtteaaeuereennreenssssseaessseessnsssasssnsasnnsssesssanessnnsessnsesssens 5
Summary of the Eligibility of the Proposed TIF DistriCt........cciiieeiiiriciiiumiisiriciiiicsesecasnaans 9
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PROGRAM .....oiiiiuiiieeiieeasatreaasssssseenssesessnseesssssesssasassnssesssasassnsesssnsennes 10
Purpose of the Redevelopment Plan ............couieieniiiniiieiominisieneeesisessessaessissessseeses 10
Redevelopment Plan Goals and ODJECTIVES .......cciviiiiiciiiiiiiciesiiciiiiie e sne e 11
FUture Land USE PLAN ........cviiiiiiiiieieicie e s s s st ee e s see e e ss s smrnsnnnn ganeeessesenn s snsnneens 15
Redevelopment Opportunity SITES ........eiii i iiiiieee et ee s seraeeee e sesbar e e s e srae s s ensaneesenneens 16
ElIGiIE Project COStS ...uuiiiiiiierienns e vnsneeee e e bbb s s i 63 s b VoS TS RS A e 17
ACQUISITION aNd ClIEATANCE........covccueriievrereeiisessivivesesssisssniasonatsisniosssessasssvasaasesasassranasensess 18
IR aTe I 1T Yo 1Y 4o o I PSPPSR 18
PUB IC IMIPIOVEMENTS. ...ttt ettt e et e e e b et e e e b e ee e s e b reae e abneens 18
PRasing Of PrOJECE.......uvveii ettt et e s e samaas e s e ba e e e s s e neeeaaneees 19
EStIMAted ProjeCt COSS . .oviii it ieee et ie ettt e e e e e e ee e e e e e ebnme e e e snbnaeaennneees 20
SOUICES Of FUNAS «.vveiiiecceieee e e seree s e e iarsesiaass oo soas s aa e e ab e s oo w oo vsaeasaibe oo v 21
Nature and Term of Obligations 10 be ISSUE ..........vuiiieieiiiieeeiiiiinie e e s e e e e seiaea e 22
Initial Equalized Assessed ValUation ..........oocuiieieieimiiinieieiierenisrnie s e seeeee e s ssaeseeessenneees 22
Anticipated Equalized Assessed ValUation ... s 25
Payment iN LIEU Of TaXES5. ... eeeeecereenrnenneene e s ik ek 5ot aiissns siviss et avsivsniiiatt oo 25
Provision for Amending the Redevelopment Plan and Program.........c.cocceevvuvieemniecensveeanen 25
FINANCIAL IMPACT OF REDEVELOPMENT ...ciuiiveiaiaessiasisissssanssossasssssssssnssesssanesssansessssbessssssessnssessssnsnans 26
FINDINGS OF NEED FOR TAX INCREMENT FINANCING <..cvevveeeesirveeesineessssreessensessnnneenssseessnnessnsssernssnns 29
Project Area Not Subject to Growth........cuasansimnmissviisssii svis i iisissvio 29
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan ...........c.coociiiiiiiiiiieeiinrneeeeeeseesr e eesisneeeesssnaeenns 30
Date Of COMPIETION ...cciiiiieie e ettt et ee et s s e seber e aesbsae s e seassanaesesbnaeseseasnsnaesesenseess 30

LisT OF FIGURES AND TABLES

Table 1: EXiStiNG LANG USE .. .uoeeiiueireinieneeree oo e i sosmamssin sawessonsssss dbessuiussnssiasassas svi b issasivn sosn ioins 5
Table 2: HOuSING UNILS .......cccieiiiein e ceeereeeons B badasas siiss s s s oot ss e sos oy s m e aaaiss 5
Table 3: Redevelopment Opportunity SItES.......cuveuerereeeieeeeirieiesieeesiriesesae s e e s e srseeeeeeesienesesseees 16
Table 4: Estimated Redevelopment Project COStS ......iiiriiiiiiiiminieiiiieieinisineessisinsessssseiasesesssssees 20
Table 5: Equalized Assessed ValUation ..........ccouiiciieeiiieiiie st siassoisaesises st ssbe s snas s aeseens 23
Figure A: Project Area BoUNdary ...............cussoisusssssersassionisaiss sssusssiaatosssssamsssasssssssi ssamassssossasmins 6
Figure B: EXiSting Land USE ......uueeereeennon coabimiase i i v ieiassis s assss by s s S aiinainss o 7
Figure C: Existing Residential USES .......c.ueriiiirioiiieiiiiiiieiie e cesne s esnss e s ssane e 8
Figure D: Future Land USe Plan................. cusxssssessisiomssssicssisss ot s sssssstsaniss s s sssissisisnois 13
Figure E: Redevelopment Opportunity SiteS......ccii it seasessenesn 14

72



APPENDICES
APPENDIX A: Eligibility Report

APPENDIX B: Legal Description

73



INTRODUCTION

This report documents the Tax Increment Redevelopment Plan and Program (the “Redevelopment
Plan”) for the Village of Fox Lake Route 12 North Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Project
Area (the “Project Area”). The Redevelopment Plan has been prepared for use by the Village of Fox
Lake (the “Village”) by Teska Associates, Inc. The proposed Redevelopment Plan seeks to respond to
a number of deficiencies, challenges and needs within the Project Area, and is indicative of a strong
commitment and desire on the part of the Village to improve and revitalize the Project Area. This
document is intended to provide a framework for improvements and reinvestment within the Project
Area over the next 23 years.

The Village’s current comprehensive plan, which was adopted in 2012, encourages continued
economic development within the Village, and highlights specific recommendations for the Project
Area. The comprehensive plan encourages continued commercial development and redevelopment
along the Route 12 corridor, improvements to the marina area, and infrastructure improvements
throughout the Village.

The Project Area primarily includes the Ben Watts marina, which is active but in need of
improvements and rehabilitation. Due to the unique nature of the marina site, and the extraordinary
challenges necessary for redevelopment, the Village is exploring tax increment financing. To this
end, the Village retained the planning consulting firm Teska Associates, Inc. to assist the Village in
the creation of a new Redevelopment Project Area (also referred to as a “TIF District”) covering the
marina and adjacent commercial properties. Teska has conducted the necessary field surveys, site
evaluations, and identified key redevelopment opportunities and necessary public improvements
within the Project Area, and this Redevelopment Plan summarizes the analyses and findings of the
consultant’s work. The Village is entitled to rely on the findings and conclusions of this
Redevelopment Plan in designating the Project Area as a “redevelopment project area” under the
State of lllinois Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 as amended,
the “Act”. Teska has prepared this Redevelopment Plan and the related Eligibility Study with the
understanding that the Village would rely on: (a) the findings and conclusions of the Redevelopment
Plan and associated Eligibility Report in proceeding with the designation of the Project Area and the
adoption and implementation of the Redevelopment Plan; and (b) the fact that Teska has obtained
the necessary information so that the Redevelopment Plan and the related Eligibility Study will
comply with the requirements of the Act.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 3
74



Tax Increment Financing

Tax increment financing is permitted in Illinois under the “Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment
Act” (Chapter 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1, et seq.) of the lllinois Statutes, as amended (hereinafter the "Act").
Only areas which meet certain specifications outlined in the Act are eligible to use this financing
mechanism. In addition to describing the redevelopment objectives, this Redevelopment Plan report
sets forth in general terms the overall program to be undertaken to achieve these objectives.

Legend

m Village of Fox Lake
I Bunding Footprints
. _|ProjectArea

The Act permits municipalities to
improve eligible “conservation” or
“blighted” areas in accordance with
an adopted Redevelopment Plan
over a period not to exceed 23 years.
The municipal cost of certain public
improvements and programs can be
repaid with the revenues generated
by increased assessed values of
private real estate within a
designated project area. This taxing
power is only applied to the increase
in equalized assessed valuation
generated within the designated
project area during the limited term
of the Redevelopment Plan,
principally increased equalized
assessed valuation from new private
development.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois

75

DRAFT September 2021
Page 4



REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA DESCRIPTION

The boundaries of the Project Area were carefully established in adherence to the eligibility criteria
and include only those parcels which would benefit by the proposed Redevelopment Plan. The
Project Area generally consists of properties located on IL Route 12 roughly between Jack Frost Lane
and Kings Road and consists of twenty (20) parcels totaling approximately forty-nine (49) acres.
Existing land uses within the Project Area are illustrated in “Figure B Existing Land Uses”.

Table 1: Existing Land Use *

Existing Land Use Land Area (Acres)
Marina 28
Commercial 8
Vacant 10
Rights-of-way 3
TOTAL 49
Type Units
Single-Family 0
Multi-Family 0
TOTAL 0

* The intended relocation of ten (10) or more residential units, or the presence of seventy-five (75) or more
residential units requires the preparation of a Housing Impact Study. Therefore, a Housing Impact Study is
not required to be included in this report.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illlinois Page 5
76



Figure A — Boundary Map

g~

SAYTON ROAD

HONING ROAD
|

Legend
DTIF Boundary |:| TIF Parcels
1 inch = 320 feet
Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 6

77



Figure B - Existing Land Use

SAYTON ROAD

HONING ROAD

Legend N
TIF Boundal Comercial | vacant| | Marina
D " EI [ : ‘—J 1 inch = 320 feet

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 7
78



Figure C - Residential Units

=

'ﬁ;;\\

SAYTON ROAD
|
|
|

HONING ROAD

Legend N
TIF Bound
7 Boundary 1inch = 319 feet
Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lilinois Page 8

79



Summary of the Eligibility of the Proposed Project Area TIF District

In May of 2020 and again in June of 2021, a study was undertaken, consistent with the Act and
related procedural guidelines, to determine the eligibility of the Project Area. These “Eligibility
Findings” indicate that the proposed Project Area meets the statutory requirements of a “blighted
area” and is therefore eligible for designation as a Redevelopment Project Area as defined in the Act.

As detailed in Appendix A — Tax Increment Financing Eligibility Report of this Redevelopment Plan,
the Project Area is eligible for designation as a “blighted area” due to the predominance and extent
of the following characteristics:

Obsolescence
Deterioration

Below Code Standards
Inadequate Utilities
Lack of planning

s D=

Each of these factors contributes significantly to the eligibility of the Project Area as a ‘blighted area.’
These characteristics point towards the need for designation of the Project Area as a “blighted area”
to be followed by public intervention in order that redevelopment might occur.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 9
80



REDEVELOPMENT PLAN & PROGRAM

The revitalization of the Project Area presents challenges and opportunities for the Village of Fox
Lake. The success of this effort will depend upon cooperation between private investment and local
government. Public and private development efforts have not yet been able to stimulate the
comprehensive revitalization of the Project Area. The adoption of this Redevelopment Plan will assist
with the rehabilitation of the Marina facility and neighboring commercial properties, as well as
implementation of the goals and objectives of the Village’s Comprehensive Plan, which otherwise
could not reasonably be anticipated to occur without the adoption of this Redevelopment Plan.
Through public investment, the area will become more attractive to private investment.

The Act describes the Redevelopment Plan as “the comprehensive program of the municipality for
development or redevelopment intended by the payment of redevelopment project costs to reduce
or eliminate those conditions, the existence of which qualified the redevelopment project area as a
blighted area or conservation area ..., and thereby serves to enhance the tax bases of the taxing
districts which extend into the redevelopment project area.”

The successful implementation of the Route 12 North Redevelopment Project Area Plan & Program
requires that the Village take full advantage of the real estate tax increment attributed to the Project
Area as provided for by the Act. The Project Area will not reasonably be developed and improved
without the use of such incremental revenues.

Purpose of the Redevelopment Plan

Pursuant to the Act, the purpose of a Redevelopment Plan is to promote the health, safety, morals,
and welfare of the general public by:

< Eradicating blighting conditions and instituting conservation measures;

< Removing and alleviating adverse conditions by encouraging private investment of
underutilized and vacant properties which will strengthen the economy, tax base, business
environment, and living environment;

< Improving existing public utilities and infrastructure within the area; and

< Enhancing the overall quality of the business environment in the Village of Fox Lake.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois 81 Page 10



Redevelopment Plan Goals and Objectives

The aim of the Redevelopment Plan is the revitalization of the Project Area as a strong and attractive
commercial and recreational corridor, which will contribute to the health and vitality of the Village
of Fox Lake. The goals and objectives of the Redevelopment Plan include those articulated in the
Act, and those stated in the Village of Fox Lake Comprehensive Plan. The goals and objectives
outlined in the Comprehensive Plan which relate to this Redevelopment Plan are summarized below:

Marina / Resort Development: There is an opportunity within this land use area where there is vacant
or underutilized land that can be assembled to create a first-class waterfront resort. (Page 99)

Commercial redevelopment along Route 12: These are high priority places where land is significantly
underutilized or vacant. (Page 99)

Jack Frost Redevelopment District: This district is opportune for redevelopment due to the
underutilized existing structures and land, with the proximity to the waterfront, - downtown, and
Chain O’ Lakes regional bike path. (Page 106)

Institute special taxing districts or service areas, including tax increment financing districts. (Page
117)

Recruit quality developers to implement tourism oriented commercial development and
redevelopment (Page 120)

Install, improve or upgrade all infrastructures including sidewalks on both sides of Route 12 and all
utilities underground. (Page 122)

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 11
82



Jack Frost
_Redevelopment

F

e e R e

o i ,
T g e . ‘ﬂ'
.: (e P e -

Comprehensive Plan Sub Area 2

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 12
83



Figure D - Future Land Use

SAYTON ROAD

Legend N

D TIF Boundary || Commercial |

| Marina

1 inch = 321 feet

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 13
84



Figure E - Redevelopment Sites

SAYTON ROAD

Legend A

E TIF Boundary |:| SiteA |

1 inch = 320 feet

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 14
85



Future Land Use Plan

The recommended land uses, redevelopment opportunities, and public improvements of this
Redevelopment Plan are based upon the guidelines and development opportunities presented in the
Village of Fox Lake Comprehensive Plan.

The intent of the Future Land Use Plan is to provide a long-range guide for determining the uses to
which the land should eventually be put, and to direct subsequent zoning decisions as
redevelopment occurs within the Project Area. The designation of an existing use as a redevelopment
site is not intended to suggest any immediate requirement for redevelopment. Rather, these sites are
identified as a way of planning for their future redevelopment only if and when a property owner
pursues a development project, or an existing business or resident vacates a property.

The Future Land Use Plan (Figure D) shows anticipated land uses at completion of project activities.
The marina site is anticipated to remain but be rehabilitated/redeveloped. General land use
descriptions are as follows:

Marina

This category category includes the existing marina and any ancillary uses (such as parking) as
permitted in the Village of Fox Lake zoning ordinance. The existing marina is anticipated to remain,
and the TIF is intended to encourage rehabilitation and upgrades to the facility.

Commercial

The Commercial category includes commercial uses appropriate for the high-traffic Route 12

corridor, including commercial uses as permitted in the Village of Fox Lake zoning ordinance.
Ancillary uses to the primary commercial use, including parking and open space, is also permitted.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 15

86



Redevelopment Opportunity Sites

The Project Area includes multiple redevelopment opportunity sites, as identified in (Figure E -
Redevelopment Sites). Recommendations for these sites, including land uses, design guidelines, and
conceptual site designs, are derived from the Village’s Comprehensive Plan, and discussions with
Village staff.

Table 3 indicates the potential future opportunity sites, existing land uses, and potential future land
uses. Although the first use is shown on the Future Land Use Plan described in the previous section,
any land use described in Table 3 is appropriate and within the intent of this Redevelopment Plan.

The Redevelopment Plan shall serve as a guideline for the Project Area but is not intended to establish
specific requirements. Adjustments may be made in response to market conditions and other key
factors as long as they remain faithful to the Village’s overall goals and objectives for the Project Area,
and for the Route 12 corridor in general. Therefore, this Redevelopment Plan is consistent with the
Village’s Comprehensive Plan and is intended to be a key vehicle for implementing that plan.

Table 3: Redevelopment Opportunity Sites

Site Approx. Area (Acres) Existing Land Use Future Land Use
A 2 Vacant Commercial
B 28 Marina Marina
Total 30

The Village may determine that other redevelopment opportunities, where consistent with the land
use designations on the Future Land Use Plan, are within the intent of this Redevelopment Plan.

As indicated by Figure E, the Project Area parcels are planned for marina and commercial uses. In
addition to these opportunity sites, the Redevelopment Plan also anticipates activities may be
undertaken by the public sector, which are identified in the Public Improvements section of this
report. All of these future redevelopment opportunities and public improvements should be
conducted with the guidance of the Village’s Comprehensive Plan.

Undertaking these redevelopment activities will generate increased tax revenues, encourage ancillary
commercial opportunities, upgrade public improvements such as roadways, parking areas, sidewalks,
etc., and provide a stimulus for additional development in surrounding areas. Through these
improvements, the character and economic viability of the Route 12 corridor will be improved over
time.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 16
87



Eligible Project Costs

Redevelopment project costs mean and include the sum total of all reasonable or necessary costs
incurred or estimated to be incurred, and any such costs incidental to the Redevelopment Plan and
Program. As provided by the Act, other eligible project costs may include, without limitation, the
following:

<

Costs of studies, surveys, development of plans, and specifications, implementation and
administration of the Redevelopment Plan including but not limited to staff and professional
service costs for architectural, engineering, legal, financial, planning or other services;

The cost of marketing sites within the Project Area to prospective businesses, developers, and
investors;

Property assembly costs including, but not limited to, acquisition of land and other property,
real or personal, or rights or interests therein, demolition of buildings, site preparation and site
improvements that serve as an engineered barrier addressing ground level or below ground
environmental contamination, including, but not limited to parking lots and other concrete or
asphalt barriers, and the clearing and grading of land;

Costs of rehabilitation, reconstruction, repair, or remodeling of existing public or private
buildings, fixtures, and leasehold improvements; and the cost of replacing an existing public
building if pursuant to the implementation of a redevelopment project the existing public
building is to be demolished to use the site for private investment or devoted to a different use
requiring private investment;

Costs of the construction of public works or improvements;

Costs of job training and retraining projects, including the cost of “welfare to work” programs
implemented by businesses located within the Project Area, and costs of advanced vocational
education or career education, including but not limited to courses in occupational, semi-
technical or technical fields leading directly to employment, incurred by one or more taxing
districts, as provided in the Act;

Financing costs, including but not limited to, all necessary and incidental expenses related to
the issuance of obligations and which may include payment of interest on any obligations
issued under the Act accruing during the estimated period of construction of any redevelopment
project for which such obligations are issued, and not exceeding 36 months thereafter and
including reasonable reserves related thereto;

To the extent the Village by written agreement accepts and approves the same, all or a portion
of a taxing district’s capital costs resulting from the Redevelopment Project necessarily incurred
or to be incurred within a taxing district in furtherance of the objectives of the Redevelopment
Plan;

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 17

88



< To the extent the Village by written agreement accepts and approves the same, an elementary,
secondary, or unit school district’s increased costs attributable to assisted housing units as
provided in the Act;

< Relocation costs to the extent that the Village determines that relocation costs shall be paid or
is required to make payment of relocation costs by Federal or State law;

< Interest cost incurred by a redeveloper related to the construction, renovation or rehabilitation
of a redevelopment project, as provided by the Act.

Acquisition and Clearance

In order to facilitate coordinated redevelopment and meet redevelopment objectives, it may be
necessary for the Village to assemble individual properties into unified sites which can be developed
in their entirety. Any clearance of existing structures will be scheduled to minimize the adverse effects
of rehabilitation or clearance activities.

Land Disposition

Property which may be acquired by the Village may be assembled into appropriate redevelopment
sites. These properties may be sold or leased by the Village to other public bodies or to private
developers, in whole or in part. The Village may in the future modify this disposition plan in
accordance with the objectives of this Redevelopment Plan and Program, without amending the Plan.
Terms of conveyance may be incorporated into appropriate disposition documents or agreements
and may include more specific restrictions than contained in this Redevelopment Plan or in other
municipal codes and ordinances governing the use of the land.

No conveyance, lease, mortgage, disposition of land or other property, or agreement relating to the
development of property will be made except upon the adoption of an ordinance by the Village.

Public Improvements

The Village of Fox Lake will continue to provide public improvements in the Project Area to stimulate
development and redevelopment in a manner consistent with this Redevelopment Plan. Some public
improvements may be provided in partnership with the Illinois Department of Transportation, or
other governmental agencies as applicable. Public improvements may include, but are not limited
to, the following:

< Vacation, removal, resurfacing, widening, reconstruction, and other improvements to rights-of-
way, streets, alleys, bridges, pedestrian ways, and pathways.

< Development of or improvements to public open space.

< Construction of off-street parking facilities and structures.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 18
89



< Improvement of public utilities such as sewer and water lines, electric lines, sidewalks, curbs
and gutters, storm water detention facilities. Such improvement may include relocation and/or
burial of existing overhead lines.

< Demolition and rehabilitation of obsolete structures.

< Beautification and safety improvements, including streetscape, lighting, signage, and
landscaping of public properties.

Public improvement activities which are planned as part of this Redevelopment Plan are based upon
recommendations contained in the Comprehensive Plan and through meetings and conversations
with the Village staff. A summary of recommended public improvements includes the following:

< Access improvements (defining access points and consolidating points of access) and parkway
enhancements;

< Right-of-way improvements on Route 12;

< Improvements to landscaping and landscape buffers;

< Parking lot improvements;

< Install/improve/upgrade sidewalks on both sides of Route 12; and

< Bury above-ground utilities.

The costs associated with the public improvements described in this Redevelopment Plan may be
shared by the Village of Fox Lake, other governmental agencies, and individual developers and
property owners, pursuant to an agreement between the parties. The Village may determine in the
future that certain listed improvements are no longer needed or appropriate and may remove them
from the list or may add new improvements to the list which are consistent with the objectives of this
Redevelopment Plan. Such additions shall not require plan amendment provided they are for eligible
public improvements and will not require an increase to the total estimated project costs in Table 4.

Phasing of Project

Redevelopment projects anticipated in this Plan may commence immediately. Most of the
development and redevelopment projects are anticipated to be completed within twenty-three (23)
years. Facade improvements, building rehabilitations, and other activities on individual properties
will be encouraged throughout the life of the TIF. The Village may undertake additional public
improvements or development projects as appropriate throughout the life of the Redevelopment Plan
and Program.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 19
90



Estimated Project Costs

Estimated public project costs are listed in Table 4. These costs are based on 2020 dollars and are
therefore subject to inflation. Increases in estimated Total Redevelopment Project Costs of more than
five percent (5%), after adjustment for inflation from the date of the Redevelopment Plan adoption,
are subject to amendment procedures as provided under the Act.

Table 4: Estimated Redevelopment Project Costs

Category Cost

Property Assembly including Acquisition, Site Preparation and

Demolition, Environmental Remediation SII00I000

Environmental, market and planning studies, surveys, development
of engineering and architectural plans, specifications, $400,000
implementation and administration fees

Rehabilitation, reconstruction, repair, or remodeling of existing

public or private buildings and fixtures $2,000,000
Construction or improvement of public improvements (1) $1,250,000
Job training/retraining and relocation costs $100,000
Developer Interest Costs, taxing districts eligible reimbursement $250,000
and capital costs

Total Estimated Project Costs (2) (3) $5,000,000

(1) Public improvements may also include capital costs of taxing districts and other costs allowable under the Act.
Specifically, public improvements as identified in the Redevelopment Plan and as allowable under the Act may be
made to property and facilities owned or operated by the Village or other public entities. As provided in the Act,
Redevelopment Project Costs may include, to the extent the Village by written agreement accepts and approves the
same, all or a portion of a taxing district’s capital costs resulting from the redevelopment project necessarily incurred
or to be incurred within a taxing district in furtherance of the objectives of the Redevelopment Plan.

(2} Actual costs for each category identified above may vary provided that the total estimated project costs may not be
exceeded by more than 5%, after adjustment for inflation, without amendment to this Redevelopment Plan.

(3) This table does not include costs associated with the issuance of municipal obligations, capitalized interest,
reimbursement for a portion of privately issued obligations, financing costs during construction (not to exceed 36
months), or other eligible project costs. Such additional costs may or may not be incurred and cannot be estimated

at this time.
Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lilinois Page 20

91



Sources of Funds

The Act provides a way for municipalities to finance public redevelopment costs with incremental
real estate tax revenues. Incremental tax revenue is derived from the increase in the current equalized
assessed valuation (EAV) of real property within the Project Area over and above the certified initial
EAV of the real property. Any increase in EAV is then multiplied by the current tax rate, resulting in
the tax increment revenue.

Funds necessary to pay redevelopment project costs may be derived from a number of authorized
sources. These may include, but are not limited to, the following:

< Real property tax increment revenues from the Project Area;

< Tax revenues resulting from the establishment of any Special Service Area districts within the
Project Area;

< Interest earned on temporary investments;

< Gifts, grants, and contributions;

< Sale or lease of land proceeds;

< User fees;

< Transfer from a contiguous redevelopment project area created under the Act.

The principal source of funds to undertake redevelopment activities will be the incremental increase
in real property taxes attributable to the increase in the equalized assessed value of each taxable lot,
block, tract or parcel of real property in the Project Area over the initial equalized assessed value of
each such lot, block, tract or parcel. There may also be other eligible local sources of revenue, such
as the sale or lease of Village owned property, that the Village determines are appropriate to allocate
to the payment of redevelopment project costs.

The Village may utilize net incremental property taxes received from the Project Area to pay eligible
Redevelopment Project Costs, or obligations issued to pay such costs, in other contiguous
redevelopment project areas, or those obligations issued to pay such costs, in other contiguous
redevelopment project areas, or those separated only by a public right-of-way, and vice versa. The
amount of revenue from the Project Area, made available to support such contiguous redevelopment
project areas, or those separated only by a public right-of-way, when added to all amounts used to
pay eligible Redevelopment Project Costs with the Project Area, shall not at any time exceed the total
Redevelopment Project Costs described in the Plan.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illlinois Page 21
92



Nature and Term of Obligations to be Issued

The financial plan of this Redevelopment Plan is intended to establish a conservative public
expenditure approach. Revenues will be accumulated in the special tax allocation fund to pay for
public purpose expenditures identified in this Redevelopment Plan, and whenever practical,
expenditures will be made on a cash basis. This method of financing shall not preclude the Village
from undertaking initiatives designed to stimulate appropriate private investment within the Project
Area.

Certain redevelopment projects may be of such a scale or on such a time-table as to preclude
financing on a cash basis. These projects may be funded by the use of tax increment revenue
obligations issued pursuant to the Act for a term not to exceed twenty (20) years. Consistent with the
conscrvative nature of the financial plan for this Redevelopment Program, the highest priority for the
issuance of tax increment revenue obligations shall occur when the commitment is in place for
private sector investment necessary to fund the amortization of such obligations.

All obligations are to be covered after issuance by projected and actual tax increment revenues and
by such debt service reserved and sinking funds as may be provided by ordinance. Revenues not
required for the retirement of obligations providing for reserves, sinking funds, and anticipated
redevelopment project costs may be declared surplus and become available for distribution annually
to the taxing districts within the Project Area.

One or more issues of obligations may be sold at one or more times in order to implement this plan,
as now or hereafter amended, in accordance with law.

The Village may, by ordinance, in addition to obligations secured by the special tax allocation fund
provided by law, pledge for a period not greater than the term of the obligations any part or any
combination of the following:

< Net revenues of all or part of a Redevelopment Project,

< The full faith and credit of the municipality.

< A mortgage on part or all of a Redevelopment Project.

< Any other taxes or anticipated receipts that the municipality may lawfully pledge.

Initial Equalized Assessed Valuation

Table 5 lists the equalized assessed valuation of properties in the Project Area. The total 2020 equalized
assessed valuation of the Project Area is $2,167,361.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois 03 Page 22



Table 5: Project Area Equalized Assessed Valuation (2020)

PIN VALUE
05-09-413-010 $26,709
05-09-400-206 $338,328
05-09-413-002 $26,710
05-09-413-011 $73,331
05-09-400-207 $276,720
05-09-413-003 $91,158
05-09-400-208 $349,702
05-09-413-004 $87,957
05-09-413-012 $91,920
05-09-413-009 $71,493
05-10-315-008 $253,699
05-10-300-006 $85,721
05-10-300-007 $100,673
05-09-410-007 $17,546
05-09-410-008 $28,635
05-09-410-009 $16,199
05-09-410-010 $14,936
05-10-300-024 $78,384
05-09-410-006 $112,684
05-09-400-140 $24,856

TOTAL $2,167,361

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois

94

DRAFT September 2021
Page 23



Anticipated Equalized Assessed Valuation

Upon the completion of anticipated redevelopment projects, it is estimated that the equalized
assessed valuation of real property within the Project Area will be approximately $5,194,656

. This figure is based upon estimates of value for the anticipated rehabilitation and redevelopment
projects described in this report.

Payment in Lieu of Taxes

No payments in lieu of taxes are anticipated as part of the Redevelopment Plan and Program.

Provision for Amending the Redevelopment Plan and Program

The Redevelopment Plan and Program may be amended pursuant to provisions of the Act.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program

DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois

Page 24
95



FINANCIAL IMPACT OF REDEVELOPMENT

Without the adoption of the Redevelopment Plan, development and redevelopment projects within
the Project Area are not reasonably expected to be undertaken by private enterprise. In the absence
of Village-sponsored redevelopment, there is a prospect that blighting factors will continue to exist
and spread, and the Project Area on the whole, as well as adjacent properties, will become less
attractive for the maintenance and improvement of existing buildings and sites. Erosion of the
assessed valuation of property in the Project Area has already occurred and could lead to further
reductions of real estate tax revenue to all taxing districts.

Implementation of the Redevelopment Plan is expected to have significant short and long term
positive financial impacts on the taxing districts affected by this Redevelopment Plan. In the short
term, the Village's effective use of tax increment financing can be expected to arrest the ongoing
decline of existing assessed values in the Project Area, thereby stabilizing the existing tax base for
local taxing agencies. In the long term, after the completion of all redevelopment improvements and
activities, and the payment of all redevelopment project costs and municipal obligations, the taxing
districts will benefit from the enhanced tax base which results from the increase in equalized assessed
valuation caused by the Redevelopment Plan and Program.

The following taxing districts cover the proposed Project Area:

Village of Fox Lake

Grant Township

Lake County

Lake County Forest Preserve

Fox Lake Fire Protection

Fox Lake Public Library

Fox Lake School District #114

Grant Community High School District #124
College of Lake County #532

£8 [P0Th Ot [T e L9 1S b

This Redevelopment Plan contemplates rehabilitation and/or redevelopment of specific opportunity
sites primarily with commercial uses. Given the small size of the study area (roughly 41 acres),
impact on individual taxing districts and taxing districts in general, will be limited but also dependent
on the specific nature of any future (re)developments.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 25
96



Impact on Village of Fox Lake

Fox Lake provides a variety of services, including planning and zoning, building, water, and
sanitation. The replacement of underutilized property with new development and redevelopment
may cause a minimal increase in demand for the services and programs provided by the Village. Due
to the small size of the Project Area in relation to the Village, services provided to residents will likely
not be affected, and the impact is anticipated to be minimal. Therefore, no specific program is set
forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on Grant Township

Grant Township provides a variety of services, including the Township Assessor and road
maintenance. The replacement of underutilized commercial property with new development and
redevelopment should have little impact on the demand for the services and programs provided by
the Township. No Township roads are included within the Project Area. Due to the small size of the
Project Area in relation to the Township, services provided to residents will not be affected, and any
impact is anticipated to be minimal. Therefore, no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment
Pfan.

Impact on Lake County

Lake County provides a variety of services, including the County Court system, health services and
maintenance of open space and recreational activities. The replacement of underutilized property
with new development and redevelopment may cause a minimal increase in demand for the services
and programs provided by the County. Due to the small size of the Project Area in relation to the
County, services provided to residents will likely not be affected, and the impact is anticipated to be
minimal. Therefore, no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on Lake County Forest Preserve

The Lake County Forest Preserve District manages natural areas, open spaces, and provides
educational and recreational opportunities for residents of Lake County. The replacement of
underutilized commercial property with new commercial development and redevelopment should
have no impact on demand for the services and programs provided by the forest preserve. Therefore,
no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on Fox Lake Fire Protection

The Oswego Fire Protection District serves Fox Lake and surrounding communities. The replacement
of underutilized property with new commercial development and redevelopment may cause a
minimal increased demand for the services and programs provided by the fire district, however any
impact is anticipated to be minimal. Therefore, no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment
Plan.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, Hlinois 97 Page 26



Impact on Fox Lake Library District

The Fox Lake Library District is located on Grand Avenue and provides library and related services
to the residents of Fox Lake. The replacement of underutilized commercial property with new
development and redevelopment will have no impact on demand for the services and programs
provided by the library district. Therefore, no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment
Plan. In addition, the Act defines a clear formula for repayment of fees to the district for any
documented increased demand for services directly generated by TIF supported projects. Therefore,
no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on Fox Lake School District #114

Fox Lake School District #114 provides elementary school services to the residents of Fox Lake. The
replacement of underutilized commercial property with new development and redevelopment
should have little impact on the demand for the services and programs provided by the school district,
aside from potential programs such as training programs to serve new businesses and educational
services for new employees. However, any impact is anticipated to be minimal given the commercial
nature of anticipated future development. In addition, the Act defines a clear formula for repayment
of fees to the district for any documented increased demand for services directly generated by TIF
supported projects. Therefore, no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on Grant Community High School District #124

Grant Community High School District #124 provides elementary school services to the residents of
Fox Lake, Ingleside, Lake Villa, Round Lake, Round Lake Heights, Round Lake Beach, Volo,
Lakemoor, and Spring Grove. The replacement of underutilized commercial property with new
development and redevelopment should have little impact on the demand for the services and
programs provided by the school district, aside from potential programs such as training programs to
serve new businesses and educational services for new employees. However, any impact is
anticipated to be minimal given the commercial nature of anticipated future development. In
addition, the Act defines a clear formula for repayment of fees to the district for any documented
increased demand for services directly generated by TIF supported projects. Therefore, no specific
program is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on College of Lake County #532

The College of Lake County has campuses in Grayslake, Lakeshore and Southlake. The college offers
educational and community programs for residents of the district. The replacement of underutilized
commercial property with new commercial development and redevelopment may cause a small
increase to demand for the services and programs provided by the college, including training
programs to serve new businesses and educational services for new employees. However, any impact
is anticipated to be minimal given the commercial nature of anticipated future development, and the
small size of the Project Area in comparison to the size of the district. Therefore, no specific program
is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 27
98



FINDINGS OF NEED FOR TAX INCREMENT FINANCING

Based on the findings of this Redevelopment Plan and Program, the Village President and the Village
Board of Fox Lake, Illinois, adopt the following findings pursuant to Section 11-74.4-3(n) of the Act.

Project Area Not Subject to Growth

The Project Area on the whole has not been subject to growth and development through investment
by private enterprise and would not reasonably be anticipated to be developed without adoption of
this Redevelopment Plan. Substantial evidence supports this conclusion.

First, the Village finds that the Project Area on the whole has not been subject to growth and
redevelopment through investment by private enterprise, based on the following evidence as outlined
in the Eligibility Findings Report in Appendix A:

Obsolescence
Deterioration

Below Code Standards
Inadequate Utilities
Lack of planning

LR

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois 99 Page 28



Secondly, the Village finds that the Project Area would not reasonably be anticipated to be developed
without adoption of this Redevelopment Plan. This conclusion is based upon the findings of this
report and the Village of Fox Lake Comprehensive Plan:

1. Extraordinary development costs related to lakefront redevelopment;

2. Proposed redevelopment sites indicate a financial gap without public resources, grants or
other incentives to promote redevelopment;

3. The need for public — private partnerships to support future redevelopment; and

4. The need for future infrastructure improvements to support future redevelopment.

Therefore, the Village of Fox Lake finds that the Project Area is not subject to appropriate growth and
development and is not anticipated to be developed without adoption of this Redevelopment Plan.

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan

This Redevelopment Plan conforms to and is based upon the recommendations of the Village of Fox
Lake Comprehensive Plan, including the goals and objectives therein, as well as future land uses and
anticipated redevelopment activities.

Date of Completion

The Redevelopment Project shall be completed, and all obligations issued to finance redevelopment
costs shall be retired, no later than December 31 of the year in which the payment to the municipal
treasurer as provided in the Act is to be made with respect to ad valorem taxes levied in the twenty-
third (23" calendar year following the year in which the ordinance approving this Project Area is
adopted (December 31, 2045).

Route 12 North TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 29
100



ROUTE 12 NORTH
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA
ELIGIBILITY REPORT

ql\.laAGE op

DRAFT REPORT
September 2021

Prepared by:
Teska Associates, Inc.

101



Table of Contents

INEFOUUCHION ..evvererommenrsnarmsbssis i sssssisinm svissisiasionsssasssstensuan i s L e s AT S5 2
TaX INCrEMENT FINANCINE . veeeveeirrieeieeiiesiiisirseirssesriesrase s ss e e b s e asase e b s e b d e e b e b e b E e e e b e L s SRS e e s s e sa e r e 3
DeSCription Of the PrOJECT ATEA ......civiieiiririimmreiesresssessssn s s sttt n s s s b s e sa e 9
Project Area ClassifiCAtiON ..........cciiiuiiisiisseseainas s st b 11
[ FT= Y LAV T 10T OO RSO PR OUPEUTOT TP TOPPE OSSR RS P 13
SUNMIMATY FINOIIES ¢.veveeeteteneee et ib b a bbb 8 b b0 e e e E S s S b e 21
EXHIBITS
1. BOUNGArY MAP ..ovvererereesesrsresmssrsesssessisssessestsnssesastisesasssssnsssenensstensasas sesssnasansststasssssnessssnssassabasasisasies 10
2. AZE OF BUIIAINGS ...oveveiircsiiiiiniiimisiit e isinsssssssste s ssa s shes s asha e b sbesa s aa s s d bR s R SH s s s bR s b b e e s sa s 12
3. Building & Site Deterioration ... ... s 16
W B 00 Yo [0 VA e | - 15101 £ 1T U OO OO O PO P RSP 18
Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 1

102



INTRODUCTION

In order to encourage redevelopment, the Village of Fox Lake (the “Village”) is investigating the creation of a
TaxIncrement Financing Redevelopment Project Area (the “Project Area”) for property located on IL Route
12. The Project Area is located roughly between Jack Frost Lane on the north and Kings Road on the south
and includes the Ben Watts Marina, as well as neighboring commercial properties.

The purpose of this Eligibility Report is to document the eligibility criteria as required by the Tax Increment
Allocation Redevelopment Act (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4 - 1, et seq.) as amended (the “Act”). The following analysis
documents the presence of eligibility criteria necessary for designation as a Redevelopment Project Area, as
required in the Act.

Tax increment financing can be used to make the designated Project Area more attractive for
redevelopment by eliminating the conditions which inhibit private investment, weaken the Village’s tax
base, affect the safety of community residents, and hinder the Village’s ability to promote cohesive
development of compatible land uses as articulated in the Village’s Comprehensive Plan. In accordance with
the TIF Act, public improvements may be constructed, and incentives provided to encourage the type of
private investment that will allow the Village to achieve its vision and goals.

Establishing the Route 12 North Redevelopment Project Area can help the Village to meet these goals by
facilitating physical improvements, removing blighting conditions, and providing funding sources for
improvement projects within the Project Area. These improvements will not only help improve the physical
conditions and economic development of the Project Area, but also enhance the quality of life of adjacent
properties and neighborhoods, and for all residents of the Village of Fox Lake as a whole.

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois 103 Page 2



TAX INCREMENT FINANCING

The Act stipulates specific procedures, which must be adhered to in designating a Redevelopment Project
Area, as well as amendments thereto. The following terms referenced in this Eligibility Report are defined in
the Act as follows:

A “Redevelopment Project Area” is defined as:

“..an area designated by the municipality, which is not less in the aggregate than 1% acres and in respect to
which the municipality has made a finding that there exist conditions which cause the area to be classified as
an industrial park conservation area, or a blighted area or a conservation area, or a combination of both
blighted areas and conservation areas.”

A “Blighted Area” is defined as:

“.any improved or vacant area within the boundaries of a redevelopment project area located within the

territorial limits of the municipality where:

1. Ifimproved, industrial, commercial, and residential buildings or improvements are detrimental to the
public safety, health, or welfare because of a combination of 5 or more of the following factors, each of
which is (i) present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful extent so that a municipality may
reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of the Act and (ii) reasonable
distributed throughout the improved part of the redevelopment project area:

A. Dilapidation. An advanced state of disrepair or neglect of necessary repairs to the primary structural
components of buildings or improvements in such a combination that a documented building
condition analysis determines that major repair is required or the defects are so serious and so
extensive that the buildings must be removed.

B. Obsolescence. The condition or process of falling into disuse. Structures have become ill-suited for
the original use.

C. Deterioration. With respect to buildings, defects including, but not limited to, major defects in the
secondary building components such as doors, windows, porches, gutters and downspouts, and
fascia. With respect to surface improvements, that the condition of roadways, alleys, curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, off-street parking, and surface storage areas evidence deterioration, including, but not
limited to, surface cracking, crumbling, potholes, depressions, loose paving material, and weeds
protruding through paved surfaces.

D. Presence of structures below minimum code standards. All structures that do not meet the standards
of zoning, subdivision, building, fire, and other governmental codes applicable to property, but not
including housing and property maintenance codes.

E. lllegal use of individual structures. The use of structures in violation of applicable federal, State, or
local laws, exclusive of those applicable to the presence of structures below minimum code
standards.

F. Excessive vacancies. The presence of buildings that are unoccupied or under-utilized and that
represent an adverse influence on the area because of the frequency, extent, or duration of the
vacancies.

G. Lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities. The absence of adequate ventilation for light or air
circulation in spaces or rooms without windows, or that require the removal of dust, odor, gas,
smoke, or other noxious airborne materials. Inadequate natural light and ventilation means the
absence of skylights or windows for interior spaces or rooms and improper window sizes and

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 3
104



amounts by room area to window area ratios. Inadequate sanitary facilities refers to the absence or
inadequacy of garbage storage and enclosure, bathroom facilities, hot water and kitchens, and
structural inadequacies preventing ingress and egress to and from all rooms and units within a
building.

H. Inadequate utilities. Underground and overhead utilities such as storm sewers and storm drainage,
sanitary sewers, water lines, and gas, telephone, and electrical services that are shown to be
inadequate. Inadequate utilities are those that are: (i) of insufficient capacity to serve the uses in the
redevelopment project area, (ii) deteriorated, antiquated, obsolete, or in disrepair, or (iii) lacking
within the redevelopment project area.

I Excessive land coverage and overcrowding of structures and community facilities. The over-intensive
use of property and the crowding of buildings and accessory facilities onto a site. Examples of
problem conditions warranting the designation of an area as one exhibiting excessive land coverage
are: (i) the presence of buildings either improperly situated on parcels or located on parcels of
inadequate size and shape in relation to present-day standards of development for health and safety
and (ii) the presence of multiple buildings on a single parcel. For there to be a finding of excessive
land coverage, these parcels must exhibit one or more of the following conditions: insufficient
provision for light and air within or around buildings, increased threat of spread of fire due to the
close proximity of buildings, lack of adequate or proper access to a public right-of-way, lack of
reasonably required off-street parking, or inadequate provision for loading and service.

J. Deleterious land use or layout. The existence of incompatible land-use relationships, buildings
occupied by inappropriate mixed-uses, or uses considered to be noxious, offensive, or unsuitable for
the surrounding area.

K. Environmental clean-up. The proposed redevelopment project area has incurred Illinois
Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental Protection Agency remediation
costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant recognized as having expertise in
environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-up of hazardous waste, hazardous
substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or federal law, provided that the
remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the development or redevelopment of the
redevelopment project area.

L. Lack of community planning. The proposed redevelopment project area was developed prior to or
without the benefit or guidance of a community plan. This means that the development occurred
prior to the adoption by the municipality of a comprehensive or other community plan or that the
plan was not followed at the time of the area’s development. This factor must be documented by
evidence of adverse or incompatible land use relationships, inadequate street layout, improper
subdivision, parcels of inadequate shape and size to meet contemporary development standards, or
other evidence demonstrating an absence of effective community planning.

M. The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for3of
the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated or is
increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5
calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than
the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of
Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the
redevelopment project area is designated.

2. Ifvacant, the sound growth of the redevelopment project area is impaired by a combination of 2 or more
of the following factors, each of which is (i) present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful
extent so that a municipality may reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of
the Act and (ii) reasonably distributed throughout the vacant part of the redevelopment project area to
which it pertains:

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 4
105



A. Obsolete platting of vacant land that results in parcels of limited or narrow size or configurations of
parcels of irregular size or shape that would be difficult to develop on a planned basis and in a
manner compatible with contemporary standards and requirements, or platting that failed to create
rights-of-ways for streets or alleys or that created inadequate right-of way widths for streets, alleys,
or other public rights-of-way or that omitted easements for public utilities.

B. Diversity of ownership of parcels of vacant land sufficient in number to retard or impede the ability
to assemble the land for development.

C. Tax and special assessment delinquencies exist or the property has been the subject of tax sales
under the Property Tax Code within the last 5 years.

D. Deterioration of structures or site improvements in neighboring areas adjacent to the vacant land.

E. The agrea has incurred Illlinois Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental
Protection Agency remediation costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant
recognized as having expertise in environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-
up of hazardous waste, hazardous substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or
federal law, provided that the remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the
development or redevelopment of the redevelopment project area.

F. The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for 3 of
the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated or is
increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5
calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than
the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of
Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the
redevelopment project area is designated.

3. If vacant, the sound growth of the redevelopment project area is impaired by one of the following
factors that (i} is present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful extent so that a municipality
may reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of the Act and (ii} is reasonably
distributed throughout the vacant part of the redevelopment project area to which it pertains:

A. The area consists of one or more unused quarries, mines, or strip mine ponds.

B. The area consists of unused rail yards, rail tracks, or railroad rights-of-way.

C. The area, prior to its designation, is subject to (i) chronic flooding that adversely impacts on real
property in the area as certified by a registered professional engineer or appropriate regulatory
agency or (ii) surface water that discharges from all or a part of the area and contributes to flooding
within the same watershed, but only if the redevelopment project provides for facilities or
improvements to contribute to the alleviation of all or part of the flooding.

D. The area consists of an unused or illegal disposal site containing earth, stone, building debris, or
similar materials that were removed from construction, demolition, excavation, or dredge sites. Prior
to November 1, 1999, the area is not less than 50 nor more than 100 acres and 75% of which is
vacant (notwithstanding that the area has been used for commercial agricultural purposes within 5
years prior to the designation of the redevelopment project area), and the area meets at least one of
the factors itemized in paragraph (1) of this subsection, the area has been designated as a town or
village center by ordinance or comprehensive plan adopted prior to January 1, 1982, and the area
has not been developed for that designated purpose.

E. Thearea qualified as a blighted improved area immediately prior to becoming vacant, unless there
has been substantial private investment in the immediately surrounding area.”

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 5
106



A “Conservation Area” is defined as:

“...any improved area within the boundaries of a redevelopment project area located within the territorial
limits of the municipality in which 50% or more of the structures in the area have an age of 35 years or more.
Such an area is not yet a blighted area, but because of a combination of 3 or more of the following factors:
dilapidation; obsolescence; deterioration; presence of structures below minimum code standards; illegal use
of individual structures; excessive vacancies; lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities; inadequate
utilities; excessive land coverage and overcrowding of structures and community facilities; deleterious land
use or layout; lack of community planning; environmental remediation costs impede development; decline or
minimal marginal increase in equalized assessed valuation; is detrimental to the public safety, health,
morals, or welfare and such an area may become a blighted area:

A. Dilapidation. An advanced state of disrepair or neglect of necessary repairs to the primary structural
components of buildings or improvements in such a combination that a documented building
condition analysis determines that major repair is required or the defects are so serious and so
extensive that the buildings must be removed.

B. Obsolescence. The condition or process of falling into disuse. Structures have become ill-suited for
the original use.

C. Deterioration. With respect to buildings, defects including, but not limited to, major defects in the
secondary building components such as doors, windows, porches, gutters and downspouts, and
fascia. With respect to surface improvements, that the condition of roadways, alleys, curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, off-street parking, and surface storage areas evidence deterioration, including, but not
limited to, surface cracking, crumbling, potholes, depressions, loose paving material, and weeds
protruding through paved surfaces.

D. Presence of structures below minimum code standards. All structures that do not meet the standards
of zoning, subdivision, building, fire, and other governmental codes applicable to property, but not
including housing and property maintenance codes.

E. lllegal use of individual structures. The use of structures in violation of applicable federal, State, or
local laws, exclusive of those applicable to the presence of structures below minimum code
standards.

F. Excessive vacancies. The presence of buildings that are unoccupied or under-utilized and that
represent an adverse influence on the area because of the frequency, extent, or duration of the
vacancies.

G. Lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities. The absence of adequate ventilation for light or air
circulation in spaces or rooms without windows, or that require the removal of dust, odor, gas,
smoke, or other noxious airborne materials. Inadequate natural light and ventilation means the
absence of skylights or windows for interior spaces or rooms and improper window sizes and
amounts by room area to window area ratios. Inadequate sanitary facilities refers to the absence or
inadequacy of garbage storage and enclosure, bathroom facilities, hot water and kitchens, and
structural inadequacies preventing ingress and egress to and from all rooms and units within a
building.

H. Inadequate utilities. Underground and overhead utilities such as storm sewers and storm drainage,
sanitary sewers, water lines, and gas, telephone, and electrical services that are shown to be
inadequate. Inadequate utilities are those that are: (i) of insufficient capacity to serve the uses in the
redevelopment project area, (ii) deteriorated, antiquated, obsolete, or in disrepair, or (iii) lacking
within the redevelopment project area.

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois 107 Page 6



I.  Excessive land coverage and overcrowding of structures and community facilities. The over-intensive
use of property and the crowding of buildings and accessory facilities onto a site. Examples of
problem conditions warranting the designation of an area as one exhibiting excessive land coverage
are: (i) the presence of buildings either improperly situated on parcels or located on parcels of
inadequate size and shape in relation to present-day standards of development for health and safety
and (ii) the presence of multiple buildings on a single parcel. For there to be a finding of excessive
land coverage, these parcels must exhibit one or more of the following conditions: insufficient
provision for light and air within or around buildings, increased threat of spread of fire due to the
close proximity of buildings, lack of adequate or proper access to a public right-of-way, lack of
reasonably required off-street parking, or inadequate provision for loading and service.

J. Deleterious land use or layout. The existence of incompatible land-use relationships, buildings
occupied by inappropriate mixed-uses, or uses considered to be noxious, offensive, or unsuitable for
the surrounding area.

K. Environmental clean-up. The proposed redevelopment project area has incurred Illinois
Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental Protection Agency remediation
costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant recognized as having expertise in
environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-up of hazardous waste, hazardous
substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or federal law, provided that the
remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the development or redevelopment of the
redevelopment project area.

L. Lack of community planning. The proposed redevelopment project area was developed prior to or
without the benefit or guidance of a community plan. This means that the development occurred
prior to the adoption by the municipality of a comprehensive or other community plan or that the
plan was not followed at the time of the area's development. This factor must be documented by
evidence of adverse or incompatible land use relationships, inadequate street layout, improper
subdivision, parcels of inadequate shape and size to meet contemporary development standards, or
other evidence demonstrating an absence of effective community planning.

M. The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for 3 of
the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated or is
increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5
calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than
the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of
Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the
redevelopment project area is designated.”

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lilinois Page 7
108



This Eligibility Report summarizes the analyses and findings of the Village’s planning consultant, Teska
Associates, Inc. (“Teska”). Determination of eligibility of the proposed Project Area is based on a comparison
of data gathered through field observations by Teska Associates, Inc., document and archival research, and
information obtained from the Village of Fox Lake and Lake County, lllinois against the eligibility criteria set
forth in the Act.

Teska has prepared this report with the understanding that the Village would rely on:

1. Thefindings and conclusions of this report in proceeding with the designation of the Project Area as
a Redevelopment Project Area under the requirements of the Act; and

2. Thefact that Teska has obtained the necessary information to conclude that the Project Area can be
designated as a Redevelopment Project Area in compliance with the Act.

The Route 12 North Project Area is eligible for designation as a Redevelopment Project Area based on the
predominance and extent of parcels exhibiting the following primary characteristics:

Obsolescence
Deterioration

Below Code Standards
Inadequate Utilities
Lack of planning

&1 g2 Lo IS =

Each of these factors contributes significantly towards the eligibility of the Project Area as a whole.

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, Illlinois 109 Page 8



DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT AREA

The Project Area contains nineteen (19) buildings on twenty (20) parcels, consisting of approximately forty-
nine (49) acres. Existing structures within the Project Area include the Ben Watts Marina (5 buildings),
Marathon Gas Station (2 buildings), Fox Lake Canvas (1 building), Jerry’s Auto Care (1 building), Mail Drop
Shoppe (1 building), Toptech Motorworks (1 building), Fox Lake Motors (1 building), Affordable Self-Storage
(4 buildings), End of the Line Auto Repair (1 building), abrasive Rubber Wheel (1 building), and 1 vacant
building. The Project Area meets the minimum area requirement of one and a half (1.5) acres. “Figure 1”
illustrates the exact boundaries of the Project Area.

{ [ vinage of Fox Lake
[ ] project Area

I suilding Footprints

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 9
110



Figure 1 - Boundary Map

~ SAYTONROAD -- -

| SN SR
HONING ROAD

Legend N
D TIF Boundary |:| TIF Parcels

1 inch = 320 feet

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois 111 Page 10



PROJECT AREA CLASSIFICATION

Teska conducted a field survey of every property located within the Project Area. Based on an inspection of
the exteriors of buildings and grounds, field notes were taken to record the condition for each building and
parcel. This survey origially occurred in May 2020 and was confirmed again in June 2021. Photographs
further document the observed conditions. Field observations were supplemented with information
provided by Village of Fox Lake and Lake County officials.

in order to be designated as a ‘blighted area,’ a combination of at least five (5) blighting factors outlined in
the Act must be present to a meaningful extent and reasonably distributed throughout the Project Area. In
order to be designated as a ‘conservation area,’ at least 50% of the structures must be 35 years or more in
age and a combination of at least three (3) of the blighting factors must be present. Vacant land is evaluated
under separate criteria for unimproved property.

Age of Buildings

Based on field analysis and historical records provided by the Village of Fox Lake and Lake County, the
Project Area meets the threshold for a ‘conservation area’ as 50% or more of the structures within these
areas are 35 years in age or older. Building age was determined by field observations of building
construction methods and confirmed (where available) through the Lake County Assessor website
(https://www.lakecountyil.gov/). The Project Area meets the statutory requirement that at least 50% of the
buildings in a ‘conservation area’ be 35 years of age or older.

# Structures # Over 35 Years % Over 35 Years

19 18 95%

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 11
112



Figure 2 - Age of Buildings

SAYTON ROAD

| === -
HONING ROAD

A

Legend N
{1 ¥ Boundary [II Age Over 35 Years [ ] Age Under 35 Years or Unknown

1 inch = 320 feet

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, Hlinois 113 Page 12



ELIGIBILITY FINDINGS

The Project Area contains the Ben Watts Marina and nearby commercial properties. A majority of the
structures are over 35 years in age, as shown on Figure 2 — Age of Buildings. The Project Area meets the age
qualification for a “conservation area” as defined in the Act. In addition to building age, the presence of
three (3) eligibility factors are required for designation as a conservation area and five (5) eligibility factors
are required for designation as a blighted area. Relevant eligibility criteria within the Project Area include
the following:

Obsolescence. The condition or process of falling into disuse. Structures have become ill-suited for the
original use.

Obsolescence can be further broken into multiple classifications, including:

a) Functional obsolescence
The design and spatial layout of buildings and site improvements and their geographical location
respond to market needs for specific uses at the time those buildings and improvements are
constructed. Additionally, buildings and improvements are designed within the technological
constraints of the time. Design and spatial layout characteristics of buildings and site improvements
include, but are not limited to, floor area, ceiling height, column spacing, loading and service areas,
building orientation, on-site parking and storage areas, and vehicular circulation.

Over time, geographical and structural changes occur within industries and real estate markets
causing properties to become ill-suited for their original use, resulting in deficiencies in those
buildings that limit their ability to function for their original purpose. This loss in functionality and
overall usefulness or desirability of a property, diminishes the value of the building and the
property.

b) Economic obsolescence
Economic obsolescence is generally a result of building and/or site improvements that cause some
degree of market rejection, resulting in a diminished market value of the property for its originally
intended use. Symptoms of economic obsolescence include excessive vacancies, lack of
maintenance, deterioration, and dilapidation of buildings and site improvements.

Site improvements, including sewer and water lines, public utility lines (gas, electric, and
telephone), roadways, parking areas, parking structures, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, lighting, etc.,
may also evidence obsolescence in terms of their relationship to contemporary development
standards for such improvements. Factors of this type of obsolescence may include inadequate
utility capacities, outdated designs, etc.

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illlinois Page 13
114



Typically, buildings with excessive vacancies or those classified as deteriorating or dilapidated contain
undesirable building and/or site improvement conditions that may be infeasible to cure, resultingin an
accelerated decline in market value. When not corrected, these building and site improvement
deficiencies adversely impact neighboring areas, thereby detracting from the physical, functional, and
economic vitality of the overall area.

T e T {1 e T IT L ey ] e  _  ——ey
T dr i o e R T e T ;

Obsolescence is present throughout the Project Area. The east side of IL Route 12 contains fifteen (15)
commercial and industrial buildings that were constructed roughly between the 1940’s and 1970'’s, and
do not meet current building standards for modern development. Functional obsolescence includes
unclear and unsafe ingress/egress onto IL Route 12, and poor site circulation. Parking is limited and
insufficient for the existing uses (including a car dealership). Loading bays do not meet current
standards for the height of trucks. These buildings were constructed for a specific use and are likely not
suitable for future re-use of the buildings. In addition, building vacancies in this area indicate economic
obsolescence in the marketplace as well.

Therefore, obsolescence is a contributing factor towards designation of the Project Area as a ‘blighted

area.’
Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illinois Page 14

115



Deterioration. With respect to buildings, defects including, but not limited to, major defects in the secondary
building components such as doors, windows, porches, gutters and downspouts, and fascia. With respect to
surface improvements, that the condition of roadways, alleys, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, off-street parking,
and surface storage areas evidence deterioration, including, but not limited to, surface cracking, crumbling,
potholes, depressions, loose paving material, and weeds protruding through paved surfaces.

Deterioration of buildings and surface improvements is present throughout the Project Area. A majority of
the buildings within the Project Area exhibit some level of building deterioration, including cracks in
masonry, damaged windows and doors gutters, roofs, and siding. Deterioration of surface improvements
such as parking areas, fences, sighage and sidewalks, is present throughout the area as well.

The Project Area exhibits significant evidence of deterioration of both structures and surface improvements,
and such deterioration is widely distributed. Deterioration of both buildings and site improvements is a
significant factor towards designation of the Project Area as a ‘blighted area.’

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 15
116



Figure 3 - Building & Site Deterioration

Legend N
- vF Boundary [l Buiding Deterioration Site Deterioration

1inch = 328 feet

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois 117 Page 16



Presence of Structures Below Minimum Code Standards. Structures below minimum code standards include
all structures that do not meet the standards of zoning, subdivision, building, fire, and other governmental
codes applicable to property (but not including housing and property maintenance codes).

Documentation provided by the Village of Fox Lake revealed a total of seventeen (17) code violations within
the Project Area, on seven (7) properties (45% of parcels) within the past five (5) years. Violations include
collection bin, sanitation, sign, inoperable vehicle, WDO, safety, permit, erosion, business license and illegal
fill violations. (Additional code violations are documented the targeted Project Area relating to minor
property maintenance issues but have not been included in this analysis).

# Parcels # Violations

The presence of a significant number of structures below minimum code standards is therefore a
contributing factor towards designation of the Project Area as a ‘blighted area.’

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 17
118



Figure 4 - Code Violations

{_?
\%44 41’5«,\
e
A
oL
A
2
<
w
L)
| Y | ——
HONING ROAD
%%
o —
®° ’

/

.,u.u .
Qs

Legend N

D TIF Boundary | I Code Violations 1inch = 320 feet
Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illinois Page 18

119



Inadequate Utilities. This factor relates to all underground and overhead utilities such as storm sewers and
storm drainage, sanitary sewers, water lines, and gas, telephone, and electrical services that are shown to be
inadequate. Inadequate utilities are those that are: (i) of insufficient capacity to serve the uses in the
redevelopment project area, (i) deteriorated, antiquated, obsolete, or in disrepair, or (iii) lacking within the
redevelopment project area.

Numerous infrastructure issues were identified in the Village’s Comprehensive Development Plan and
Policies Update, adopted in 2012. These infrastructure issues have not yet been addressed and are present
throughout the Route 12 corridor, and significantly impact the Project Area. These documented
infrastructure issues include:

a) Access improvements (defining access points and consolidating points of access) and parkway
enhancements;

b) Right-of-way improvements on Route 12;

c) Improvements to landscaping and landscape buffers;

d) Parking lot improvements;

e) Install/improve/upgrade sidewalks on both sides of Route 12; and

f) Bury above-ground utilities.

Therefore, Inadequate Utilities is a contributing factor towards the designation of the Project Area as a
‘blighted area.’

Lack of Community Planning. The proposed redevelopment project area was developed prior to or without
the benefit or guidance of a community plan. This means that the development occurred prior to the
adoption by the municipality of a comprehensive or other community plan or that the plan was not followed
at the time of the area's development. This factor must be documented by evidence of adverse or
incompatible land use relationships, inadequate street layout, improper subdivision, parcels of inadequate
shape and size to meet contemporary development standards, or other evidence demonstrating an absence
of effective community planning.

The majority of the Highway 12 corridor was developed prior to the Village’s first comprehensive plan (Fox
Lake Master Plan adopted in 2000). Although there is little evidence of incompatible land use relationships,
there are deleterious results of this lack of planning.

The current 2012 Comprehensive Plan establishes key objectives for the Highway 12 Corridor, including:

a) Consolidation and definition of driveways and access points to adjacent properties, taking
advantage of secondary roads to minimize interruptions to through traffic;

b) Incorporate setbacks to provide room for consistent landscape treatments, buffering parking and
storage areas and a sidewalk along the west side;

c) Buffer outdoor storage and utilitarian areas with landscaping, fencing and berms;

d) Adopt an overlay corridor design standard for signs;

e) Uses, architecture and landscaping upon development and redevelopment should be reflective of
the importance of the corridor as a gateway to the community and as the major opportunity to
attract tourists.

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 19
120



Within the Project Area, properties fronting or immediately accessible to Highway 12 were intended to be
developed under commercial zoning only {B-3, B-4, or B-5). The corridor provides access to commercial,
industrial, recreational, and residential uses directly. Uses are generally clustered together, though roadway
patterns and resulting land subdivisions have created a number of irregular lots. Highway 12 in this area
primarily provides direct access to businesses and recreational uses, however, recent planning efforts have
aimed to see commercial redevelopment to better support tourism, especially given the proximity to the
Ben Watts Marina. Commercial development and redevelopment along Highway 12 is constrained by
parcels that are narrow or irregularly shaped, insufficient for appropriate commercial development, and
adjacent to a significant number of industrial uses. Although there is little evidence of incompatible land use
relationships, there are multiple examples of excessive land coverage and deleterious land uses and layout
resulting from this lack of planning.

Therefore, Lack of Planning is a significant contributing factor towards designation of the Project Area as a

‘blighted area.’

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois 121 Page 20



SUMMARY FINDINGS

Based on the findings contained within this Eligibility Report, the Project Area qualifies as both a
‘conservation area’ and a ‘blighted area’ in accordance with the eligibility criteria as established in the Act.

As shown in the summary below, the Project Area qualifies as a “blighted area” meeting five (5) of the
eligibility criteria. As the majority of buildings are in excess of 35 years in age, the Project Area therefore also
qualifies as a ‘conservation area.’

Each of the following factors contributes significantly towards the eligibility of the Project Area. All of these
characteristics point to the need for designation of the Project Area as a Tax Increment Financing District, to
be followed by public intervention in order that redevelopment might occur.

Eligibility Criterion Qualifying Factor

Dilapidation No

Obsolescence YES

Deterioration YES

Illegal Uses No

Below Code Standards YES

Excessive Vacancies No

Lack of Ventilation No

Inadequate Utilities YES

Excessive Land Coverage No

Deleterious Land Use No

Lack of Planning YES

Environmental No

Decline in EAV No

Total 5

Route 12 North TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 21

122



123



ROUTE 12 SOUTH
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA

Redevelopment Plan & Program

Fox Lake, IL

DRAFT REPORT

September 2021




ROUTE 12 SOUTH
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN & PROGRAM

ILLAGE g

DRAFT REPORT
September 2021

Prepared by:
Teska Associates, Inc.

125



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION ..etititeieieetetee e e et e eaiataaseeesammsasasee s s assmansssssenn s e e ee e et eeansnn e e e e s eesseesesmmmneessseesees 3
TaX INCremMent FINANCING ..coovvieeeeee e e st e as s e v s e asaesrsssbesseeeeannseessensseesaenneeesans 4
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA DESCRIPTION . ..uuuiivriietiteettseeeeeeesieaseeseeemnasesssnsnnnsesssssessnsannsssesssses 5
Summary of the Eligibility of the Proposed TIF DiStriCt..........ccveeeoreeeeieeeeeeieeeeeeseeeeeesesenes 9
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PROGRAM ...cuiiiiiiiiieeiiiieeeiee e ee e s e e e ssa s ie e s e s s e e e s aam e seeeseem e esesssns 10
Purpose of the Redevelopment PIan ..........cociriioiioiiiiieeeiee e cne e s enas 10
Redevelopment Plan Goals and OBJECHIVES .........covuiiiiiiiieiiiiiices e eese e 11
Future Land Use Plan .........ccceiiniennnecneenesne e iisvibiaiissiicsiviis sl st 15
Redevelopment OpPOortunity SIES .....eiiiiiei ittt eeeree et e cee e s e s aeeaeessenasensees 16
e 1= 4] o] [l o (o =T O 1 £ OO SRRSO 17
ACQUISIEION AN CIEAIANCE......cocuviretie ettt et etee et et s e e s et s e seae s seaessa st eennaesnnases 18
Land DiSPOSITION ..ceeiutitieeiiiieiie et etee e ctae e e e s ae s baa e e srsse s esssassessecaensesenntassneeeennnen 18
PUDIIC IMPIOVEMENES. ....eitiiieeeie ettt et e et sa e s are s ssteeenaesnseesensanns 18
Phasing Of PrOJECL........cuiecirrein e ceees e e oo o s s e o B S S A e G 19
EStIMAtEd PrOJECt COSES . .eiuurieieeieieetieeastee et es et e e ettt se s s ee e s e snaeesssse s eeneessanesesneseaseens 20
SOUICES Of FUNTS ...ttt e e es e e sa s e eaat e esans et esnnsesearaeereas 21
Nature and Term of Obligations to be ISSUE ..........cccciieciiiiririisieeirie e ssinecceesrsaraeas 22
Initial Equalized Assessed ValUation ...........oocuriiiiiiiisiniinee et eeee e ae e enesaennens 22
Anticipated Equalized Assessed ValUation ...........ccciieeeiiieeccieesireressiee s eessecseseneeeene e 25
Payment in LiGU Of TAXES.....cccvveiiriiieinieieennnneeen s cisenssisssinssssssiivsssissinsis st s i 25
Provision for Amending the Redevelopment Plan and Program.........c.cccovvevivieeneessnssennnn. 25
FINANCIAL IMPACT OF REDEVELOPMENT 11uuvitiiiiuiaseessssiessssssssssseannsnsessasunmsesesssnnnnssesssssssssssmsassessseses 26

FINDINGS OF NEED FOR TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ...ccciiiieiiiiiiiiinreeeaeeeeeeeessessssnsssnnessesesssssnssaneesees 29

Project Area Not Subject to Growth............ ... mssscssimmesesssosessmomss s e s 29
Conformance with Comprehensive PIAn ..o sesesaeese s s s esraea 30
Date Of COMPIBLION ...eetieeiiiee et ers et e e eass e s enns s e snnesens e enneenannesnnes 30

LiST OF FIGURES AND TABLES

Table 1: EXiStING LANG USE ...coiiiieiiiiie ettt sie st e st esseemes s sessaanseseneeen saneenses 5
Table 2: HOUSING UNTES ..coieiiieiionnee e ienecoue s oo it ssie sy s s M e e e sy s - 5
Table 3: Redevelopment Opportunity SiteS....... v eeieieirieiieeesee s erss e reaeesseseseessreessseesseeesseereeenes 16
Table 4: Estimated Redevelopment Project COSES ....iii i ierereeeeeereeeeeeeereeeeeeseseesseesssesssssssssssns 20
Table 5: Equalized Assessed ValUation ...............covisvivsiss issssisiosssnsissssinsssrassssisssonsinsssiiissans sasoias 23
Figure A: Project Area BOUNGANY .......cciiiiiiiiieieieciieeceessee s eesssesssassseesessenansaseesassnseasessneseessnsesseens 6
Figure B: EXiStING LANG USE ....cuuiiii it sctie et eseea s aeserame s s e s saanasaesnbaas s sanssserns arsaesans 7
Figure C: EXisting RESIAENTIAL USES .....eeiiii ittt e e iis s st se e s et e e ae e e en e e s enaeeesrmsneeeeeans 8
Figure D: FUture Land USe PIAn.........c..oiiii ittt ee e e e saeeesescvanbesaeesesesaassreresesessnnnessees 13
Figure E: Redevelopment OpPOrtUNity SIES.......iiiiuieiiiiiiiiiriieiiiinieiiimnessssesesieessaesesseaessaeesssaneseens 14

126



APPENDICES
APPENDIX A: Eligibility Report

APPENDIX B: Legal Description

127



INTRODUCTION

This report documents the Tax Increment Redevelopment Plan and Program (the “Redevelopment
Plan”) for the Village of Fox Lake Route 12 South Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Project
Area (the “Project Area”). The Redevelopment Plan has been prepared for use by the Village of Fox
Lake (the “Village”) by Teska Associates, Inc. The proposed Redevelopment Plan seeks to respond to
a number of deficiencies, challenges and needs within the Project Area, and is indicative of a strong
commitment and desire on the part of the Village to improve and revitalize the Project Area. This
document is intended to provide a framework for improvements and reinvestment within the Project
Area over the next 23 years.

The Village’s current comprehensive plan, which was adopted in 2012, encourages continued
economic development within the Village, and highlights specific recommendations for the Project
Area. The comprehensive plan encourages continued commercial development and redevelopment
along the Route 12 corridor and south Route 12 corridor specifically, as well as infrastructure
improvements throughout the Village.

The Project Area primarily includes the Fox Crossing shopping center and adjacent vacant properties,
which is currently partially developed. Due to the unique nature of this site, and the extraordinary
challenges necessary for redevelopment including issues related to soils that are preventing further
development, the Village is exploring tax increment financing. To this end, the Village retained the
planning consulting firm Teska Associates, Inc. to assist the Village in the creation of a new
Redevelopment Project Area (also referred to as a “TIF district”) covering the Caterpillar site. Teska
has conducted the necessary field surveys, site evaluations, and identified key redevelopment
opportunities and necessary public improvements within the Project Area, and this Redevelopment
Plan summarizes the analyses and findings of the consultant’s work. The Village is entitled to rely on
the findings and conclusions of this Redevelopment Plan in designating the Project Area as a
“redevelopment project area” under the State of Illinois Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment
Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 as amended, the “Act”. Teska has prepared this Redevelopment Plan and
the related Eligibility Study with the understanding that the Village would rely on: (a) the findings
and conclusions of the Redevelopment Plan and associated Eligibility Report in proceeding with the
designation of the Project Area and the adoption and implementation of the Redevelopment Plan;
and (b) the fact that Teska has obtained the necessary information so that the Redevelopment Plan
and the related Eligibility Study will comply with the requirements of the Act.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 3

128



Tax Increment Financing

Tax increment financing is permitted in Illinois under the “Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment
Act” (Chapter 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1, et seq.) of the Illinois Statutes, as amended (hereinafter the "Act").
Only areas which meet certain specifications outlined in the Act are eligible to use this financing
mechanism. In addition to describing the redevelopment objectives, this Redevelopment Plan sets
forth in general terms the overall program to be undertaken to achieve these objectives.

Legend
[ viiage ot Fox Lake
_| Projectarea L

I Buitdiig Footprints A !

The Act permits municipalities to
improve eligible “conservation” or
“blighted” areas in accordance with
an adopted Redevelopment Plan over
a period not to exceed 23 years. The
municipal cost of certain public
improvements and programs can be
repaid with the revenues generated
by increased assessed values of
private real estate within a designated
project area. This taxing power is only
applied to the increase in equalized
assessed valuation generated within
the designated project area during the
limited term of the Redevelopment
Plan, principally increased equalized
assessed valuation from new private
development.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program
Village of Fox Lake, Illinois

129

DRAFT September 2021
Page 4



REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA DESCRIPTION

The boundaries of the Project Area were carefully established in adherence to the eligibility criteria
and include only those parcels which would benefit by the proposed Redevelopment Plan. The
Project Area generally consists of properties located at the northwest corner of IL Route 12 and Big
Hollow Road and consists of fourteen (14) parcels totaling approximately eighty (80) acres. Existing
land uses within the Project Area are illustrated in “Figure B - Existing Land Uses”.

Table 1: Existing Land Use *

Existing Land Use Land Area (Acres)
Commercial 36
Vacant 26
Rights-of-way 18
TOTAL 80
Type Units
Single-Family 0
Multi-Family 0
TOTAL 0

* The intended relocation of ten (10) or more residential units, or the presence of seventy-five (75) or more
residential units requires the preparation of a Housing Impact Study. Therefore, a Housing Impact Study is
not required to be included in this report.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illinois Page 5

130



Figure 1 - Boundary Map

[l | [ I I ’ | "——JEWDRIVE ]—i
0
[
2
¥
s ng
| RS |
B =gy
e, — |
s /f_ e i
= 4 - Ao —1 UNNAMED
. _D_\ ’ UNNAMED
2 i T —
N
é
- (

A

Legend N
TIF Bounda [ TIF P |
- v = T rarcels 1 inch = 355 feet
Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illinois Page 6

131



Figure B - Existing Land Use

N I Y N N S |

BAYVIEW DRIVE

BINERI

| | |
-
4= T
kel ik
e TR J |
y S
] Q S— / UNNAMED
g B i —
A3l
; ST
1 | : 1

v\\.‘:;, :

Legend N
TIF Boundar Commercial | | Vacant
D 4 —‘] L o 1 inch = 355 feet

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illinois Page 7

132



Figure C - Residential Units

L__Ill'. III;J

FRONTAGE ROAD

[
/ N UNNAMED

ki DB
r‘J_\ / UNNAMED
2 . W S _
Az
=
& /
~ ]

A

Legend N
TIF Boundary | Residential
- v[] 1 inch = 355 feet
Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 8

133



Summary of the Eligibility of the Proposed Project Area TIF District

In May of 2020 and again in June of 2021, a study was undertaken, consistent with the Act and
related procedural guidelines, to determine the eligibility of the Project Area. These “Eligibility
Findings” indicate that the proposed Project Area meets the statutory requirements of a “blighted
area” and is therefore eligible for designation as a Redevelopment Project Area as defined in the Act.

As detailed in Appendix A — Tax Increment Financing Eligibility Report of this Redevelopment Plan,
the Project Area is eligible for designation as a “blighted area” due to the predominance and extent
of the following characteristics:

Deterioration

Below code standards

Inadequate utilities

Environmental remediation
Decline in equalized assessed value

R el

In addition, the vacant parcels within the Project Area qualify individually under the vacant land criteria
in the Act, exhibiting the following characteristics:

1. Unused mines/quarries

2. lllegal dumping
Each of these factors contributes significantly to the eligibility of the Project Area as a ‘blighted area.’
These characteristics point towards the need for designation of the Project Area as a “blighted area”
to be followed by public intervention in order that redevelopment might occur.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 9

134



REDEVELOPMENT PLAN & PROGRAM

The revitalization of the Project Area presents challenges and opportunities for the Village of Fox
Lake. The success of this effort will depend upon cooperation between private investment and local
government. Public and private development efforts have not yet been able to stimulate the
comprehensive revitalization of the Project Area. The adoption of this Redevelopment Plan will assist
with the rehabilitation of the existing shopping center and development of undeveloped commercial
properties, as well as implementation of the goals and objectives of the Village’s Comprehensive
Plan, which otherwise could not reasonably be anticipated to occur without the adoption of this
Redevelopment Plan. Through public investment, the area will become more attractive to private
investment.

The Act describes the Redevelopment Plan as “the comprehensive program of the municipality for
development or redevelopment intended by the payment of redevelopment project costs to reduce
or eliminate those conditions, the existence of which qualified the redevelopment project area as a
blighted area or conservation area ..., and thereby serves to enhance the tax bases of the taxing
districts which extend into the redevelopment project area.”

The successful implementation of the Route 12 South Redevelopment Project Area Plan & Program
requires that the Village take full advantage of the real estate tax increment attributed to the Project
Area as provided for by the Act. The Project Area will not reasonably be developed and improved
without the use of such incremental revenues.

Purpose of the Redevelopment Plan

Pursuant to the Act, the purpose of a Redevelopment Plan is to promote the health, safety, morals,
and welfare of the general public by:

< Eradicating blighting conditions and instituting conservation measures;

< Removing and alleviating adverse conditions by encouraging private investment of
underutilized and vacant properties which will strengthen the economy, tax base, business
environment, and living environment;

< Improving existing public utilities and infrastructure within the area; and

< Enhancing the overall quality of the business environment in the Village of Fox Lake.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 10
135



Redevelopment Plan Goals and Objectives

The aim of the Redevelopment Plan is the revitalization of the Project Area as a strong and attractive
commercial center, which will contribute to the health and vitality of the Village of Fox Lake. The
goals and objectives of the Redevelopment Plan include those articulated in the Act, and those stated
in the Village of Fox Lake Comprehensive Plan. The goals and objectives outlined in the
Comprehensive Plan which relate to this Redevelopment Plan are summarized below:

Add value to properties and increase economic viability and opportunities for employment and
shopping, building upon the area’s unique tourism potential. (Page 25)

Recruit more year round businesses to serve residents’ needs and to attract more visitors during the
offseason. (Page 28)

Encourage strip commercial development in centers of unified layout and design. (Page 28)

Mined land should be reclaimed to assure environmental quality and to reestablish the character of
the natural landscape, or redeveloped for appropriate new uses when mining operations are
completed. (Page 28)

As vacant or underutilized parcels are developed, or redeveloped, the uses, architecture and
landscaping should reflect the importance of this corridor as both a gateway to the community and
as Fox Lake’s major opportunity to attract tourists passing through the Village to recreational
destinations in the region. (Page 36)

Institute special taxing districts or service areas, including tax increment financing districts. (Page
117)

Recruit quality developers to implement tourism oriented commercial development and
redevelopment (Page 120)

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Hlinois Page 11

136



: T T
N OO T

LEGEND

= Vilage Limits
| Lakes
: Low Density Resldential
- Commerclal (B2 through B3)

- Industrial/Warehouse/Manulacluring

- Nalural

]

Comprehensive Plan South Central Route 12 Corridor Sub Area

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 12
137



Figure D - Future Land Use

BAYVIEW DRIVE

--—-— FRONTAGE ROAD-

UNNAMED

/ UNNAMED

STANLEY-ROAD --

A

Legend N
TIF Bounda Commercial
D i _ 1 inch = 355 feet

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 13

138



Figure E - Redevelopment Sites

BAYVIEW-DRIVE -
|
[ -
|
|

===
—

|
——

-—- -~ FRONTAGE-ROAD-

|
|

S N\ [ UNNAMED__

S et SO
_I_\_ / UNNAMED
ydr:
_uJ_.I
§I
B /
~1 . |
Legend N
TIF Bound ~ |siteA| |siteB
7 Boundary [ siten [ ste 1 inch = 355 feet
Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illlinois Page 14

139



Future Land Use Plan

The recommended land uses, redevelopment opportunities, and public improvements of this
Redevelopment Plan are based upon the guidelines and development opportunities presented in the
Village of Fox Lake Comprehensive Plan.

The intent of the Future Land Use Plan is to provide a long-range guide for determining the uses to
which the land should eventually be put, and to direct subsequent zoning decisions as
redevelopment occurs within the Project Area. The designation of an existing use as a redevelopment
site is not intended to suggest any immediate requirement for redevelopment. Rather, these sites are
identified as a way of planning for their future redevelopment only if and when a property owner
pursues a development project, or an existing business or resident vacates a property.

The Future Land Use Plan (Figure D) shows anticipated land uses at completion of project activities.
The Fox Crossing shopping center site is anticipated to remain but be rehabilitated/redeveloped for

further commercial developmen. General land use descriptions are as follows:

Commercial

The Commercial category includes commercial uses appropriate for the high-traffic Route 12
corridor, including commercial uses as permitted in the Village of Fox Lake zoning ordinance.
Ancillary uses to the primary commercial use, including parking and open space, is also permitted.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 15

140



Redevelopment Opportunity Sites

The Project Area includes multiple redevelopment opportunity sites, as identified in (Figure E -
Redevelopment Sites). Recommendations for these sites, including land uses, design guidelines, and
conceptual site designs, are derived from the Village’s Comprehensive Plan, and discussions with
Village staff.

Table 3 indicates the potential future opportunity sites, existing land uses, and potential future land
uses. Although the first use is shown on the Future Land Use Plan described in the previous section,
any land use described in Table 3 is appropriate and within the intent of this Redevelopment Plan.

The Redevelopment Plan shall serve as a guideline for the Project Area but is not intended to establish
specific requirements. Adjustments may be made in response to market conditions and other key
factors as long as they remain faithful to the Village’s overall goals and objectives for the Project Area,
and for the Route 12 corridor in general. Therefore, this Redevelopment Plan is consistent with the
Village's Comprehensive Plan and is intended to be a key vehicle for implementing that plan.

Table 3: Redevelopment Opportunity Sites

Site Approx. Area (Acres) Existing Land Use Future Land Use
A 29 Vacant Commercial
B 6.5 Vacant Commercial
Total 35.5

The Village may determine that other redevelopment opportunities, where consistent with the land
use designations on the Future Land Use Plan, are within the intent of this Redevelopment Plan.

As indicated by Figure E, the vacant Project Area parcels are planned for commercial uses. In addition
to these opportunity sites, the Redevelopment Plan also anticipates activities may be undertaken by
the public sector, which are identified in the Public Improvements section of this report. All of these
future redevelopment opportunities and public improvements should be conducted with the
guidance of the Village’s Comprehensive Plan.

Undertaking these redevelopment activities will generate increased tax revenues, encourage ancillary
commercial opportunities, upgrade public improvements such as roadways, parking areas, sidewalks,
etc., and provide a stimulus for additional development in surrounding areas. Through these
improvements, the character and economic viability of the Route 12 corridor will be improved over
time.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, llinois Page 16
141



Eligible Project Costs

Redevelopment project costs mean and include the sum total of all reasonable or necessary costs
incurred or estimated to be incurred, and any such costs incidental to the Redevelopment Plan and
Program. As provided by the Act, other eligible project costs may include, without limitation, the
following:

<

Costs of studies, surveys, development of plans, and specifications, implementation and
administration of the Redevelopment Plan including but not limited to staff and professional
service costs for architectural, engineering, legal, financial, planning or other services;

The cost of marketing sites within the Project Area to prospective businesses, developers, and
investors;

Property assembly costs including, but not limited to, acquisition of land and other property,
real or personal, or rights or interests therein, demolition of buildings, site preparation and site
improvements that serve as an engineered barrier addressing ground level or below ground
environmental contamination, including, but not limited to parking lots and other concrete or
asphalt barriers, and the clearing and grading of land;

Costs of rehabilitation, reconstruction, repair, or remodeling of existing public or private
buildings, fixtures, and leasehold improvements; and the cost of replacing an existing public
building if pursuant to the implementation of a redevelopment project the existing public
building is to be demolished to use the site for private investment or devoted to a different use
requiring private investment;

Costs of the construction of public works or improvements;

Costs of job training and retraining projects, including the cost of “welfare to work” programs
implemented by businesses located within the Project Area, and costs of advanced vocational
education or career education, including but not limited to courses in occupational, semi-
technical or technical fields leading directly to employment, incurred by one or more taxing
districts, as provided in the Act;

Financing costs, including but not limited to, all necessary and incidental expenses related to
the issuance of obligations and which may include payment of interest on any obligations
issued under the Act accruing during the estimated period of construction of any redevelopment
project for which such obligations are issued, and not exceeding 36 months thereafter and
including reasonable reserves related thereto;

To the extent the Village by written agreement accepts and approves the same, all or a portion
of a taxing district’s capital costs resulting from the Redevelopment Project necessarily incurred
or to be incurred within a taxing district in furtherance of the objectives of the Redevelopment
Plan;

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 17

142



< Tothe extent the Village by written agreement accepts and approves the same, an elementary,
secondary, or unit school district’s increased costs attributable to assisted housing units as
provided in the Act;

< Relocation costs to the extent that the Village determines that relocation costs shall be paid or
is required to make payment of relocation costs by Federal or State law;

< Interest cost incurred by a redeveloper related to the construction, renovation or rehabilitation
of a redevelopment project, as provided by the Act.

Acquisition and Clearance

In order to facilitate coordinated redevelopment and meet redevelopment objectives, it may be
necessary for the Village to assemble individual properties into unified sites which can be developed
in their entirety. Any clearance of existing structures will be scheduled to minimize the adverse effects
of rehabilitation or clearance activities.

Land Disposition

Property which may be acquired by the Village may be assembled into appropriate redevelopment
sites. These properties may be sold or leased by the Village to other public bodies or to private
developers, in whole or in part. The Village may in the future modify this disposition plan in
accordance with the objectives of this Redevelopment Plan and Program, without amending the Plan.
Terms of conveyance may be incorporated into appropriate disposition documents or agreements
and may include more specific restrictions than contained in this Redevelopment Plan or in other
municipal codes and ordinances governing the use of the land.

No conveyance, lease, mortgage, disposition of land or other property, or agreement relating to the
development of property will be made except upon the adoption of an ordinance by the Village.

Public Improvements

The Village of Fox Lake will continue to provide public improvements in the Project Area to stimulate
development and redevelopment in a manner consistent with this Redevelopment Plan. Some public
improvements may be provided in partnership with the lllinois Department of Transportation, or
other governmental agencies as applicable. Public improvements may include, but are not limited
to, the following:

< Vacation, removal, resurfacing, widening, reconstruction, and other improvements to rights-of-
way, streets, alleys, bridges, pedestrian ways, and pathways.

< Development of or improvements to public open space.

< Construction of off-street parking facilities and structures.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 18

143



< Improvement of public utilities such as sewer and water lines, electric lines, sidewalks, curbs
and gutters, storm water detention facilities. Such improvement may include relocation and/or
burial of existing overhead lines.

< Demolition and rehabilitation of obsolete structures.

< Beautification and safety improvements, including streetscape, lighting, signage, and
landscaping of public properties.

Public improvement activities which are planned as part of this Redevelopment Plan are based upon
recommendations contained in the Comprehensive Plan and through meetings and conversations
with the Village staff. A summary of recommended public improvements includes the following:

< Access improvements (defining access points and consolidating points of access) and parkway
enhancements;

< Right-of-way improvements on Route 12;

< Improvements to landscaping and landscape buffers;

< Parking lot improvements;

< Install/improve/upgrade sidewalks on both sides of Route 12; and

< Bury above-ground utilities.

The costs associated with the public improvements described in this Redevelopment Plan may be
shared by the Village of Fox Lake, other governmental agencies, and individual developers and
property owners, pursuant to an agreement between the parties. The Village may determine in the
future that certain listed improvements are no longer needed or appropriate and may remove them
from the list or may add new improvements to the list which are consistent with the objectives of this
Redevelopment Plan. Such additions shall not require plan amendment provided they are for eligible
public improvements and will not require an increase to the total estimated project costs in Table 4.

Phasing of Project

Redevelopment projects anticipated in this Plan may commence immediately. Most of the
development and redevelopment projects are anticipated to be completed within twenty-three (23)
years. Facade improvements, building rehabilitations, and other activities on individual properties
will be encouraged throughout the life of the TIF. The Village may undertake additional public
improvements or development projects as appropriate throughout the life of the Redevelopment Plan
and Program,

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois g Page 19

144



Estimated Project Costs

Estimated public project costs are listed in Table 4. These costs are based on 2020 dollars and are
therefore subject to inflation. Increases in estimated Total Redevelopment Project Costs of more than
five percent (5%), after adjustment for inflation from the date of the Redevelopment Plan adoption,
are subject to amendment procedures as provided under the Act.

Table 4: Estimated Redevelopment Project Costs

Category Cost

Property Assembly including Acquisition, Site Preparation and

Demolition, Environmental Remediation 00000

Environmental, market and planning studies, surveys, development
of engineering and architectural plans, specifications, $500,000
implementation and administration fees

Rehabilitation, reconstruction, repair, or remodeling of existing

public or private buildings and fixtures ETURY
Construction or improvement of public improvements (1) $1,750,000
Job training/retraining and relocation costs $100,000
Developer Interest Costs, taxing districts eligible reimbursement $150,000
and capital costs

Total Estimated Project Costs (2) (3) $7,000,000

(1) Public improvements may also include capital costs of taxing districts and other costs allowable under the Act.
Specifically, public improvements as identified in the Redevelopment Plan and as allowable under the Act may be
made to property and facilities owned or operated by the Village or other public entities. As provided in the Act,
Redevelopment Project Costs may include, to the extent the Village by written agreement accepts and approves the
same, all or a portion of a taxing district’s capital costs resulting from the redevelopment project necessarily incurred
or to be incurred within a taxing district in furtherance of the objectives of the Redevelopment Plan.

(2) Actual costs for each category identified above may vary provided that the total estimated project costs may not be
exceeded by more than 5%, after adjustment for inflation, without amendment to this Redevelopment Plan.

(3) This table does not include costs associated with the issuance of municipal obligations, capitalized interest,
reimbursement for a portion of privately issued obligations, financing costs during construction (not to exceed 36
months), or other eligible project costs. Such additional costs may or may not be incurred and cannot be estimated

at this time.
Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 20

145



Sources of Funds

The Act provides a way for municipalities to finance public redevelopment costs with incremental
real estate tax revenues. Incremental tax revenue is derived from the increase in the current equalized
assessed valuation (EAV) of real property within the Project Area over and above the certified initial
EAV of the real property. Any increase in EAV is then multiplied by the current tax rate, resulting in
the tax increment revenue.

Funds necessary to pay redevelopment project costs may be derived from a number of authorized
sources. These may include, but are not limited to, the following:

< Real property tax increment revenues from the Project Area;

< Tax revenues resulting from the establishment of any Special Service Area districts within the
Project Area;

< Interest earned on temporary investments;

< Gifts, grants, and contributions;

< Sale or lease of land proceeds;

< User fees;

< Transfer from a contiguous redevelopment project area created under the Act.

The principal source of funds to undertake redevelopment activities will be the incremental increase
in real property taxes attributable to the increase in the equalized assessed value of each taxable lot,
block, tract or parcel of real property in the Project Area over the initial equalized assessed value of
each such lot, block, tract or parcel. There may also be other eligible local sources of revenue, such
as the sale or lease of Village owned property, that the Village determines are appropriate to allocate
to the payment of redevelopment project costs.

The Village may utilize net incremental property taxes received from the Project Area to pay eligible
Redevelopment Project Costs, or obligations issued to pay such costs, in other contiguous
redevelopment project areas, or those obligations issued to pay such costs, in other contiguous
redevelopment project areas, or those separated only by a public right-of-way, and vice versa. The
amount of revenue from the Project Area, made available to support such contiguous redevelopment
project areas, or those separated only by a public right-of-way, when added to all amounts used to
pay eligible Redevelopment Project Costs with the Project Area, shall not at any time exceed the total
Redevelopment Project Costs described in the Plan.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 21

146



Nature and Term of Obligations to be Issued

The financial plan of this Redevelopment Plan is intended to establish a conservative public
expenditure approach. Revenues will be accumulated in the special tax allocation fund to pay for
public purpose expenditures identified in this Redevelopment Plan, and whenever practical,
expenditures will be made on a cash basis. This method of financing shall not preclude the Village
from undertaking initiatives designed to stimulate appropriate private investment within the Project
Area.

Certain redevelopment projects may be of such a scale or on such a time-table as to preclude
financing on a cash basis. These projects may be funded by the use of tax increment revenue
obligations issued pursuant to the Act for a term not to exceed twenty (20) years. Consistent with the
conservative nature of the financial plan for this Redevelopment Program, the highest priority for the
issuance of tax increment revenue obligations shall occur when the commitment is in place for
private sector investment necessary to fund the amortization of such obligations.

All obligations are to be covered after issuance by projected and actual tax increment revenues and
by such debt service reserved and sinking funds as may be provided by ordinance. Revenues not
required for the retirement of obligations providing for reserves, sinking funds, and anticipated
redevelopment project costs may be declared surplus and become available for distribution annually
to the taxing districts within the Project Area.

One or more issues of obligations may be sold at one or more times in order to implement this plan,
as now or hereafter amended, in accordance with law.

The Village may, by ordinance, in addition to obligations secured by the special tax allocation fund
provided by law, pledge for a period not greater than the term of the obligations any part or any
combination of the following:

< Net revenues of all or part of a Redevelopment Project,

< The full faith and credit of the municipality.

< A mortgage on part or all of a Redevelopment Project.

< Any other taxes or anticipated receipts that the municipality may lawfully pledge.

Initial Equalized Assessed Valuation

Table 5 lists the equalized assessed valuation of properties in the Project Area. The total 2020 equalized
assessed valuation of the Project Area is $3,022,969.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illlinois Page 22

147



Table 5: Project Area Equalized Assessed Valuation (2020)

05-22-102-004 $32,742

05-22-102-010 $41,880
05-22-102-011 $44,416
05-22-102-012 $74,384
05-22-102-013 $903,820
05-22-102-003 $261,186
05-22-200-060 $32,002
05-22-200-061 $38,234
05-22-102-014 $1,063,832
05-22-102-005 $63,229
05-22-102-006 $91,998
05-22-102-007 $342,117
05-22-201-026 $20,385
05-22-200-062 $12,744
TOTAL $3,022,969

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois

148

DRAFT September 2021
Page 23



Anticipated Equalized Assessed Valuation

Upon the completion of anticipated redevelopment projects, it is estimated that the equalized
assessed valuation of real property within the Project Area will be approximately $5,471,909
. This figure is based upon estimates of value for the anticipated rehabilitation and redevelopment
projects described in this report.

Payment in Lieu of Taxes

No payments in lieu of taxes are anticipated as part of the Redevelopment Plan and Program.

Provision for Amending the Redevelopment Plan and Program

The Redevelopment Plan and Program may be amended pursuant to provisions of the Act.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illinois Page 24

149



FINANCIAL IMPACT OF REDEVELOPMENT

Without the adoption of the Redevelopment Plan, development and redevelopment projects within
the Project Area are not reasonably expected to be undertaken by private enterprise. In the absence
of Village-sponsored redevelopment, there is a prospect that blighting factors will continue to exist
and spread, and the Project Area on the whole, as well as adjacent properties, will become less
attractive for the maintenance and improvement of existing buildings and sites. Erosion of the
assessed valuation of property in the Project Area has already occurred and could lead to further
reductions of real estate tax revenue to all taxing districts.

Implementation of the Redevelopment Plan is expected to have significant short and long term
positive financial impacts on the taxing districts affected by this Redevelopment Plan. In the short
term, the Village’s effective use of tax increment financing can be expected to arrest the ongoing
decline of existing assessed values in the Project Area, thereby stabilizing the existing tax base for
local taxing agencies. In the long term, after the completion of all redevelopment improvements and
activities, and the payment of all redevelopment project costs and municipal obligations, the taxing
districts will benefit from the enhanced tax base which results from the increase in equalized assessed
valuation caused by the Redevelopment Plan and Program.

The following taxing districts cover the proposed Project Area:

Village of Fox Lake

Grant Township

Lake County

Lake County Forest Preserve

Fox Lake Fire Protection

Fox Lake Public Library

Fox Lake School District #114

Grant Community High School District #124
College of Lake County #532

(O C2 il o] o e uCs 1) =

This Redevelopment Plan contemplates rehabilitation and/or redevelopment of specific opportunity
sites primarily with commercial uses. Given the small size of the study area (roughly 41 acres),
impact on individual taxing districts and taxing districts in general, will be limited but also dependent
on the specific nature of any future (re)developments.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 25

150



Impact on Village of Fox Lake

Fox Lake provides a variety of services, including planning and zoning, building, water, and
sanitation. The replacement of underutilized property with new development and redevelopment
may cause a minimal increase in demand for the services and programs provided by the Village. Due
to the small size of the Project Area in relation to the Village, services provided to residents will likely
not be affected, and the impact is anticipated to be minimal. Therefore, no specific program is set
forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on Grant Township

Grant Township provides a variety of services, including the Township Assessor and road
maintenance. The replacement of underutilized commercial property with new development and
redevelopment should have no impact on the demand for the services and programs provided by the
Township. No Township roads are included within the Project Area. Due to the small size of the
Project Area in relation to the Township, services provided to residents will not be affected, and any
impact is anticipated to be minimal. Therefore, no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment
Plan.

Impact on Lake County

Lake County provides a variety of services, including the County Court system, health services and
maintenance of open space and recreational activities. The replacement of underutilized property
with new development and redevelopment may cause a minimal increase in demand for the services
and programs provided by the County. Due to the small size of the Project Area in relation to the
County, services provided to residents will likely not be affected, and the impact is anticipated to be
minimal. Therefore, no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on Lake County Forest Preserve

The Lake County Forest Preserve District manages natural areas, open spaces, and provides
educational and recreational opportunities for residents of Lake County. The replacement of
underutilized commercial property with new commercial development and redevelopment should
have no impact on demand for the services and programs provided by the forest preserve. Therefore,
no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on Fox Lake Fire Protection

The Oswego Fire Protection District serves Fox Lake and surrounding communities. The replacement
of underutilized property with new commercial development and redevelopment may cause a
minimal increased demand for the services and programs provided by the fire district, however any
impact is anticipated to be minimal. Therefore, no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment
Plan.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 26

151



Impact on Fox Lake Library District

The Fox Lake Library District is located on Grand Avenue and provides library and related services
to the residents of Fox Lake. The replacement of underutilized commercial property with new
development and redevelopment will have no impact on demand for the services and programs
provided by the library district. Therefore, no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment
Plan. In addition, the Act defines a clear formula for repayment of fees to the district for any
documented increased demand for services directly generated by TIF supported projects. Therefore,
no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on Fox Lake School District #114

Fox Lake School District #114 provides elementary school services to the residents of Fox Lake. The
replacement of underutilized commercial property with new development and redevelopment
should have little impact on the demand for the services and programs provided by the school district,
aside from potential programs such as training programs to serve new businesses and educational
services for new employees. However, any impact is anticipated to be minimal given the commercial
nature of anticipated future development. In addition, the Act defines a clear formula for repayment
of fees to the district for any documented increased demand for services directly generated by TIF
supported projects. Therefore, no specific program is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on Grant Community High School District #124

Grant Community High School District #124 provides elementary school services to the residents of
Fox Lake, Ingleside, Lake Villa, Round Lake, Round Lake Heights, Round Lake Beach, Volo,
Lakemoor, and Spring Grove. The replacement of underutilized commercial property with new
development and redevelopment should have little impact on the demand for the services and
programs provided by the school district, aside from potential programs such as training programs to
serve new businesses and educational services for new employees. However, any impact is
anticipated to be minimal given the commercial nature of anticipated future development. In
addition, the Act defines a clear formula for repayment of fees to the district for any documented
increased demand for services directly generated by TIF supported projects. Therefore, no specific
program is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Impact on College of Lake County #532

The College of Lake County has campuses in Grayslake, Lakeshore and Southlake. The college offers
educational and community programs for residents of the district. The replacement of underutilized
commercial property with new commercial development and redevelopment may cause a small
increase to demand for the services and programs provided by the college, including training
programs to serve new businesses and educational services for new employees. However, any impact
is anticipated to be minimal given the commercial nature of anticipated future development, and the
small size of the Project Area in comparison to the size of the district. Therefore, no specific program
is set forth in this Redevelopment Plan.

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 27

152



FINDINGS OF NEED FOR TAX INCREMENT FINANCING

Based on the findings of this Redevelopment Plan and Program, the Village President and the Village
Board of Fox Lake, Illinois, adopt the following findings pursuant to Section 11-74.4-3(n) of the Act.

Project Area Not Subject to Growth

The Project Area on the whole has not been subject to growth and development through investment
by private enterprise and would not reasonably be anticipated to be developed without adoption of
this Redevelopment Plan. Substantial evidence supports this conclusion.

First, the Village finds that the Project Area on the whole has not been subject to growth and
redevelopment through investment by private enterprise, based on the following evidence as outlined
in the Eligibility Findings Report in Appendix A:

Obsolescence
Deterioration

Below Code Standards
Inadequate Utilities
Lack of planning

S B 1 =

In addition, the vacant parcels within the Project Area qualify individually under the vacant land criteria
in the Act, exhibiting the following characteristics:

1. Unused mines/quarries
2. lllegal dumping

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 28

153



Secondly, the Village finds that the Project Area would not reasonably be anticipated to be developed
without adoption of this Redevelopment Plan. This conclusion is based upon the findings of this
report and the Village of Fox Lake Comprehensive Plan:

1. Extraordinary development costs related to poor soil quality;
Proposed redevelopment sites indicate a financial gap without public resources, grants or
other incentives to promote redevelopment;

3. The need for public — private partnerships to support future redevelopment; and

4. The need for future infrastructure improvements to support future redevelopment.

Therefore, the Village of Fox Lake finds that the Project Area is not subject to appropriate growth and
development and is not anticipated to be developed without adoption of this Redevelopment Plan.

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan

This Redevelopment Plan conforms to and is based upon the recommendations of the Village of Fox
Lake Comprehensive Plan, including the goals and objectives therein, as well as future land uses and
anticipated redevelopment activities.

Date of Completion

The Redevelopment Project shall be completed, and all obligations issued to finance redevelopment
costs shall be retired, no later than December 31 of the year in which the payment to the municipal
treasurer as provided in the Act is to be made with respect to ad valorem taxes levied in the twenty-
third (23 calendar year following the year in which the ordinance approving this Project Area is
adopted (December 31, 2045).

Route 12 South TIF Redevelopment Plan & Program DRAFT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 29

154



ROUTE 12 SOUTH
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA
ELIGIBILITY REPORT

GILLAGE gp

DRAFT REPORT
September 2021

Prepared by:
Teska Associates, Inc.

155



Table of Contents

INErOTUCHION iusiivssisisssssivessvnmiassansisssinsniese s Frerite s s s ssresesmss ar e PSS AN SO SR s eSS RO A SRS E NS Mo OB 2
Tax INCremMent FINANCING ...oocie et eeiiies ittt sttt ssssssssneserbas e s rr s s s s s s esee s aesassaneesses s eassaenan s eesstneebbbnnesnssesbesesn 3
Description of the ProjEct Area .......ciuiieiiiiisieie e sietie et s e ass bbb e e b e as bbb 9
Project Area ClassifiCatioN ......... uusisecsssmaisiaiois e s asiionss e s oo se5e s i sonssssdssns dsasnbonsosionsoraa s 11
oY= o1 TRV AT Y= OSSP 13
SUMMEATY FINOINES ...ttt st e b e s s se s s s s e s s eb b een e b e e asen e e e san e b s e n e s aab san et s 21
EXHIBITS
1. BOUNAIY MAP toveeeueeeeeanenes oo oo siss S5a5sa a6 e S0 s s SRS RS E SO SH OOV S i s s 10
2. AZE OF BUIIJINGS ...oeieeiiiiriiiiinciisise st isae e s ea s e et s b bbb s ee s e b sas bt eanebannas 12
3. Building & Site Deterioration .......cccciiiieiiiiiinicisisisisisis s sssss e e sssss s sr s assssnsbeanssesssnsrasnas 16
A, COOR VIOIALIONS v sinne e i bt s e S S A 4 T G G S S S S ¥ 18
Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 1

156



INTRODUCTION

In order to encourage redevelopment, the Village of Fox Lake (the “Village”) is investigating the creation of a
Redevelopment Project Area (the “Project Area”) for property located on IL Route 12. The Project Area is
located at the northwest corner of IL Route 12 and Big Hollow Road and includes the Fox Lake Crossing
shopping center.

The purpose of this Eligibility Report is to document the eligibility criteria as required by the Tax Increment
Allocation Redevelopment Act (65 ILCS 5/11 - 74.4 - 1, et seq.) as amended (the “Act”). The following analysis
documents the presence of eligibility criteria necessary for designation as a TIF District, as required in the
Act.

Tax increment financing can be used to make the designated Project Area more attractive for
redevelopment by eliminating the conditions which inhibit private investment, weaken the Village’s tax
base, affect the safety of community residents, and hinder the Village’s ability to promote cohesive
development of compatible land uses as articulated in the Village’s Comprehensive Plan. In accordance with
the TIF Act, public improvements may be constructed, and incentives provided to encourage the type of
private investment that will allow the Village to achieve its vision and goals.

Establishing the Route 12 South Redevelopment Project Area can help the Village to meet these goals by
facilitating physical improvements, removing blighting conditions, and providing funding sources for
improvement projects within the Project Area. These improvements will not only help improve the physical
conditions and economic development of the Project Area, but also enhance the quality of life of adjacent
properties and neighborhoods, and for all residents of the Village of Fox Lake as a whole.

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 2
157



TAX INCREMENT FINANCING

The Act stipulates specific procedures which must be adhered to in designating a Redevelopment Project
Area, as well as amendments thereto. The following terms referenced in this Eligibility Report are defined in
the Act as follows:

A “Redevelopment Project Area” is defined as:

“ .an area designated by the municipality, which is not less in the aggregate than 125 acres and in respect to
which the municipality has made a finding that there exist conditions which cause the area to be classified as
an industrial park conservation area, or a blighted area or a conservation area, or a combination of both
blighted areas and conservation areas.”

A “Blighted Area” is defined as:

“.any improved or vacant area within the boundaries of a redevelopment project area located within the

territorial limits of the municipality where:

1. Ifimproved, industrial, commercial, and residential buildings or improvements are detrimental to the
public safety, health, or welfare because of a combination of 5 or more of the following factors, each of
which is (i) present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful extent so that a municipality may
reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of the Act and (ii) reasonable
distributed throughout the improved part of the redevelopment project area:

A. Dilapidation. An advanced state of disrepair or neglect of necessary repairs to the primary structural
components of buildings or improvements in such a combination that a documented building
condition analysis determines that major repair is required or the defects are so serious and so
extensive that the buildings must be removed.

B. Obsolescence. The condition or process of falling into disuse. Structures have become ill-suited for
the original use.

C. Deterioration. With respect to buildings, defects including, but not limited to, major defects in the
secondary building components such as doors, windows, porches, gutters and downspouts, and
fascia. With respect to surface improvements, that the condition of roadways, alleys, curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, off-street parking, and surface storage areas evidence deterioration, including, but not
limited to, surface cracking, crumbling, potholes, depressions, loose paving material, and weeds
protruding through paved surfaces.

D. Presence of structures below minimum code standards. All structures that do not meet the standards
of zoning, subdivision, building, fire, and other governmental codes applicable to property, but not
including housing and property maintenance codes.

E. lllegal use of individual structures. The use of structures in violation of applicable federal, State, or
local laws, exclusive of those applicable to the presence of structures below minimum code
standards.

F. Excessive vacancies. The presence of buildings that are unoccupied or under-utilized and that
represent an adverse influence on the area because of the frequency, extent, or duration of the
vacancies.

G. Lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities. The absence of adequate ventilation for light or air
circulation in spaces or rooms without windows, or that require the removal of dust, odor, gas,
smoke, or other noxious airborne materials. Inadequate natural light and ventilation means the
absence of skylights or windows for interior spaces or rooms and improper window sizes and

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 3

158



amounts by room area to window area ratios. Inadequate sanitary facilities refers to the absence or
inadequacy of garbage storage and enclosure, bathroom facilities, hot water and kitchens, and
structural inadequacies preventing ingress and egress to and from all rooms and units within a
building.

H. Inadequate utilities. Underground and overhead utilities such as storm sewers and storm drainage,
sanitary sewers, water lines, and gas, telephone, and electrical services that are shown to be
inadequate. Inadequate utilities are those that are: (i) of insufficient capacity to serve the uses in the
redevelopment project area, (ii) deteriorated, antiquated, obsolete, or in disrepair, or (iii) lacking
within the redevelopment project area.

I Excessive land coverage and overcrowding of structures and community facilities. The over-intensive
use of property and the crowding of buildings and accessory facilities onto a site. Examples of
problem conditions warranting the designation of an area as one exhibiting excessive land coverage
are: (i) the presence of buildings either improperly situated on parcels or located on parcels of
inadequate size and shape in relation to present-day standards of development for health and safety
and (i) the presence of multiple buildings on a single parcel. For there to be a finding of excessive
land coverage, these parcels must exhibit one or more of the following conditions: insufficient
provision for light and air within or around buildings, increased threat of spread of fire due to the
close proximity of buildings, lack of adequate or proper access to a public right-of-way, lack of
reasonably required off-street parking, or inadequate provision for loading and service.

J. Deleterious land use or layout. The existence of incompatible land-use relationships, buildings
occupied by inappropriate mixed-uses, or uses considered to be noxious, offensive, or unsuitable for
the surrounding area.

K. Environmental clean-up. The proposed redevelopment project area has incurred illinois
Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental Protection Agency remediation
costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant recognized as having expertise in
environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-up of hazardous waste, hazardous
substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or federal law, provided that the
remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the development or redevelopment of the
redevelopment project area.

L. Lack of community planning. The proposed redevelopment project area was developed prior to or
without the benefit or guidance of a community plan. This means that the development occurred
prior to the adoption by the municipality of a comprehensive or other community plan or that the
plan was not followed at the time of the area's development. This factor must be documented by
evidence of adverse or incompatible land use relationships, inadequate street layout, improper
subdivision, parcels of inadequate shape and size to meet contemporary development standards, or
other evidence demonstrating an absence of effective community planning.

M. The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for 3 of
the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated or is
increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5
calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than
the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of
Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the
redevelopment project area is designated.

2. Ifvacant, the sound growth of the redevelopment project area is impaired by a combination of 2 or more
of the following factors, each of which is (i) present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful
extent so that a municipality may reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of
the Act and (ii) reasonably distributed throughout the vacant part of the redevelopment project area to
which it pertains:

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illinois Page 4
159



A. Obsolete platting of vacant land that results in parcels of limited or narrow size or configurations of
parcels of irregular size or shape that would be difficult to develop on a planned basis and in a
manner compatible with contemporary standards and requirements, or platting that failed to create
rights-of-ways for streets or alleys or that created inadequate right-of way widths for streets, alleys,
or other public rights-of-way or that omitted easements for public utilities.

B. Diversity of ownership of parcels of vacant land sufficient in number to retard or impede the ability
to assemble the land for development.

C. Tax and special assessment delinquencies exist or the property has been the subject of tax sales
under the Property Tax Code within the last 5 years.

D. Deterioration of structures or site improvements in neighboring areas adjacent to the vacant land.

E. The area has incurred lllinois Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental
Protection Agency remediation costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant
recognized as having expertise in environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-
up of hazardous waste, hazardous substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or
federal law, provided that the remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the
development or redevelopment of the redevelopment project area.

F. Thetotal equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for 3 of
the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated or is
increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5
calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than
the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of
Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the
redevelopment project area is designated.

3. If vacant, the sound growth of the redevelopment project area is impaired by one of the following
factors that (i) is present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful extent so that a municipality
may reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of the Act and (ii) is reasonably
distributed throughout the vacant part of the redevelopment project area to which it pertains:

A. The area consists of one or more unused quarries, mines, or strip mine ponds.

B. The area consists of unused rail yards, rail tracks, or railroad rights-of-way.

C. The area, prior to its designation, is subject to (i) chronic flooding that adversely impacts on real
property in the area as certified by a registered professional engineer or appropriate regulatory
agency or (ii) surface water that discharges from all or a part of the area and contributes to flooding
within the same watershed, but only if the redevelopment project provides for facilities or
improvements to contribute to the alleviation of all or part of the flooding.

D. The area consists of an unused or illegal disposal site containing earth, stone, building debris, or
similar materials that were removed from construction, demolition, excavation, or dredge sites. Prior
to November 1, 1999, the area is not less than 50 nor more than 100 acres and 75% of which is
vacant (notwithstanding that the area has been used for commercial agricultural purposes within 5
years prior to the designation of the redevelopment project area), and the area meets at least one of
the factors itemized in paragraph (1) of this subsection, the area has been designated as a town or
village center by ordinance or comprehensive plan adopted prior to January 1, 1982, and the area
has not been developed for that designated purpose.

E. The area qualified as a blighted improved area immediately prior to becoming vacant, unless there
has been substantial private investment in the immediately surrounding area.”

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 5

160



A “Conservation Area” is defined as:

“...any improved area within the boundaries of a redevelopment project area located within the territorial
limits of the municipality in which 50% or more of the structures in the area have an age of 35 years or more.
Such an area is not yet a blighted area, but because of a combination of 3 or more of the following factors:
dilapidation; obsolescence; deterioration; presence of structures below minimum code standards; illegal use
of individual structures; excessive vacancies; lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities; inadequate
utilities; excessive land coverage and overcrowding of structures and community facilities; deleterious land
use or layout; lack of community planning; environmental remediation costs impede development; decline or
minimal marginal increase in equalized assessed valuation; is detrimental to the public safety, health,
morals, or welfare and such an area may become a blighted area:

A. Dilapidation. An advanced state of disrepair or neglect of necessary repairs to the primary structural
components of buildings or improvements in such a combination that a documented building
condition analysis determines that major repair is required or the defects are so serious and so
extensive that the buildings must be removed.

B. Obsolescence. The condition or process of falling into disuse. Structures have become ill-suited for
the original use.

C. Deterioration. With respect to buildings, defects including, but not limited to, major defects in the
secondary building components such as doors, windows, porches, gutters and downspouts, and
fascia. With respect to surface improvements, that the condition of roadways, alleys, curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, off-street parking, and surface storage areas evidence deterioration, including, but not
limited to, surface cracking, crumbling, potholes, depressions, loose paving material, and weeds
protruding through paved surfaces.

D. Presence of structures below minimum code standards. All structures that do not meet the standards
of zoning, subdivision, building, fire, and other governmental codes applicable to property, but not
including housing and property maintenance codes.

E. lllegal use of individual structures. The use of structures in violation of applicable federal, State, or
local laws, exclusive of those applicable to the presence of structures below minimum code
standards.

F. Excessive vacancies. The presence of buildings that are unoccupied or under-utilized and that
represent an adverse influence on the area because of the frequency, extent, or duration of the
vacancies.

G. Lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities. The absence of adequate ventilation for light or air
circulation in spaces or rooms without windows, or that require the removal of dust, odor, gas,
smoke, or other noxious airborne materials. Inadequate natural light and ventilation means the
absence of skylights or windows for interior spaces or rooms and improper window sizes and
amounts by room area to window area ratios. Inadequate sanitary facilities refers to the absence or
inadequacy of garbage storage and enclosure, bathroom facilities, hot water and kitchens, and
structural inadequacies preventing ingress and egress to and from all rooms and units within a
building.

H. Inadequate utilities. Underground and overhead utilities such as storm sewers and storm drainage,
sanitary sewers, water lines, and gas, telephone, and electrical services that are shown to be
inadequate. Inadequate utilities are those that are: (i) of insufficient capacity to serve the uses in the
redevelopment project area, (ii) deteriorated, antiquated, obsolete, or in disrepair, or (iii) lacking
within the redevelopment project area.

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 6
161



. Excessive land coverage and overcrowding of structures and community facilities. The over-intensive
use of property and the crowding of buildings and accessory facilities onto a site. Examples of
problem conditions warranting the designation of an area as one exhibiting excessive land coverage
are: (i) the presence of buildings either improperly situated on parcels or located on parcels of
inadequate size and shape in relation to present-day standards of development for health and safety
and (ii) the presence of multiple buildings on a single parcel. For there to be a finding of excessive
land coverage, these parcels must exhibit one or more of the following conditions: insufficient
provision for light and air within or around buildings, increased threat of spread of fire due to the
close proximity of buildings, lack of adequate or proper access to a public right-of-way, lack of
reasonably required off-street parking, or inadequate provision for loading and service.

J. Deleterious land use or layout. The existence of incompatible land-use relationships, buildings
occupied by inappropriate mixed-uses, or uses considered to be noxious, offensive, or unsuitable for
the surrounding area.

K. Environmental clean-up. The proposed redevelopment project area has incurred lIllinois
Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental Protection Agency remediation
costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant recognized as having expertise in
environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-up of hazardous waste, hazardous
substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or federal law, provided that the
remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the development or redevelopment of the
redevelopment project area.

L. Lack of community planning. The proposed redevelopment project area was developed prior to or
without the benefit or guidance of a community plan. This means that the development occurred
prior to the adoption by the municipality of a comprehensive or other community plan or that the
plan was not followed at the time of the area's development. This factor must be documented by
evidence of adverse or incompatible land use relationships, inadequate street layout, improper
subdivision, parcels of inadequate shape and size to meet contemporary development standards, or
other evidence demonstrating an absence of effective community planning.

M. The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for 3 of
the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated or is
increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5
calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than
the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of
Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the
redevelopment project area is designated.”

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 7

162



This Eligibility Report summarizes the analyses and findings of the Village’s planning consultant, Teska
Associates, Inc. (“Teska”). Determination of eligibility of the proposed Project Area is based on a comparison
of data gathered through field observations by Teska Associates, Inc., document and archival research, and
information obtained from the Village of Fox Lake and Lake County, Illinois against the eligibility criteria set
forth in the Act.

Teska has prepared this report with the understanding that the Village would rely on:

1. Thefindings and conclusions of this report in proceeding with the designation of the Project Area as
a Redevelopment Project Area under the requirements of the Act; and

2. Thefact that Teska has obtained the necessary information to conclude that the Project Area can be
designated as a Redevelopment Project Area in compliance with the Act.

The Route 12 South Project Area is eligible for designation as a Redevelopment Project Area based on the
predominance and extent of parcels exhibiting the following primary characteristics:

Deterioration

Below code standards

Inadequate utilities

Environmental remediation
Decline in equalized assessed value

G e L0 =

In addition, the vacant parcels within the Project Area qualify individually under the vacant land criteria in
the Act, exhibiting the following characteristics:

1. Unused mines/quarries
2. lllegal dumping

Each of these factors contributes significantly towards the eligibility of the Project Area as a whole.

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Hlinois Page 8
163



DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT AREA

The Project Area contains four (4) buildings on fourteen (14) parcels, consisting of approximately eighty (80)
acres. Existing structures within the Project Area include Fox Lake Crossing shopping center, Bank of
America, Dollar Tree and Merlin Complete Auto Care. The remaining ten (10) parcels are vacant and/or
undeveloped land. The Project Area meets the minimum area requirement of one and a half (1.5) acres.
“Figure 1” illustrates the exact boundaries of the Project Area.

Legend

[} vitiage of Fox Lake
[ ]ProjectArea N

B buiiding Footprints

1 Sl

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 9

164



Figure 1 - Boundary Map

(S N Y S

BAYVIEW DRIVE \
z
&
| 2 \"
2

=]
|

\

FRONTAGE ROAD

12
12

N UNNAMED
izl D A
| e UNNAMED
g
/ £
]
-
B
~ |
Legend N
TIF Bounda TIF Parcels
- ry [ 1 inch = 355 feet
Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 10

165



PROJECT AREA CLASSIFICATION

Teska conducted a field survey of every property located within the Project Area. Based on an inspection of
the exteriors of buildings and grounds, field notes were taken to record the condition for each building and
parcel. This survey originally occurred in May 2020 and was confirmed again in June 2021. Photographs
further document the observed conditions. Field observations were supplemented with information
provided by Village of Fox Lake and Lake County officials.

In order to be designated as a ‘blighted area,” a combination of at least five (5) blighting factors outlined in
the Act must be present to a meaningful extent and reasonably distributed throughout the Project Area. In
order to be designated as a ‘conservation area,’ at least 50% of the structures must be 35 years or more in
age and a combination of at least three (3) of the blighting factors must be present. Vacant land is evaluated
under separate criteria for unimproved property.

Age of Buildings

Based on field analysis and historical records provided by the Village of Fox Lake and Lake County, the
Project Area does not meet the threshold for a ‘conservation area’ as 50% or more of the structures within
these areas are not 35 years in age or older. Building age was determined by field observations of building
construction methods and confirmed (where available) through the Lake County Assessor website
(https://www.lakecountyil.gov/). The Project Area does not meet the statutory requirement that at least

50% of the buildings in a ‘conservation area’ be 35 years of age or older.

# Structures # Over 35 Years % Over 35 Years

4 0 0%

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lilinois Page 11

166



Figure 2 - Building Age & Vacant Land

1l Jer JL 1|

BAYVIEW DRIVE

NI
A

——— / by

FRONTAGE ROAD

12
12

/ \_ UNNAMED

'_J / UNNAMED

STANLEY ROAD

7 ‘
Legend N
n‘nF Boundary :I Building Age Over 35 Years [:] Improved Parcels |____1 Vacant Parcels 1 inch = 355 feet
Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 12

167



ELIGIBILITY FINDINGS

The Project Area contains the Ben Watts Marina and nearby commercial properties. A majority of the
structures are over 35 years in age, as shown on Figure 2 — Age of Buildings. The Project Area meets the age
qualification for a “conservation area” as defined in the Act. In addition to building age, the presence of
three (3) eligibility factors are required for designation as a conservation area and five (5) eligibility factors
are required for designation as a blighted area. Relevant eligibility criteria within the Project Area include
the following:

Deterioration. With respect to buildings, defects including, but not limited to, major defects in the secondary
building components such as doors, windows, porches, gutters and downspouts, and fascia. With respect to
surface improvements, that the condition of roadways, alleys, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, off-street parking,
and surface storage areas evidence deterioration, including, but not limited to, surface cracking, crumbling,
potholes, depressions, loose paving material, and weeds protruding through paved surfaces.

Deterioration of buildings and surface improvements is present throughout the study area. All improved
properties exhibit some level of deterioration in surface improvements. In particular, the shared parking lot
is in poor condition with numerous cracks and broken asphalt, faded striping, and landscaped medians are
overgrown with weeds. Additionally, the retaining wall and garbage enclosure shows signs of wear and lack
of maintenance near the Dollar Tree/LA Tan, and damage to signs and broken light fixtures are common.

The Project Area exhibits significant evidence of deterioration of both structures and surface improvements,
and such deterioration is widely distributed. Deterioration of both buildings and site improvements is a
significant factor towards designation of the Project Area as a ‘blighted area.’

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 13

168



B S, o )

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 14

169



Figure 3 - Building & Site Deterioration

O A N [ S

BAYVIEW DRIVE

FRONTAGE ROAD

12
12

\ UNNAMED

' —J ' - UNNAMED

STANLEY ROAD

A

Legend N

=TIF Boundary |:| Vacant Parcels - Building Deterioration [:j Site Delerioration
1 inch = 355 feet

DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report
Page 15

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois
170



Presence of Structures Below Minimum Code Standards. Structures below minimum code standards include
all structures that do not meet the standards of zoning, subdivision, building, fire, and other governmental
codes applicable to property (but not including housing and property maintenance codes).

Documentation for the Project Area revealed a total of six (6) code violations on two (2) properties (14% of
parcels) within the past five (5) years. Violations include collection bin, sanitation, sign, inoperable vehicle,
WDO, safety, permit, erosion, business license and illegal fill violations. (Additional code violations are

documented in the targeted Project Area relating to minor property maintenance issues but have not been
included in this analysis).

# Parcels # Violations

The presence of a significant number of structures below minimum code standards is therefore a
contributing factor towards designation of the Project Area as a ‘blighted area.’

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illinois Page 16

171



Figure 4 - Code Violations

I O JL_1 |

BAYVIEW DRIVE

Ll

o
B e | LS
g : N

| . ! | |
P / N UNNAMED

_] ( UNNAMED

FRONTAGE ROAD

12
12

-STANLEY ROAD

A

Legend N

[ ¥ Boundary [ Vacant Parcels [T ] Code Violations [__] No Violations
1 inch = 355 feet

DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report
Page 17

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois
172



Inadequate Utilities. This factor relates to all underground and overhead utilities such as storm sewers and
storm drainage, sanitary sewers, water lines, and gas, telephone, and electrical services that are shown to be
inadequate. Inadequate utilities are those that are: (i} of insufficient capacity to serve the uses in the
redevelopment project area, (ii) deteriorated, antiquated, obsolete, or in disrepair, or (iii) lacking within the
redevelopment project grea.

Numerous infrastructure issues were identified in the Village’s Comprehensive Development Plan and
Policies Update, adopted in 2012. These infrastructure issues have not yet been addressed and are present
throughout the Route 12 corridor, and significantly impact the Project Area. These documented
infrastructure issues include:

a) Access improvements (defining access points and consolidating points of access) and parkway
enhancements;

b) Right-of-way improvements on Route 12;

¢) Improvements to landscaping and landscape buffers;

d) Parking lot improvements;

e) Install/improve/upgrade sidewalks on both sides of Route 12; and

f)  Bury above-ground utilities.

Therefore, Inadequate Utilities is a contributing factor towards the designation of the Project Area as a
‘blighted area.’

Lack of Community Planning. The proposed redevelopment project area was developed prior to or without
the benefit or guidance of a community plan. This means that the development occurred prior to the
adoption by the municipality of a comprehensive or other community plan or that the plan was not followed
at the time of the area's development. This factor must be documented by evidence of adverse or
incompatible land use relationships, inadequate street layout, improper subdivision, parcels of inadequate
shape and size to meet contemporary development standards, or other evidence demonstrating an absence
of effective community planning.

The majority of the Highway 12 corridor was developed prior to the Village's first comprehensive plan (Fox
Lake Master Plan adopted in 2000). Although there is little evidence of incompatible land use relationships,
there are deleterious results of this lack of planning.

The current 2012 Comprehensive Plan establishes key objectives for the Highway 12 Corridor, including:

a) Consolidation and definition of driveways and access points to adjacent properties, taking
advantage of secondary roads to minimize interruptions to through traffic;

b) Incorporate setbacks to provide room for consistent landscape treatments, buffering parking and
storage areas and a sidewalk along the west side;

c) Buffer outdoor storage and utilitarian areas with landscaping, fencing and berms;

d) Adopt an overlay corridor design standard for signs;

e) Uses, architecture and landscaping upon development and redevelopment should be reflective of
the importance of the corridor as a gateway to the community and as the major opportunity to
attract tourists.

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, Illinois Page 18
173



Within the Project Area, the Fox Lake Crossing Shopping Center was developed after the Village’s first
comprehensive plan (2000). It was developed in 2002 and renovated in 2019. The comprehensive plan
identifies this area in particular as a commercial hub at the intersection of Highway 12 and Route 134.

Therefore, Lack of Planning is a contributing factor towards designation of the Project Area as a ‘blighted

area.’

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 19

174



Environmental Remediation. The area has incurred Illinois Environmental Protection Agency or United States
Environmental Protection Agency remediation costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant
recognized as having expertise in environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-up of
hazardous waste, hazardous substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or federal law,
provided that the remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the development or redevelopment
of the redevelopment project area.

One official report documenting environmental issues relating to the Project Area was located (Pioneer
Engineering & Environmental Services, July 31, 2019). The properties located at the northwest quadrant of
Highway 12 and Route 134 was previously mined for gravel in the 1950s through the 1970s. It was filled in
some time between 1973 and 1983. However, the condition of the soil in the area is insufficient to support
anything more than a lightly loaded one-story structure, and any development of more intensive
improvement(s) will require significant underground engineering to support it, which will add excessive
costs to future development of this site.

Environmental Remediation Impeding Development is a contributing factor to designation of the Project
Area as a ‘blighted area.’

Decline in Equalized Assessed Value. The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment
project area has declined for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment
project area is designated or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality
for 3 of the last 5 calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is
less than the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of
Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment
project area is designated.

CATEGORY 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

ToplIER St $888,270 $882,765 $887,455 $881,499  $2,863,453 | $3,022,969

Project Area

Percent Change

in EAV n/a -0.62% 0.53% -0.67% 224.84% 5.57%

EAV of Village

{excluding Project
Area)

Percent Change
in EAV

CPI for All Urban
Consumers

Percent Change
in CPI

237.017

240.007

1.25%

245.120

2.09%

251.107

2.38%

255.657

1.78%

258.811

1.23%

The equalized assessed valuation of all properties within the Project Area has declined or increased at a
lesser rate than the CPlin three (3) of the previous five (5) years. Therefore, decline in EAV is a contributing
factor to designation of the Project Area as a ‘blighted area.’

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 20
175



VACANT (UNIMPROVED) LAND

Vacant land is subject to specific eligibility criteria separate from the eligibility criteria for developed land.
The vacant land within the Project Area qualifies under the following criteria, as established in the Act:

If vacant, the sound growth of the redevelopment project area is impaired by one of the following factors
that (i) is present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful extent so that a municipality may
reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of the Act, and (ii) is reasonably distributed
throughout the vacant part of the redevelopment project area to which it pertains:

n

The area consists of one or more unused quarries, mines, or strip mine ponds.

The area consists of unused rail yards, rail tracks, or railroad rights-of-way.

The area, prior to its designation, is subject to (i) chronic flooding that adversely impacts on real
property in the area as certified by a registered professional engineer or appropriate regulatory
agency or (i) surface water that discharges from all or a part of the area and contributes to flooding
within the same watershed, but only if the redevelopment project provides for facilities or
improvements to contribute to the alleviation of all or part of the flooding.

The area consists of an unused or illegal disposal site containing earth, stone, building debris, or
similar materials that were removed from construction, demolition, excavation, or dredge sites.
Prior to November 1, 1999, the area is not less than 50 nor more than 100 acres and 75% of which is
vacant (notwithstanding that the area has been used for commercial agricultural purposes within 5
years prior to the designation of the redevelopment project area), and the area meets at least one
of the factors itemized in paragraph (1) of this subsection, the area has been designated as a town
or village center by ordinance or comprehensive plan adopted prior to January 1, 1982, and the area
has not been developed for that designated purpose.

The area qualified as a blighted improved area immediately prior to becoming vacant, unless there
has been substantial private investment in the immediately surrounding area.

The vacant parcels west of Route 12 and
within the Fox Lake Crossing shopping
center, were previously the site of agravel
quarry operation. The site was previously
filled, but as documented by a registered
environmental engineer (Pioneer
Engineering & Environmental Services,
July 31, 2019), the soils are insufficient for
future development without incurring
significant additional engineering related
costs.

The presence of an unused quarry is a
significant qualifying factor towards
designation of the vacant land within the
Project Area as a ‘blighted area.’

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 21

176



In addition, the vacant parcels to the east of Route 12 contain a gravel road and the various remains of
previously installed, and currently deteriorating, infrastructure. The site contains scattered debris including
concrete, old telephone poles, and various other materials deposited on the site. This illegal dumping on
these parcels is a significant qualifying factor towards designation of the vacant land within the Project Area
as a ‘blighted area.’

Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021

Village of Fox Lake, lllinois Page 22
177



SUMMARY FINDINGS

Based on the findings contained within this Eligibility Report, both the improved parcels and the unimproved
(vacant) parcels within the Project Area qualify as a ‘blighted area’ in accordance with the eligibility criteria
as established in the Act.

As shown in the summary below, the improved area within the Project Area qualifies as a “blighted area”
meeting five (5) of the eligibility criteria, and the unimproved area within the Project Area qualifies as a
‘blighted area’ meeting two (2) of the vacant land eligibility criteria.

Each of the following factors contributes significantly towards the eligibility of the Project Area. All of these
characteristics point to the need for designation as a Redevelopment Project Area, to be followed by public
intervention in order that redevelopment might occur.

Eligibility Criterion (improved) Qualifying Factor

Dilapidation No
Obsolescence YES
Deterioration YES

Illegal Uses No

Below Code Standards YES
Excessive Vacancies No
Lack of Ventilation No
Inadequate Utilities YES
Excessive Land Coverage No
Deleterious Land Use No
Lack of Planning YES
Environmental No
Decline in EAV No
Total 5
Eligibility Criterion {unimproved) Qualifying Factor
Unused Mines/Quarries YES
Unused Rail Yards No
Chronic Flooding No
Illegal Dumping YES
Town Center No
Blighted Area (before becoming vacant) No
Total 2
Route 12 South TIF Eligibility Report DRAFT REPORT September 2021
Village of Fox Lake, Illlinois Page 23

178



179



Grant Community High School District 124

Potential Ancillary Parking Lot
248 E Grand Avenue, Fox Lake, IL 60020

Current Constraints:

South student lot has 280 parking spaces/7 ADA spaces
Grand/59 student lot has 50 parking spaces
There are more interested students than parking spaces available:
o There is a lottery process for Junior students
o There are approximately 28 juniors on the waitlist for a parking permit
o There would certainly be sophomores age eligible to drive and likely
wishing to, but are not included in the permit or lottery process
With upcoming Grand Avenue/Route 59 construction, we are slated to lose 18
spaces temporarily
The length of upcoming construction is 1-2 years

Potential Ancillary Parking Lot:

Number of additional parking spots possible with Grand Ave property is 61; there
is a potential for additional spots if we were to receive a Village variance of
existing curb and setback requirements
To convert the vacant lot to off-site parking, requires approval from the Village of
Fox Lake Planning and Zoning Commission and Village Board
o Receiving this approval would be a contingency in purchase contract
Property costs:
o Property valued by Lake County at $113,579
o Local realtor provided comparative market analysis with broker opinion
value of $50,000
Property owners agreeable to sell property for $65,000
Potential cost to develop property into a parking lot is $375,000-$400,000
including all site work, lighting, landscaping, etc.
Would require approximately 8-10 weeks construction
o Would need to begin construction by approximately May 15 to complete in
time for school to begin
There is an existing crossing guard at Grand Avenue

180



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the BOARD OF EDUCATION OF GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 124, Lake County, Illinois (the “School District”), is desirous of
acquiring real property for school purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Illinois School Code, 105 ILCS 5/1 et seq., authorizes the School District
to acquire the real property for school purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Owners of Record, are the owners of real property located as follows: 248
E. Grand Avenue, Fox Lake, Illinois 60020 (P.I.N. 05-10-200-029) (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Owners of Record are desirous of selling the Property to the School
District; and

WHEREAS, the School District is in possession of a Contract for Sale of Real Property, a
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, the School District has determined that the Property is necessary, suitable,
and convenient for the School District purposes and purchase of the Property is in the best interests
of the School District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Education of Grant Community
High School District No. 124, Lake County, Illinois, as follows:

1. That the foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated and adopted.

2. That the Contract for Sale of Real Property attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and
the Board President is authorized to execute said Contract.

3. That the Board of Education does hereby grant the law firm of Kriha Boucek, LLC, power
of attorney with regard to the purchase of the real property described herein.

4. That the Superintendent, or the Superintendent’s designee, is authorized to execute any and
all documents necessary to effectuate the purchase of the Property.

5. The Superintendent, or Superintendent’s designee, is authorized to apply for any necessary

181



zoning, building, or other governmental approvals related to the School District’s
anticipated use of the Property, including the payment of all costs for permits, reviews, or
other governmental fees, as well as the costs for services reasonably necessary to complete
application documents, including but not limited to survey and architectural services fees
and costs.

6. The Superintendent, or the Superintendent’s designee, is authorized to pay all necessary
costs associated with effectuating the purchase of the Property.

7. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval.
Member moved the adoption of the foregoing Resolution;
and Member seconded the motion.

Upon a roll call vote being taken, the members voted as follows:

AYE:

NAY:

ABSENT:

ADOPTED this __ day of , 202

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 124, Lake County, Illinois

By:

President, Board of Education

Attest:
Secretary, Board of Education

282



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.
COUNTY OF LAKE )

CERTIFICATION OF RESOLUTION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Secretary of
the Board of Education of Grant Community High School District No. 124, Lake County, Illinois
(the “Board”), and that as such official, I am the keeper of the records and files of the Board.

I do further certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and complete transcript of that portion
of the meeting of the Board held on the _ day of , 202, insofar as the same relates
to the adoption of a Resolution entitled:

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY

a true and correct copy of which said Resolution as adopted at said meeting appears in the
foregoing transcript of said meeting.

I do further certify that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said Resolution
were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said Resolution was taken openly, that
said meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to the public, that notice of said
meeting was duly given to all newspapers, radio or television stations and other news media
requesting such notice, that said meeting was called and held in strict compliance with the
provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois and with the provisions of the School
Code of the State of Illinois, as amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the procedural
rules of the Board.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature this  day of
,202 .

By:

Secretary, Board of Education

383



9016828422

Courtyard By Marriott Memphi 04:50:01 p.m. 01-19-2022

—

CONTRACT FOR SALE OF REAL PROPERTY

This Agreement is made by and between the Board of Education of Grant Community High School
District 124, Lake County, Illinois, hereinafter referred to as “Purchaser” and Thomas Thandupurakal and
Jude C. Pinto, hereinafter referred to as "Sellers.”

WHEREAS, the {llinois School Code, 105 ILCS 5/1 et seq., authorizes school districts to purchase
real property for school purposes; and

WHEREAS, Sellers ure the owners of vacant real estate in Lake County. [llinois, commonly
referred to as 248 East Grand Avenue., Fox Lake. Illinois 60020, P.IN. 05-10-200-029. and legally
described as follows:

[To Be Inserted from Survey]

(approx. 0.82 Acres) (the “Property™); and '

WHEREAS, Purchaser desires to purchase the Property for school purposes; and

WHEREAS, Sellers wish to sell the Property to Purchaser.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which are hereby incorporated herein
by reference, and of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration in hand
paid by Purchaser to Sellers, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by Sellers, and
of the mutual covenants, conditions, agreements and promises contained herein below, Sellers and

Purchaser hereby agree as follows:

1. Sale. Sellers agree 10 sell, and Purchaser agrees to purchase the Property comprised of
approximately 0.82 acres, located in Lake County, lllinois, commonly referred to as 248 East Grand
Avenue, Fox Lake, [llinois 60020 (P.I.N. 05-10-200-029) (the “Property™) and legally deseribed as follows:

{To Be Inserted from Survey]

2. Purchase Price. The purchase price is Sixty-Five Thiousand and No/100 Dollars (565.000.00).

The purchase price shall be paid in the following manner:

A, Five Thousand and Neo/100 Dollars ($5,000.00) earnest money deposit to be paid within

184

2/9




5016828422

Caourtyard By Marriott Memphi 04:50:34 p.m. 01-19-2022

five (5) business days after the Date of Agreement. The earnest money shall be deposited in a joint
order escrow account with a title company licensed to do business in the state of Illinois (“Escrow
Agent™) and applied toward the purchase price at Closing.

B. The balance of the purchase price shall be paid in full, at Closing, by certified check,

cashier’s check, or wire transfer.

3 Property Inspection & Due Diligence. At any time within ninety (90) days after the Dare of

Agreement (“Inspection and Due Diligence Period™), Purchaser may inspect the Property including,
physical inspection of the Property and any building structure, systems, and equipment; review of municipal
zoning codes, ordinances, and governmental regulations applicable to the Property. complete a Phase |
environmental audit; and conduct other inspection or study to determine the suitability of the Property for
the Purchaser’s purposes.

On or before the 90" day of the Inspection and Due Diligence Period, Purchaser shall notify Seller
in writing whether (a) the Property is acceptable and move to Closing, or (b) terminate the Contract for Sale
due to an unacceptable inspection or due diligence item, as determined in the sole discretion of the
Purchaser. If the Purchaser terminates the Contract on or before the 90" day of the Inspection and Due
Diligence Period, the Sellers will provide notice to Escrow Agent to return Purchaser’s earnest money
deposit. A copy of the environmenta] report, if any, will be provided to Sellers upon cormpletion of the
report regardiess of Purchaser’s acceptance or termination, if requested by Sellers. No environmental
testing requiring the disturbance or patching of the Property shall be conducted by the Purchaser without
the approval of the Seller.

In addition to all other rights of Purchaser under this Agreement, which rights shall be cumulative,
Purchaser may elect 1o terminate this Agreement, without penalty, by notice to Seller served at any time on
or before the expiration of the foregoing 90-day time period, if in Purchaser's sole opinion, which is not
subject to question or review for any reason, Purchaser, through no fault of Purchaser, has not been able to
inspect the Property, or if Purchaser is otherwise dissatisfied with any matters disclosed by any inspection,
study, environmental audit. ete.

All such inspections are to be made at the expense of the Purchaser. Purchaser agrees to

repair any damage caused to the Property as a result of the inspections, and to indemnify, defend

and hold harmless the other party from and against any claims, demands, losses. liabilities,

185




9016828422

Vg 107 avecs T .ea 1o L I =y - s a

Courtyard By Marriott Memphi 04:50:47 p.m. 01-19-2022

settlements, damages, costs or expenses resulting from carrying out the inspections. Purchaser

shall not cause or allow any lien claim to be filed against the Property as a result of said inspections,

4, Zoning, During the Inspection and Due Diligence Period, the Purchaser may apply for any zoning
or construction approvals from applicable governmental bodies, and Seller agrees o reasonably cooperate
in such applications and processes. If the Purchaser fails to obtain the zoning or construction approvals, or
sufficient assurances that said approvals will be granted. Purchaser may, in its discretion, terminate this
Contract prior on or before the 90" day of the Inspection and Due Diligence Period. In the event of such

termination, Sellers will notify the Escrow Agent to return Purchaser’s earnest money deposit,

5. Eroperty Information. Sellers, within 15 days of the Date of Acceptance of this Contract will

provide any property records, reports, studies or correspondence, service contracts, etc. applicable to the

Property 1o assist the Purchase in its inspection and due diligence.

6. Closing.

A. The time of Closing shall be within 21 days after the expiration of the Inspection and Due
Diligence Period and acceptance of the Property, title commitment, and survey by Purchaser, and
provided the terms and conditions of this Agreement have been satisfied, or if the terms and
conditions of this Agreement then require, or the convenience of the parties reasonably demands,
as soon thereafter as can mutually be arranged between the parties.

B. Closing shall be through a title company licensed to do business in the state of [llinois
(“Title Company™) at one of its offices located in Lake County, lllinois mutually agreeable to the
parties, Each party shall pay the usual and customary closing costs and charges of the Seiler and
Purchaser, respectively, The Closing escrow costs shall be paid equally by Seller and Purchaser.
3, Title Commitment. Not later than 15 days prior to the ¢losing date. at Buyer's cost. Sellers

shall furnish Purchaser a standard ALTA commitment for title insurance from the Title Company
in the amount of the purchase price. The title commitment shall be conclusive evidence of good
title as therein shown as to all matters insured by the policy. At Closing, Sellers shall also furnish
Purchaser with an affidavit of title in the customary form covering the date of closing. At Closing,
Sellers shall also furnish Purchaser with a bill of sale conveying title 1o all items of personal
property owned by Sellers on the Property, if any, as of the date of sale. If the title commitment

(@5 ]

186

4/9



9016828422

Vid 13/ eves 1l .ce 1nn [NV R SR
e e

Courtyard By Marriott Memphi 04:51:05 p.m. 01-19-2022

discloses exceptions which are unacceptable to Purchaser:, Purchaser shall have ten (10) days to
notify Sellers after receipt of the title commitment. Scllets shall have 30 days from the date of
delivery of notice from Purchaser to have the exceptions removed from the commitment or to have
the title insurer commit to insure against loss or damage thaﬁ may be occasioned by such exceptions,
If Sellers fail to have the exceptions removed or, in the alternative, to obtain a commitment for title
insurance which insures over any such exceptions, within the specified time. Purchaser may
terminate this Agreement or elect to take title subject to such exceptions.

D. Survey. Not later than |5 days prior to Closing, Sellers shall furnish Purchaser an ALTA
survey of the Property, certified by a licensed Tllinois land surveyor. Buyer to contribute $4,000.00

towards the Survey cost in the form of a credit at closing tol the Seller.

7. Possession, Seller shall deliver possession of the Property at Closing.
8. Conveyance. Sellers shall convey title to said real property to Purchaser, or its nominee in title,
by warranty deed subject only o the following:

Al Easements of record,

B. Applicable zoning laws and ordinances,

C. Real estate taxes not yet due and payable.
9. Commissions. Seller will be responsible for paying all real estate broker sales commissions at
Closing.

10.  Risk of Loss. The provisions of the Uniform Vendor and Purchaser Act shall be applicable to this

transaction.

11, Notice. All notices required herein shall be in writing. For the purpose of this paragraph, notice
shall be deemed to have been given on the dare when it is placed in the U.S. Mail. or by personal delivery,
or by email transmission with verification of receipt. and shall be given as follows:

To Sellers: Thomas Thandupurakal
28888 W. Manitoba Trail
McHenry., IL 60051

187

5/9



9016828422

o

(N}

oV e

Courtyard By Marriott Memphi 04:51:16 p.m. 01-19-2022

[ S A N EA F e TR

With a copy thereof to:

Donald C. Stinespring & Associates

¢/o Donald C. Stinespring

F. O. Box 382

Richmond, Lllinois 60071

Donjei@stinespring.com and Karen@stinespring.com

To Purchaser: Grant High School District 124
Attn: Dr. Christy Sefeik, Superintendent
285 East Grand Avenue
Fox Lake, IL 60020
csefcik@grantbulldogs.org

With a copy thereof'to:

Kevin B. Gordon, Esq.

Kriha Boucek, LL.C

2 TransAm Plaza Drive, Suite 450
Ozkbrook Terrace, IL 60181
kevin@krihaboucek.com

12. Effect of Agreement. All of the provisions contained in this Agreement for Sale shall be binding

upon the Sellers and any subsequent successors, heirs or assigns.

18. Merger. It is understood and agreed that all understandings and agreements heretofore made
between the parties hereto are merged into this Agreement, which alone fully and completely expresses

their agreement, and neither party may rely upon any statement or representation not embodied in this

agreement,

14. Applicable Law. In the event of legal actions brought concerning the enforceability of this
Agreement, the laws of the State of Illinois shall apply.

15. Legal Construction. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement should,

for any reason, be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement shall be construed as if

such invalid. illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

5

188



9016828422 Courtyard By Marriatt Memphi 04:51:26 p.m. 01-19-2022 719

N A LT

16. Descriptive Headings. The descriptive paragraph headings used herein are for convenience only

and in no way limit or enlarge the scope or meaning of the language hereof.

17, Prorations. The general real estate taxes for the years 2021 and 2022 shall be prorated as of the
date of Closing at 1 10% of the last ascertainable tax bill,

18. No Warranties as to Condition of Property. The Property and any improvements currently

existing thereon are conveyed and sold “AS-IS.” Sellers do not make any representations of warranties
concerning the conditions of the Property and any improvements thereon, including but not Jimited to any

warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, or habitability.

i9. Representations and Warranties. The Sellers represent and warrant to Purchaser as follows, and

each such representation and warranty of Seiler shall be wue at closing, and shall be deemed remade as of

the Closing Date and shall survive the closing of this transaction:

A. The Sellers have full capacity, right, power and authority to execute, deliver and perform
this Agreement and all documents to be executed by Sellers pursuant hereto on behalf of Sellers,
and to bind Sellers hereby, and all required action and approvals therefor have been duly taken and
obtained. The individuals signing this Agreement and all aother documents executed or to be
executed pursuant hereto on behalf of Sellers are and shall be duly authorized to sign the same and
to bind Sellers thereto.

B. Except for Sellers, there are no persons or entities in possession or occupancy of the
Property or any part thereof, nor are there any persons or entities who have possessory rights or
leaseholds with respect to the Property or any part thereof which would extend beyond the Closing
Date.

C. There are no claims, suits, causes of action or other litigation or proceedings pending with
respect to or affecting the ownership or operation of the Property.

D. Sellers have not received any notice of any health, safety, building, pollution,
environmental, zoning, or other violation of law with respect to the Property which has not been

entirely corrected.

189



9016828422 Courtyard By Marriott Memphi 04:51:38 p.m. 01-19-2022 8/9
L R P R I A N [ ST e WY [ R WV Y S vy

E. Sellers have received no notice of any condemnation of any part of the Property, any special

tax or assessment to be levied against the Property or any change in the tax assessment of the

Property.
E There are not owing and unpaid any taxes or assessments of any kind on the Property.
a. No person, firm, corporation, or other entity has any right or option to acquire the Property

or any part thereof from Sellers except for Purchaser.
H. Sellers will not enter or extend any contracts or leases affecting the Property after the date

hereof without Purchaser’s express written consent.

20. Date. As used herein, the phrase “Date of Agreement” shall mean the later date on which

the by Sellers or Purchaser executes this Agreement.

21. Counterpart Execution, Electronic Signatures and Authority. This Contract may be

executed in separate counterparts. It shall be fully executed when each Party whose signature is
required has signed at least on (1) counterpart, even though no one (1) counterpart contains the
signature of all the Parties. Documents executed, scanned and transmitted electronically and
electronic signatures shall be deemed original signatures for purposes of this Contract and any
amendments to the Contract. with such scanned and glectronic signatures having the same legal
effect as original signatures. The people executing this Contract on behalf of Seller and Purchaser

represent that they have the authority to act in accordance with the terms of this Contract,

190



9016828422 Courtyard By Marriatt Memphi 04:51:48 p.m. 01-19-2022 9/9

Vi 13revee 11O rana [C R TR VAV M vV v

SELLER: PURCHASER:
THOMA 'THANDU?[)\RAKAL BOARD OF EDUCATION OF GRANT
[ ] COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
/ ' 124, Lake County, Tllinois

: Méf By:

RN
: > Date:

Superintendent

SELLER:

JUDE C, FINTO

By:

Date:

191



SPRING COACHING STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 2021/2022

Head Varsity Wayne Bosworth Girls Badminton
Head Varsity Dave Behm Boys Baseball
Assistant Colt Foerch

Assistant Mike Schneider

Assistant Bryan Talbot

Assistant Eric Weinmann

Head Varsity Garrett Olsen Boys Lacrosse
Assistant Walter Alveranga

Assistant Austin Spohr

Head Varsity Chris VanAlstine Girls Softball
Assistant Jessica Dart

Assistant Jeff Durlak

Assistant Nicole Frett

Assistant AJ Havenga

Head Varsity Nick Nenni Boys Track
Assistant Jim Cramer

Assistant Tom Evans

Assistant Chris Robinson

Head Varsity Greg Wodzien Girls Track
Assistant Rachel Bicknase

Assistant Jeff Harvey

Assistant Kurt Rous

Head Varsity Michele Keenan Boys Volleyball
Assistant Martin Grum

Assistant Alex Sullivan

Assistant OPEN

Head Varsity Ben Burnet Girls Soccer
Assistant Chris Carlson

Assistant Bob Janusz

Assistant Kenny Pelaez

Head Varsity Max Boton Boys Tennis
Assistant OPEN

Spring Event Coordinator Andy Flaker

192




Mary Bidlack

1911 S. Fernwood Lane
McHenry, I1. 60051
12/20/2021

Grant Community High School Board Members
Grant Community High School- District 124
285 E. Grand Ave

Fox Lake, IL 60020

Dear Board Members,

Please accept this letter of resignation from the Special Education Secretary position. Thank
you so much for the opportunity to be part of the Bulldog family as support staff and
paraprofessional over the years. I feel incredibly fortunate to have had the opportunity to
have worked with the staff and students here at Grant High School. I will be officially
stepping down from my secretarial role effective June 30, 2021.

I will be working hard to make the transition smooth for the next candidate by creating
binders of information, organizing files, listing contacts, and other elements my successor

will need to take over my position and be successful. I would also be happy to assist with
training while here and answer any questions after I leave my position as needed.

Sincerely,

44,/44/@ Alndt.

Mary Bidlack

Special Education Secretary

193



Miller, Nate

From: Suehr, Beth

Sent: Wednesday, December 8, 2021 5:38 PM
To: Miller, Nate

Subject: fall play director position

Nate,

| am writing to inform you that next school year, in the fall of 2022, | will not be continuing my current
activity role of the fall play director.

However, | WILL be continuing my activity role as the spring musical director this spring and next spring.

Sincerely,

Beth Suehr
Advanced English 9 and Acting Instructor

Fall Play and Spring Musical Director
Grant Community High School

194



Letter of Resignation-

When you've been in customer service as long as | have, you think the dream is a desk
job. A job where you don't have to put up with all of the negativity and demands of others. A
place where rules are rules and that's all you can do on the matter. A job with stability and
normal hours. My job here at Grant is exactly what | thought | had wanted.

I've tried a lot of different career paths to try and figure out what it is that lights me up
and feels like a path | want to follow. This job at GCHS has been eye opening for me to realize
that | don't want all the things | had originally thought | was striving for. | miss connecting
with people and using all the skills | have accrued over my long time in hospitality. | have
come to the conclusion that as tiresome and emotionally taxing a job like my previous roles
can be, it doesn't compare to the fulfillment and pride | would feel after a long day's work. |
gave myself 6 months to try and adjust but no matter what I've done, | can't seem to calm
the'restlessness | feel. That being said, a job opportunity has presented itself that | think
would suit me and my skill set better than where | am currently at the front desk and | will be
resigning myself from this position- effective February 1st 2022.

| want to say thank you from the bottom of my heart for providing me with the
opportunity to be here. | have learned a lot about myself since joining the team and | will

cherish the memories I've made. | wish you and the rest of the Bulldog team all the best.

-Jess Strom

Front office Receptionist

COPY

195



FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REQUEST FORM

Name: Edward Gilbertsen
Title: Transportation
Seniority Date: October 16, 2015

Date of Request: January 11, 2022

PURPOSE OF LEAVE (check one):

Birth of Child

Expected placement of child for adoption

Expected placement of child for foster care

Serious illness of family member

Name of family member:

Relationship to employee:

v Employee's serious illness

LEAVE DATES Beginning: January 11, 2022 Ending: February 11, 2022

TYPE OF LEAVE (check one):

v | Continuous

Intermittent basis
Schedule requested:

Reduced schedule
Schedule requested:

This form is to be completed either by the employee requesting leave or the employer's
designated representative to whom the request is made. Attach any written leave
requests from the employee to this form.

196



Grant Community High School District 124
285 East Grand Avenue, Fox Lake, Illinois 60020
847-587-2561 - fax 847-587-2991

Christine A. Sefcik, Ed.D. Jeremy N. Schmidt Beth A. Reich
Superintendent Principal Business Manager

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE REQUEST APPROVAL FORM

TO: Ed Gilbertsen

The Board of Education is in receipt of your request for a leave pursuant to the federal
Family and Medical Leave Act (the “Act”) of 1993. This is to notify you that your leave
request has been granted. Your leave is scheduled to begin on January 11, 2022 and
is scheduled to end on February 11, 2022. The stated purpose for your leave is

employee’s serious illness and it will be taken on the following basis:

v Continuous basis

Intermittent basis
Schedule of leave:

Reduced schedule
Schedule of leave:

This is also to notify you that the Board will require you to substitute NA (days) (weeks)

of your accrued paid NA time for NA (days) (weeks) of your unpaid FMLA leave.

President, Board of Education Date

197



Board of Education Meeting
January 2022
Principal’s Report

SAT Preparation Class

Enrollment for our SAT Preparation Class has begun and is open through January 31. This is the
second year running the class in this remote format using Mrs. Sandy Martinez, an Associate
Professor from CLC and veteran test preparation teacher. The curriculum framework for the
course is based on the College Board’s Official SAT Study Guide. Utilizing a combination of
teacher-led instruction, strategy and content acquisition, and individual practice, the course is
designed to provide students the resources, structure, and content instruction to meet their personal
SAT goals.

Classes are offered Monday evenings, Thursday evenings, Sunday mornings, and Sunday
afternoons. The structure of the class consists of seven, three-hour classes, along with two optional
drop-in sessions. The cost for this seven-week class is $80 and includes one copy of “The Official
SAT Study Guide” as well as custom, additional practice and instructional materials.

SEssentials Survey

The Illinois 5Essentials Survey window is now open to all stakeholders: parents, students, and
teachers. The 5Essentials Survey is required to be administered on behalf of the Illinois State
Board of Education. The survey gathers data related to five indicators that can predict important
student outcomes, including improved attendance and test score gains. These five indicators that
affect and predict school success are: Effective Leaders, Collaborative Teachers, Involved
Families, Supportive Environments, and Ambitious Instruction.

Grant parents have been responding to this survey opportunity via information on the school
website and district newsletter. For students, the survey will be using an activity schedule prior
to a virtual recognition/pep presentation on January 28 with their TEAM classes. The survey
takes less than 30 minutes and is taken electronically using individual Chromebooks.

Administering the survey using an activity schedule allows us not to miss a day of TEAM as
there is adequate time for students to complete the survey while still having the recognition/pep
presentation. Teachers have multiple opportunities to complete the survey; however, time will
be allocated for teachers during a Flex Start to ensure high participation rates. The survey
window closes for all stakeholders on March 11.

Eighth Grade Enrollment Night

As previously reported, plans were in place for a traditional, in-person 8 Grade Enrollment Night;
however, based on the increased transmission of COVID-19 and concerns about risking exposure
to students, staff, and families, potentially jeopardizing academics, the decision was made to revert
to a remote enrollment night.

198



Feeder school principals were notified on January 6, and a revised communication from Grant was
mailed out to all families on January 10. The revised program allows for families to request classes
for courses virtually via a Google Form embedded in a video presentation delivered by teachers
and administrators. The presentation contains videos from each academic department with all
pertinent information for families to learn about academics and course selection. The presentation
will be posted for all to access on January 19 on the school website. From January 19 through
February 4, families will be able to submit their student’s six elective choices for the 2022-2023
school year. The deadline for elective submissions is February 4, 2022.

In addition, on the evening of January 25, Grant school counselors will be available via Zoom
from 6:30 pm - 7:30 pm to answer general questions, in a group format, about registration. The
Zoom links to these sessions will be posted on the main page of the school website the day of the
meetings.

The activity and athletic fair portion of the event will be rescheduled when large in-person events
are more feasible.

Professional Development

The planning for our February 18 Institute Day is in development and underway. The
administrative team, in coordination with instructional coaches and teacher leaders, have been
working diligently to plan a full day of professional development for all certified staff. The day’s
activities will maintain our focus on adult social and emotional learning
competencies. Additionally, certified staff members will participate in the development of
building-wide lessons on digital citizenship to be delivered later this spring that will complement
PBIS’ messaging on digital responsibility.

199



Date: January 20, 2022

To: Dr. Christy Sefcik, Superintendent
From: Ryan Geist and Beth Reich

Re: Security Guard Compensation
Background:

Grant Community High School is committed to welcoming all to a safe, secure and
supportive environment. We currently utilize an outside security company Per Mar
Security & Research Corp. to provide the majority of guards in the building during the
school day. The guards are tasked with monitoring halls, escorting students, monitoring
entrances and parking lots, working as traffic control for buses and crosswalks, and
operating as event security at extracurricular events.

Additional Information:

This year we have struggled to find individuals to work as security guards. Our ideal
staffing through PerMar is a total of eight (8) guards who work different shifts, giving us
coverage in the building from 7:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. Due to the labor shortage in our
local area, we have been reduced to three (3) PerMar guards in the building. In an effort to
attract and retain more guards, we contacted PerMar to discuss the starting rate, and if an
adjustment was due.

Our current starting hourly wage paid to a guard by PerMar is $14.00 if they have no
experience and $14.50 if they have experience. We recognize that the state minimum wage
is set to rise each year until reaching $15.00 per hour on January 1, 2025. We also know
that other local businesses are already paying $15.00 per hour currently. We did a
financial analysis to see the cost to the District if we raise the starting wage now to $15.00
with no experience and $15.50 with experience. This information is found in the table on
the next page. The table at the top of the page shows the total current costs based on the
current rates we pay. The table at the bottom of the page shows the proposed rates and
total proposed cost in the worst case scenario - that all new hired guards have experience
and are starting at $15.50 per hour.

The overall financial cost to the District to implement this is $14,868.00. As we have not
been fully staffed in this area all year, the budget line item designated for contractual
security is only 30% expended at this point in the year. Normal expenditures at this point
in the year are 50% of budgeted. We will utilize those savings to cover the additional cost.
We also took a look at bringing the entire security staff in-house as we do periodically. The
cost to do that at this time is an additional $17,000 above the $14.868. At this time, even
with the increase in hourly wages, PerMar is still the most cost effective way to provide
security services within our building.

200



Current Security Staffing/Rates as of 2021-2022

Hrly
Wage
Total | Current Paid to
Hours [Hrly Guard by [Days
Position Hours Paid [Charge PerMar Worked | Total Cost
FT Security - OPEN 1:30-10:00 8 S 20.88 | 14/14.50 177 S 29,566.08
FT Security - OPEN 10:30-7:00 8 S 20.88 | 14/14.50 177 S 29,566.08
FT Security - OPEN 7:00-3:30 8 S 20.88 | 14/14.50 177 S 29,566.08
FT Security - OPEN 7:00-3:30 8 S 20.88 | 14/14.50 177 S 29,566.08
FT Security - OPEN 7:00-3:30 8 S 20.88 | 14/14.50 177| S 29,566.08
FT Security - E (new this year) [7:30-4:00 8 S 20.88|S 14.00 177 S 29,566.08
FT Security - K (2 yrs) 7:00-3:30 8 S 2238|$ 15.00 177| $ 31,690.08
LEAD - FT Security - A 7:00-3:30 8 S 23.8|S 16.00 177 S 33,771.60
Total| $242,858.16
Proposed Rates for Security - January 20, 2022
Proposed
Hrly Wage
Total | Proposed [Paid to
Hours [Hrly Guard by |Days
Position Hours Paid [Charge PerMar Worked | Total Cost
FT Security - OPEN 1:30-10:00 8 S 2238 | S 15.50 177 S 31,690.08
FT Security - OPEN 10:30-7:00 8 S 2238 | $ 15.50 177| $ 31,690.08
FT Security - OPEN 7:00-3:30 8 S 2238|$ 15.50 177| $ 31,690.08
FT Security - OPEN 7:00-3:30 8 S 2238| $ 15.50 177| $ 31,690.08
FT Security - OPEN 7:00-3:30 8 S 2238 S 15.50 177 S 31,690.08
FT Security - E (new this year) [7:30-4:00 8 S 21.88 | S 15.00 177 S 30,982.08
FT Security - K (2 yrs) 7:00-3:30 8 S 23.38|S 16.00 177 S 33,106.08
LEAD - FT Security - A 7:00-3:30 8 S 2485 |S 17.00 177 S 35,187.60
Total| $257,726.16

Proposed starting hourly: $15.00 no
experience/$15.50 with experience

Cost to District

S 14,868.00

e We have not been fully staffed all year. Current staffingis 3 guards.
e Cost is calculated at worst case - all have experience and come in at $15.50 per hour.
e As aresult of not being staffed all year, we have only spent 30% of budgeted expense.

Recommendation:

We are recommending that Grant Community High School #124 raise the starting wage
paid to the PerMar guards to $15.00 per hour with no experience and $15.50 if they have
experience. The cost to the district is approximately $14,868. The benefit will be
maintaining the safe, secure and welcoming environment for our students, staff and

visitors.

201




Minimum Wage Law Adjustment to Food Service 1/24/2022

New Hourly
Years of with
Svc as of One Time Current Adjustment in
Last Name First Name Hire Date 2021/22 |Position Adjustment |Hourly January Cost to District
Koren Carol 08/23/2004| 2004 17 PT On-Call Sub S 150 (S 12.72 315| $ 14.22 315| $ 472.50
Roed| Gloria 05/10/2004| 2004 17 Salad Prep/Utility S 050|S$ 1594 630| S 16.44 630| S 315.00
Stynoski Karen 09/06/2005| 2005 16 Prep/Utility S 050|S$ 16.55 630| S 17.05 630| S 315.00
Bergl Patricia 03/21/2005( 2005 16 Supervisor of Food Service S 050 |S 33.67 736| S 34.17 736| S 368.00
Hege Peggy 08/31/2007| 2007 14  |Assistant Supervisor S 1.00|$ 2131 736| S 22.31 736 S 736.00
Torcaso Kimberly 09/22/2008| 2008 13 PT Utiity S 1.00 [$ 15.27 315| $ 16.27 315| $ 315.00
Miller Barb 08/03/2009| 2009 12 Baker/Utility S 1.00 [$ 15.76 630| S 16.76 630| S 630.00
Schlaf Sandra 11/01/2010( 2010 11 Clerical/Utility S 1.00 [ $ 16.93 630| S 17.93 630| S 630.00
Hinestrosa Claudia 09/19/2011| 2011 10 Head Cook S 17.66 630| S 18.00 630| S 214.20
Kibitlewski Sophie 08/15/2016( 2016 5 PT Utiity S 150 |$ 13.36 315( $ 14.86 315( $ 472.50
Williams Alice 04/11/2016( 2016 5 PT Utiity S 150 |S$ 13.36 315( $ 14.86 315( $ 472.50
Lopez Maria 12/05/2017(2017 4 Assistant Cook S 200|S 15.26 630| S 17.26 630| S 1,260.00
Markiewicz  |Linda 08/16/2017| 2017 4 PT Utiity S 270 | S 1271 315| $ 15.41 630| S 5,704.65
Nelson Kimberly 03/02/2020| 2020 1 PT Utiity S 270 |S 1230 315| $ 15.00 630| S 5,575.50
Pasko Sarah 10/04/2021] 2021 0 PT Utiity S 200($ 12.00 315( $ 14.00 315( $ 630.00
Ramirez Rosa 01/03/2022( 2022 0 Assistant Prep Cook S 16.02 630 S 15.00 630 S (642.60)
Bartels Kathryn Queeney | 01/03/20222022 0 PT Utiity S 200($ 12.00 315( $ 14.00 315( $ 630.00
Mora Susanne 01/03/2022( 2022 0 PT Utiity S 200($ 12.00 315( $ 14.00 315( $ 630.00
S 18,728.25
Years of Service Increase *Carol is an on-call sub in the food service department who started as a part-timer in 2004. She moved

Oto4 S 2.00 to custodial during 2011/12, then resigned from that. We asked her to come back as an on-call sub

5to9 S 1.50 in 2012, which she did. In order to keep her above the starting rate of $14.00 we are recommending

10to 14 S 1.00 a different increase for her to achieve that.

15 and beyond S 0.50

New Starting
Hourly as of
1/24/2022

S 14.00

**Linda and Kim have moved from part-time into full time positions effective 1/3/22. The additional $0.70 is for
that move to keep them competitive with other full time staff. Additionally, their hours are doubling as they go
from 3.5 hours per day to 7 hours per day.

202



BOE MEETING JANUARY 20, 2022
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION REQUESTS FULFILLED

Date of Requestor Documents Requested Date of
Request Response
1/11/2022 ABC7 Chicago Remote learning equipment reported as 1/13/2022

missing, damaged, broken, stolen or
otherwise unavailable for use.

203




	Agenda
	I. Call to Order
	II. Pledge of Allegiance
	III. Roll Call
	IV. Audience
	V. Consent Agenda **
	December 16 - Minutes - Open
	January 20 bills
	2022 JANUARY Bill Detail
	Consent Agenda - December 2021 Revenue by Fund
	Consent Agenda - December 2021 Expense by Fund
	Consent Agenda - Taxes Received
	Consent Agenda - December 2021 Investments
	Quarterly List of Authorized Depositories

	VI. Superintendent’s Report
	VI.A. Student Recognition
	Profile - Viramgami, Heli - January

	VI.B. Excellence in Education Award Winner Recognition
	Ex in Ed Q2-22 Durlak

	VI.C. Fall Athletic Season Update
	2021 Fall Sports Accomplishments (1)

	VI.D. Semester One Activities Update
	BOE Student Activities Report- January 2022

	VI.E. English Learner – Bilingual Education Program **
	VI.F. COVID-19 Update
	VI.G. Village of Fox Lake – Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment
	Route 12 North TIF
	Route 12 South TIF

	VI.H. Property Purchase **
	Ancillary Parking 248 E Grand Ave
	Resolution Authorizing Purchase of Real Property
	CONTRACT FOR SALE Revised-248 E. Grand Ave. Fox Lake. IL.docx

	VI.I. Spring Coaching Recommendations **
	BOE Spring Coaches List 2021 2022

	VI.J. Personnel **                 *REVISED*
	Retirement Letter - Bidlack, Mary
	Resignation - Suehr, Beth - Fall Play
	Resignation - Strom, Jessica
	FMLA - Gilbertsen, Ed

	VI.K. Principal’s Report
	January 20 - Principals Report


	VII. Business Affairs
	VII.A. PerMar Security Hourly Wage Recommendation **
	ITEM A - Security 2122 Pay Recommendation

	VII.B. Food Service Hourly Wage Recommendation **
	ITEM B - Food Service Recommendation

	VII.C. Auditing Services Requests for Proposals

	VIII. Other Business
	VIII.A. FOIA
	January 20 - FOIA List


	IX. Closed Session
	IX.A. The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of specific employees. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) **
	IX.B. Student disciplinary cases 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(9) **

	X. Action items from closed session discussion
	X.A. Potential Board action regarding personnel **

	XI. Adjourn

